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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ACI-E

Board of Directors

Executive Directors*

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) ®®
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Geng Mei (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Tai Po
Mr. Lin Ching Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors**
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew GBM, GBS, Jp M@

Mr. Li Wai Keung M@®

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung /p @

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary***
Mr. Chan Mau Cheong Bryan (CPA, CFA)

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Legal Advisors

As to Hong Kong law
Linklaters

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to China law
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

M
()
3)

* %

* KKk

* KKk

Member of Audit Committee
Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wu Guangquan resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1
February 2021.

Ms. Geng Mei has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 20 April 2021 and 1
April 2021 respectively.

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director
and resigned as a member of Audit Committee of the Company,
thereupon, and has been appointed as Honourable Advisor of the Group
with effect from 22 September 2020.

Ms. Tse Man Yu resigned as Company Secretary and the Group's Deputy
Chief Financial officer with effect from 1 February 2021.

Mr. Chan Mau Cheong Bryan also serves as Company Secretary with
effect from 1 February 2021.
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Corporate Information (Continued)

DA EF (F)

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Agricultural Development Bank of China

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Bank of Xi‘an Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Hua Xia Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

PingAn Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registered Office
Suites 3306—-08, 33/F.,, Tower 5, The Gateway,
15 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Listing Information

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1668

Senior Notes Listing

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The Company’s 11.5% 1 year senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 6.75% 5 years senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 11.5% 2 1/6 years senior notes due 2022
The Company’'s 10.875% 2 1/3 years senior notes due 2022
The Company's 7.25% 5 years senior notes due 2022

The Company’s 11.95% 2 years senior notes due 2023

The Company’s 10.75% 2 2/3 years senior notes due 2023

Website

www.chinasouthcity.com

Investor Relations
Telephone: (852) 3188-3111

Fax: (852) 3188-1323
Email: ir@chinasouthcity.com
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PROJECT OVERVIEW
IHE#R

JUREEE Z2EME

China South City has its eight projects
layout highly adhered to important
national strategies such as “Greater Bay
Area”, the “Belt and Road” initiative
and “Yangtze River Economic Belt”.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Shenzhen
]l

BRI
RIEZK=A
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Birdview — CSC Shenzhen Project Site
REINE R E S R EE

China South City Shenzhen

China South City Shenzhen (“CSC Shenzhen”), situated at the Pinghu
Logistics Base in Longgang District, Shenzhen, is the Group’s first project.
Shenzhen City, one of the four first-tier cities in China, is located at the
heart of the Greater Bay Area amid an extensive transportation network
with about 13.43 million permanent resident population in 2020. The
total Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) in 2020 increased by about 3.1%
compared with the same period last year, achieving high growth. The
growth rate is the fastest among the four major first-tier cities in China
with economic volume ranking the fifth among Asian cities.

Located in the northeast of Shenzhen, Longgang District recorded
a regional GDP year-on-year growth of 1.1% to RMB474.4 billion in
2020, ranking the second in the city. With the local government further
developing Longgang District as an innovation centre in the east of
Shenzhen, its ancillary infrastructure such as logistics, healthcare and
education will continue to advance, bringing more convenience to
merchants of CSC Shenzhen. In September 2020, according to the
joint announcement made by the relevant national ministries and
departments, it was decided to launch the “Market Procurement
Trade Pilot Units” in 17 locations such as Inner Mongolia, Liaoning,
Guangdong and Guangxi, whilst CSC Shenzhen was the only approved
unit in Shenzhen, which would enrich the trade forms on our project.
It would also attract foreign trade enterprises to settle in and allow
easy customs clearance for micro-and-small enterprises.

Shenzhen Metro line 10 passing through CSC Shenzhen — —
Huanancheng Station ("= 3% 4 ") put into service in August 2020.
Huanancheng Station is located inside CSC Shenzhen. The distance from
Futian Checkpoint Station (“4& IO % ¥4") to Huanancheng Station is
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Project Overview (Continued)
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@ Shenzhen Metro (Huanancheng Station)
UASANS R 3I| 3 $ h (3E R O )

@) China South Development Tower and Trade Centre Plaza No.1 in CSC Shenzhen ‘

ANl ;Y EEB M ERRRTORIBR S ES

about 26 kilometres (“km") and the journey time is about 45 minutes.
The infrastructure will generate more business opportunities and uplift
visitor traffic for CSC Shenzhen. The first fourth-generation Wanda Plaza
in China is expected to commence in CSC Shenzhen in the second half
of 2021, integrating new industries such as technology, food, sports
and fashion, forming a huge complementary and promoting role with
the whole business district of CSC Shenzhen, further activating the
popularity of the project site and enhancing the consumption potential.

The project is located at the Pinghu Logistics Park in Longgang
District of Shenzhen, covering a site area of approximately 1.06
million square metres (“sqm”). As at 31 March 2021, CSC Shenzhen
had 100% attributable gross floor area (“GFA”) of land acquired,
accounting for approximately 2.71 million sgm, of which construction
of approximately 2.39 million sgm completed, including trade centres,
residential ancillary, multi-purpose commercial properties, logistics
park, hotels, etc. CSC Shenzhen is currently in operation.

Positioned as a modern large-scale integrated commercial logistics and
trading platform to serve the Greater Bay Area, CSC Shenzhen covers a
wide spectrum of product range, including textile and clothing, leather
and accessories, electronic parts, printing, paper products and packaging,
metals and chemicals, plastic materials, hotel supplies, tea and teaware,
cross-border products, e-commerce, outlets, home furnishing, child
education, produce and flower market, etc., on its trade centre premises,
complementary with various facilities and services on site, such as banking
and finance, hotels and restaurants, governmental bodies, leisure and
entertainment. In addition, CSC Shenzhen provides micro-credit service
for on-site small-and-medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs"”), assisting them
in resolving financing difficulties for business development.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Nanning
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@) Birdview — CSC Nanning Project Site

China South City Nanning

China South City Nanning (“CSC Nanning”) is located at Jiangnan
District of Nanning, the capital of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, a critical gateway between China and the Association of
Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN") countries. Strategically located in
close proximity to Southeast Asia and enjoying the advantage of a tariff
waiver on cross-border trade activities within the China-ASEAN Free
Trade Area, CSC Nanning endeavors to serve as a key hub for cross-
border trade catering to the demand from the Northern Bay Region
and Southeast Asia.

As a Key Project of the Autonomous Region as well as Nanning
Municipal Key Logistics Infrastructure Project, CSC Nanning has been
named as “China-ASEAN Plaza”, “"China-ASEAN Digital Trade Hub”,
“"New Western Land-Sea Corridor Digital Trade Hub”, and “National
AAA Class Tourist Attraction”. In September 2020, AETM Supermarket
commenced operation in CSC Nanning, covering a GFA of over 50,000
sgm. Its presence not only serves an ancillary facility to CSC Nanning,
but also brings prosperity to CSC Nanning with new momentum.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 45§
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Commercial Complex 1668 Square and Residential Ancillary (Jiangnanhuafu) in CSC Nanning

MEEENNEEGARIESNIEERECIEEN)

CSC Nanning has a total planned net land area of approximately 1.83
million sgm and a total planned GFA of approximately 4.88 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Nanning had a total planned GFA of
approximately 2.48 million sgm of land acquired, of which construction
of approximately 1.95 million sgqm completed, including trade centres,
residential ancillary, multi-purpose commercial properties, logistics
park, exhibition centre, public facilities like primary school, etc.

CSC Nanning is now in operation, and covers industries including
textile and clothing, small commodities, ASEAN products, home
furnishing, tea and teaware, e-commerce, groceries, automobile
and motorcycle parts and outlets, etc., on its trade centre premises.
Through organizing a series of expositions, such as the China ASEAN
Expo and Light Industrial Exhibition, Folk Culture Trading Festival cum
Expo, traffic flow to the project as well as regional brand recognition
of the project were enhanced. In addition, the commercial complex,
1668 Square, has commenced operation in CSC Nanning, so as
to satisfy demands on entertainment, leisure and shopping within
the community. This, at the same time, could enhance the overall
commercial attributes on the project. CSC Nanning also provides
micro-credit service for on-site SMEs, assisting them in resolving
financing difficulties in business development.

MEEERMNBEFHEBENISSEFT K &
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Trade Centre Plaza No.1 and No.5 and Residential Ancillary (Jiulongfu, Longxiangyuan) in CSC Nanchang ‘

MEEEMRMNIR SHXZESMETRE (NN - EHR)

China South City Nanchang

China South City Nanchang (“CSC Nanchang”) is located at Honggutan
New District of Nanchang, the capital of Jiangxi Province. Situated
at the transportation hub for the Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River
Delta, the project is readily accessible to suppliers, manufacturers
and merchants via major highways, the largest port on the Gan River
and a complete freight network which includes a cargo marshal
yard, a container terminus and an international airport, coupled with
Nanchang West Railway Station — a principal high-speed rail station
just 1.2 km away. CSC Nanchang is also adjacent to the new provincial
government office. As a new business centre of Nanchang, Honggutan
New District is becoming more influential in administrative, commercial
and cultural aspects day by day. In addition, the gradual completion
of local amenities is driving visitor traffic and generating business
opportunities, laying a solid foundation for the development of CSC
Nanchang.

CSC Nanchang has a total planned land area of approximately 2.61
million sgm and a total planned GFA of approximately 6.87 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Nanchang had a total planned GFA
of approximately 4.79 million sgm of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 2.40 million sgm completed, including
trade centres, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities
like primary school, etc. CSC Nanchang is now in operation, and
covers industries including building and decoration materials, small
commodities, textile and clothing, leather and accessories, healthy and
green products, outlets, etc., on its trade centre premises.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 =R
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Project Overview (Continued)
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@) Garden View of Residential Ancillary (Longxiangyuan) in CSC Nanchang
AN HEEMAMTIERE(BRFD) BR

As a Provincial Key Project and the first E-commerce Demonstration
Base in Jiangxi Province and state-level University Students’
E-commerce Business Incubator in Nanchang, a great number
of e-commerce enterprises have moved in the project since its
establishment. CSC Nanchang collaborated with local tertiary institutes
to seamlessly connect e-commerce startups and manufacturers, by
proactively integrated resources of wholesale markets and e-commerce
and eventually assisted on-site SMEs in business transform and
upgrade. An area of nearly 30,000 sgm influencer livestreaming base
has been set up to provide one-stop services covering from anchor
training, operation management to film and television productions.
In October 2020, lJiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market
commenced operation in CSC Nanchang, and it is expected that the
blossom development of the cosmetic industry will further diversify
the business industries of CSC Nanchang.

In addition, CSC Nanchang has engaged in the “Nanchang High Speed
Rail CBD Project” for the development of an ecosystem economy
with quality service industry in Jiangxi. The project was planned to
cover “seven attributes in one city”: teenage education, business
headquarters, commercial shopping complexes, business and cultural
tourism and talent acquisition. It is built to be the central business
district (“CBD") and high-speed rail trading and logistics hub of Jiangxi
upon completion.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Xi’an
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Hardware Materials and Machinery Products Trade Centre and 1668
New Times Square in CSC Xi'an

BAZEFANTEHRER ST L R1668H B &S
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China South City Xi‘an

China South City Xi‘an (“CSC Xi‘an”) is located at the Xi'an
International Trade and Logistics Park in Xi‘an, the capital of Shaanxi
Province. As a local key project, the Xi‘an International Trade and
Logistics Park is an open economic pilot zone and a core area for
modern service industry, aiming to become the largest international
transit hub and logistics distribution centre along the Silk Road
Economic Belt and an important strategic platform for the “Belt and
Road” initiative. In addition, the Xi'an International Trade and Logistics
Park is one of the three largest clusters of China (Shaanxi) Pilot
Free Trade Zone. Benefiting from such geographic advantages, CSC
Xi'an is highly accessible via the Xi‘an City Expressway and Beijing-
Kunming Expressway, Lianyungang-Khorgos Expressway, Shaanxi-
Shanghai Expressway, Baotou-Maoming Expressway and other national
highways, forming an intricate spider network which opens to all
directions. Besides, the strategic location of CSC Xi'an is connected
to a railway container terminal and the largest bonded area in the
north western region of China, along with two metro lines that cross
the project site. Metro line 3, which passes through CSC Xi‘an, has
commenced operation. In addition, the new stadium to host the
14th National Games of the People’s Republic of China in 2021 was

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 3R

AL EFEHE

ALEERMNRAEEEALTTREABERA -
BB B 75 [ 2 b BT 25 2 4T 48 A B R B A 0 O
BERBAREEZLINER  EEKRABHKAZ
KRBT LS ABMBERERMAELAFTEY R ER
o BB BT —KISBNEZFEAR - AR
EEEERAPR(RA) AHESABE=ZKH
Er— ZTHEREBREEENEUHENS &
CEHMBRIBEN  BERANALZERSED
KHEFESR HERA KREsSR BREKaSR
SERAKEHEABZEGE  FRORIFTHY
INERABEBED o I AR EBBOREEA
EREEAEREERPLORPREAALE &K
REEMNREARBRESL TERAMEDHES T
HREEMNER BECALTEERAMEIRE
EIERBE - LI ARERBPF2021FE+MEF
ZEARANBEZESHHEERLNERALE
BT AR EESENMEEREEHER
F - B 145 R B 2021 F6 ARMABES -



Project Overview (Continued)
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@) Xi'an Metro (Guoji Gangwuqu Station)
VASANN 7T 7 3§ i (I B O 7 [ )

Hardware and Building Materials Commodity Trade Centre, Hardware Materials and Machinery Products \
Trade Centre and Residential Ancillary (Huayu Condominium) in CSC Xi‘an
AREMUNASEMNBRZZPL EeBREXFPLREERE(FEERS)

completed nearby CSC Xi‘an, and the metro line 14 connected to the
venue was commissioned at the end of June 2021. Such infrastructure
will generate more business opportunities and visitor traffic for the
Xi‘an International Trade and Logistics Park and thus further enhance
the value of CSC Xi‘an.

CSC Xi'an has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00
million sgm and the total planned GFA of approximately 17.50 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Xi‘an had a total planned GFA
of approximately 4.68 million sgm of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 1.97 million sgm completed, including
trade centres, logistics park, supporting facilities, etc.

CSC Xi‘an is now in operation, and covers industries including
hardware materials and machinery products, curtains and fabrics,
textile and clothing, leather and fur, automobile and motorcycle parts,
building and decoration materials, 1668 New Times Square, outlets,
cross-border e-commerce, Central Asia and ASEAN product exhibition
centre, etc., on its trade centre premises, of which the commercial
complex, 1668 New Times Square, was included in Shaanxi Provincial
Key Project in 2019 and 2020. Leveraging its geographical advantage
in the starting point of the Silk Road Economic Belt, CSC Xi‘an is
actively poised to capture the immense opportunities arising from the
"Belt and Road” initiative.

L EARKMEETORENRBERERREE
FPEEREEE WE-SENATERNIER
MEME -
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Harbin
B
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Street View in CSC Harbin
MREERUETEANSR

China South City Harbin

Located at the Daowai District of Harbin, the capital of Heilongjiang
Province, and enjoying geographical advantages of Northeast China,
China South City Harbin ("CSC Harbin”), is the cross-border trade
hub among Northeast Asian Countries. Being the Provincial No. 1
Investment Promotion Project, together with its proximity to the
China-Russia border and merely couple-of-kilometre away from the
Xinxiangfang North station (Harbin-Mudanjiang High Speed Rail), CSC
Harbin actively integrate bilateral trade resources for the development
of regional economy and trade with its superiority of geographical
location and coverage of local industries. It has organized the 6th
China-Russia Expo, so as to develop an economy and trade logistic
gateway to Russia and form a trading platform in Northeast Asia
Economic Circle. Changjiang Road and Xiangfu Road interchange
project adjacent to CSC Harbin was completed and opened to traffic
on 17 November 2020. The regional traffic capacity has been greatly
improved which will further improve the surrounding commercial
environment.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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@ China Green Food International Expo Centre in CSC Harbin |
AAN wEAEEANTES RS EREER

N

CSC Harbin has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00
million sgm and the total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Harbin had a total planned GFA
of approximately 5.94 million sgm of land acquired, of which the
constructions of approximately 1.97 million sgm completed, including
trade centres, residential ancillary, logistics park, supporting facilities,
etc.

CSC Harbin is now in operation, and covers industries including
hardware and building materials, chemicals, machinery products,
automobile and motorcycle parts, green food, small commodities, hotel
supplies, leather and fur, outlets, e-commerce, etc., on its trade centre
premises. China Green Food International Expo Centre located on the
project site, aimed to become an influential one-stop green food base
with economies of scale advantage, has been certified and licensed
by China Green Food Development Centre.

WM EE R AREEEE41,0008 F 5K
435 2| S EAE 91,2008 F K o B E202143
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HBEEARSFEL EFE - -URERHEME
ERHSE -
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China South City Holdings Limited ZERIHZERER A F

15



16

Project Overview (Continued)
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Zhengzhou
2R M

FREETISE

() Birdview — Hardware Materials and Machinery Products Trade Centre in CSC Zhengzhou
HNEFRNASEERSHHROREE

China South City Zhengzhou

China South City Zhengzhou (“CSC Zhengzhou”) is located in
Zhengzhou, the capital of Henan Province, and adjacent to the Airport
Economy Zone ("AEZ") of Zhengzhou, which is the only state-level AEZ
with a complete network containing an international airport, highspeed
train, intercity train, metro and highway, to act as an integrated
transport hub as a whole to provide seamless connectivity. The project
is highly accessible and enjoys extensive transportation links — it is
a mere 16 km away from Zhengzhou Xinzheng International Airport
and a couple of kilometres away from the Beijing-Guangzhou Railway
Freight Station and Beijing-Hong Kong-Macau Highway. The metro
south line 2 across CSC Zhengzhou with three stations is currently in
full operation. In addition, there are several exits from the Beijing-Hong
Kong-Macao Highway, the Airport Highway, and the City Beltway to
the surroundings of CSC Zhengzhou; in particular, there are two exits
in merely 3 km area of the project site, which will generate more
business opportunities and visitor traffic for CSC Zhengzhou.

CSC Zhengzhou has a total planned net land area of approximately
7.00 million sgm, and total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Zhengzhou had a total planned GFA
of approximately 10.19 million sgm of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 3.86 million sgm completed, including
trade centres, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like
park, etc.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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CSC Zhengzhou held the “2020 Central Region Building Materials & Hardware\

@ Trade Fair — Autumn”

BN ERIR B R 2020F P (MF) M AE R F)

CSC Zhengzhou is now in operation, and covers industries including
building materials, small commodities, hardware materials and
machinery products, home furnishing, automobile and motorcycle
parts, non-staple food, outlets, e-commerce, etc., on its trade centre
premises. CSC Zhengzhou will speed up the development of residential
ancillary and commercial facilities such as multi-purpose commercial
properties, in order to meet the local demands.

CSC Zhengzhou was elected to be “Provincial Key Project”, “Provincial
Key Investment Promotion Project”, and “Priority Relocation Site for
Wholesale Markets of Zhengzhou City Centre”. In October 2020, Hong
Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza commenced business in CSC Zhengzhou,
further enhancing home furnishing industry on project site. In response
to the local policy to support innovation and entrepreneurship, CSC
Zhengzhou is also actively promoting emerging industries, specially the
e-commerce industry base. CSC Zhengzhou has gradually become a
"Provincial E-commerce Demonstration Base” since 2016, “Provincial
Cross-border E-Commerce Demonstration Base” and “Provincial
Innovation Model Bases for Micro and Small Enterprises”.

BMEFRCDRALE -BRXZTOMREN
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Hefei
=
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Birdview — Huasheng Outlet in CSC Hefei
AREESNERRSRGES SEE

China South City Hefei

China South City Hefei (“CSC Hefei”) is located at Anhui Feixi Economic
Development Zone of Hefei, the capital of Anhui Province. Anhui Feixi
Economic Development Zone of Hefei is a core area for municipal
development — Hefei “1331 Project”, and was elected to be “Anhui
Provincial Key Investment Project”, “Anhui Provincial Dispatch Project”
and “Anhui Provincial 861 Construction Project”. CSC Hefei benefits
from the advantageous geographical location equipped with well
developed infrastructure: a planned transportation system of railways,
highways and river transportation across China. The metro south line
4 across CSC Hefei has been under construction in October 2020 and
is expected to open to the traffic in 2024.

CSC Hefei has a total planned net land area of approximately 10.00
million sgm with a total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Hefei had a total planned GFA
of approximately 5.99 million sgqm of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 3.16 million sgm completed, including
trade centre, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like
secondary school, etc.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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@ Hardware Materials and Machinery Products Trading Centre in CSC Hefei |
AAS SEEEMBEMNASRETS

CSC Hefei is now in operation, and covers industries including
automobile and motorcycle parts, hardware materials and machinery
products, building and decoration materials, textile and clothing, hotel
supplies, outlets, small commodities, non-staple food, etc., on its trade
centre premises, combining various functions, such as trading, logistics
and distribution, production display and promotion, information
exchange and innovation, industry cluster, training base for education
industry, featured tours and comprehensive supporting facilities for
urbanization as a whole.

As Hefei further plays its role as the political, economic, cultural
and financial centre at the heart of Eastern China, CSC Hefei aims
to capture the opportunities arising from the area and is dedicated
to cultivating industries like education, and have already recruited
educational institutions of approximately 300,000 sgm with staff
and students over 30,000. This would bring about education related
business and huge visitor traffic, and in turn simulate advancement.
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Project Overview (Continued)
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Chongqing
EE
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Huasheng Outlet, International Hardware Materials and Machinery Products Expo and Trade
Centre and Residential Ancillary (Bananhuafu) in CSC Chongging
EFEERMNERRERNES BRASHEERTRIPOREERE(EBER)

China South City Chongqing

China South City Chongging (“CSC Chongging”) is strategically
located at Banan District of Chongging, the only direct-administered
municipality in midwestern China, as well as the essential location
seamlessly connecting both “Belt and Road” initiative and “Yangtze
River Economic Belt”. CSC Chongging is also the Group’s first project
in direct-administered municipality. The project is highly accessible to
the city centre and other regions given its highway network strategic
location in the Chongging Highway Logistics Base, the state-level giant
transportation infrastructure in the western region. Such location is
also the starting point of national strategies of “The New International
Land-sea Trade Corridor” and “Chongging-ASEAN International Logistics
Channel”. On 18 March 2021, Yuzhou Household and Building Materials
Market has contracted to settle down at CSC Chongging. In the same
month, as a professional service provider for market optimization and
upgrade in Chongging City, CSC Chongging has attracted a great
number of merchants, further diversifying the business industries of its
merchant portfolio and increasing project value.

Under the background where the government has put great efforts to
promote the development of Chengdu-Chongging Economic Circle and
the expansion and upgrade of Chongging High-tech Zone, Chongging
has shifted its focus towards the development of the western area
of the city, making CSC Chongqging which is located at the prime
area of Western Chongging a new hot spot for development with
huge potential for future development. In addition, coupled with the
growing maturity of business in Banan district, the groundwork of
transportation infrastructure and commercial environment was laid for
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Project Overview (Continued)
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AAN = EEBBNEZEDRER

Qianlong Logistics Park in CSC Chongqingkk

the project. Following Chongging government’s announcement that
the development of new town in the core Southern District, where
CSC Chongging is located, it is expected the regional growth potential
will be on the rise.

CSC Chongging has a total planned net land area of approximately
5.90 million sgm with a total GFA of approximately 13.10 million
sgm. As at 31 March 2021, CSC Chongging had a total planned GFA
of approximately 6.50 million sgm of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 2.18 million sgm completed, including
trade centres, residential properties, logistics park, public facilities like
primary and secondary schools, etc.

CSC Chongging is now in operation, and covers industries such as
small commodities, hardware materials and machinery products, hotel
supplies, building and decoration materials, textiles and clothing,
automobile and motorcycle parts, lightings and lamps, outlets,
metals, cultural tourism, etc., on its trade centre premises, providing a
tremendous momentum for the development of commercial logistics
and trading industry in Southwest Region. Four functional areas of CSC
Chongging include exhibition and trading area, central park commercial
and leisure area, facilities for living area and logistics and warehousing.

There are Southwest University CSC Primary School and CSC Junior
High School established on CSC Chongging to cope with the on-site
demand in course of development. With the opening of the schools,
apart from attracting the flow of people to CSC Chongging, it drives
the need of various facilities for living, which in turn further accelerates
pace of development on the project.
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FY2020/21 MAJOR EVENTS
2020/2181 FEREL

2020

April 48

e (CSC Nanning was awarded the “Advanced Entity in Fighting Against COVID-19 Pandemic” by Guangxi United Front Work Department
FEEENKAEREAS —SRRT R E NI KRZIS k& EN

May 5H

e China South City launched a series of large-scale brand events to celebrate its
18th anniversary of establishment
BE A 2E B S SL18JE R N B fm R R B U B L B M R

e China South City was listed as the “2020 China Excellent Corporations of
Operating the Characteristic Industrial New Town” by China Index Academy

EEBMETERERINBRTEFEEXZH N ELEBS X

June 64 @8 July 75
e CSC Shenzhen was awarded the “Guangdong Province e The “National E-Commerce Demonstration Base” in
Enterprise of Observing Contract and Valuing Credit” CSC Shenzhen was officially opened
by Shenzhen Administration for Market Regulation Y ZE B B 2R 7 7 7 80 B b | IE S4B b8

R Y2 50 SR RS o
TS EEEER KR
HFAREERLE]

August 8 A

e The mega data platform of the smart industrial parks in China South City
was officially launched
EEREEERARBBEFEER ERET

e China South City was upgraded from ' B- to "B” for its issuer credit
rating by the international rating agency Standard & Poor’s with a stable

outlook
EmRERRERTAREEELTR EFAETAGHATERKEB-]=(B] -
RERTE
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FY2020/21 Major Events (Continued)
2020/2188 F RE 42 (&)

August 8 A

e The Group was granted the “2020 China Top 5 Asset Management in Commercial Real Estate Developers”, “2020 Top 10
Industrial Park Operators in China” and “1st in Comprehensive Strength in 2020 China Commercial Logistics Operators”.
First Asia Pacific Property Management Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, was accredited as the “2020 China Top 10
Commercial Properties in Property Enterprises”

REEENRFEEmEMECEEEETIER N AM®] (20200 B = X B 2 E & +58 | & [202094 B i & %) i & &
BEENE—ZIWE BETE - TAVXEEARAAE2020FEMECEEHEY ZE TR IER

September 95

e The 2nd Motorcycle Riders e CSC Shenzhen was approved as the first of
Festival took place in CSC “Market Procurement Trade Pilot Unit” in
Xi'an Shenzhen

PR ERMRBITE — [EET
Sv L &n

RINEFRELRNERMERBEEZA
X IvAl

e The Group was awarded the “Outstanding
Contribution Enterprise in Poverty Alleviation”
and “Excellent Enterprise in Construction of
Charitable Ecosystem” by Shenzhen Charity

Federation
e Zijingmingdu residential AEEERY TEEE R REKESHE
project of CSC Zhengzhou MEEIRIFEERELEENAREILE

was listed in the first batch

of “Model Construction

Sites with Standardized

Construction Quality

in Henan Province”

by the Department of

Housing and Urban-Rural

Development of Henan Province
MERNEFAZMEETEEETEEEEZEAERRAENIEA
BEIRESFE(TE i
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FY2020/21 Major Events (Continued)
2020/218f F KRB 42 ()

2020

September 9H

e AETM Supermarket, a large-scale
complex with a gross floor area
of over 50,000 sgm, commenced
operation in CSC Nanning
HSB T RRNEIGEE  HEE
7 UK I R S 25 R T B P 2

@8 October 107

e Qianlong Logistics
was awarded the
“Outstanding Logistics
and Supply Chain
Service Provider”
WEMREKBEE
7510 Bt FE 9 P
74 72 1 7 5%

e Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza commenced operation in CSC Zhengzhou

BERERBRNBMERREAFE

e Jiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market commenced operation in CSC Nanchang

TEXERAEESERM

e (CSC Zhengzhou was granted the “Reliable and Credible Market Award” by Central China’s

Wholesalers Expo

BMERRAETRRILEHASHEXATS K

e (CSC Nanning held the “Nanning and Southeast Asia International Tourism and Food Festival”

MEEENR N E R BRIKEXRH]

C> November 118

e CSC Zhengzhou held the “2020 Central Region Building Materials
& Hardware Trade Fair — Autumn”

EMERRBR202009 BB EVAERIFEE

e The China South City
E-commerce Industry Alliance
was launched

EFERERERBBEBIEKL

24

¢ Qianlong Logistics Zhengzhou was accredited as
the “2020 Outstanding Logistics Park” by China
Logistics and Purchasing Federation
EB M2 RE WM AR I Fp BN W ER R BB Bk 5 & (2020
FEEFEYRER]

e Huasheng Outlet Nanning
was accredited as the
“Reliable and Credible”
Announced Enterprise in
Nanning for the year
R 2R 2 AR AT AT ER
EEMFRITaRAEFERIATRE



FY2020/21 Major Events (Continued)
2020/2188 F RE 42 (&)

December 124

e Shenzhen First Asia Pacific Property e Qianlong Logistics
Management Co., Ltd. was Hefei was awarded
awarded the “2020 Guangdong the “Advanced Entity
Province Property Service in Fighting against
Comprehensive Development the COVID-19
Strength Enterprise” Pandemic in China
AYNE—DAMEERERA in the Category of
A [2020 & R4 ¥ 3% PR 15 47 Communications and Transportation” by China
EERENME] Communications and Transportation Association

EREZEVMARETEXBAEGHERE 2
BRXBEGNENEMARBLELM]IRY

e 1668 New Times Square Project in CSC Xi‘an was awarded the “Green Card for 2021 Key

Construction Projects in Xi‘an City”
B EEHI1668H R ESHAE AL M2021F E R ZREB 4 K

March 3AH

e The "“Digital Exhibition Hall” was opened in China ¢ Yuzhou Household and Building Materials Market has
South City contracted to settle down at CSC Chongging
ERHBETEREIZKE MMREBBEMMEBOANE EEE BN

e The New Year Goods Festival under the theme of e CSC was awarded the 2021 Excellent Industrial Park
“Happy City e Chinese New Year” was held in China Operators” by China Index Academy
South City for one month EPREEFIERERRVIEXRRESES G
EEHERASH —EANI=RHE-PBRFIHFF Sl

M fof

=R
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

(in HK$'000F % T)
Revenue

A

2021

11,309,304

2020 9,887,654

2019 10,274,255
2018 9,405,370

2017 7,838,510

Net assets value
EEFE

2021 41,296,550
2020 34,882,520
2019 36,149,827
2018 36,400,754

2017

28,479,391

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

BRAERAEETE

2021

2,415,498

2020 2,633,141

2019 3,250,962

2018 4,511,679

2017 4,322,626

Core net profit attributable to owners of
the parent
BAREEABGRZRLERE

2021

1,885,622

2020 1,553,250

2019 1,749,575
2018 1,608,548

2017 1,351,212

Contracted Sales by Projects

BRIEES

Shenzhen #II|

Nanning FIZ

Nanchang @&
FY2016/17

Xi'an A%
Harbin "AFE& _
86.36f=8 T
Zhengzhou M
Hefei &8

Chongqing EE
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HK$8,636 million
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FY2017/18
2017/18E ERE &

HK$12,026 million
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

B 2 ()
For the year ended 31 March 2021 2020
BZE3A3MHLEE HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
AR T 2
Contracted sales BRHE 16,148,856 13,514,126 19.5%
Revenue LN 11,309,304 9,887,654 14.4%
Among which, Recurring income He: SEMERA 2,765,366 2,411,919 14.7%
Gross profit margin E R E 43.7% 45.7%
Core net profit attributable to BRAEEBAEN
owners of the parent* 10 F F E* 1,885,622 1,553,250 21.4%
Profit attributable to owners [SNCIE S PN
of the parent ) 2,415,498 2,633,141 -8.3%
Earnings per share — Basic BRAN - EX HK29.85 cents & {li HK32.47 cents& 1l
Gearing ratio ERBER X 67.6% 67.2%
Proposed final dividend per share  ## & K Hi % B (F %) HK3.0 centsi& il HK3.0 cents &1l
* Mainly represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding fair value gains on investment properties and certain

tax effects, impairment of goodwill, etc.

TERRAFKENEAFERERETHEZE BHERESNERRERABREFFE -

FY2018/19 FY2019/20 FY2020/21
2018/19B8F EREE S 2019/208 ER4EE & 2020/218t R EE BB

HK$14,677 million HK$13,514 million HK$16,149 million
146.771&8 T 135. 14488 7T 161.49fE/8 T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, | present herewith the consolidated results of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

During the Year, both domestic and international economic situations
were intricate, along with the continuing international trade frictions
due to the rise of trade protectionism and the continuous recurrence
of the COVID-19 pandemic, causing a comparatively severe impact
on global economy. Under unified deployment and strong prevention
and control of the Central Government, the COVID-19 pandemic has
been controlled with production and operations of enterprises well
protected and people’s life and national economy recovering rapidly,
making China the only country achieving positive economic growth
among the major economies in the world.

In terms of macro policy, the Chinese government strongly supported
the real economy by introducing a series of industries-supporting
policies and aiding small-and medium-sized enterprises through various
ways, including tax reduction and loan interest discount. In line with
the national industrial development, China South City, as a leading
developer and operator of large-scale integrated commercial logistics
and trade centres in China, adhered to its “Trade and Logistics+”
model at all times and focused on real business, which afforded the
Group the opportunity of development. In July 2020, the “National
E-Commerce Demonstration Base” was officially inaugurated in CSC
Shenzhen, marking new phase of development for the e-commerce
industry. In September 2020, China South City was approved as the
only “Market Procurement Trade Pilot Unit (T35 88 & 5 i BhEE(7)”
in Shenzhen, which strived to promote the market upgrade of the
project sites through assisting the merchants in the project sites in
utilizing both international and domestic markets and 020 resources
by relying on its advantages in market concentration and adopting the
internet service model.

In terms of operation and management, China South City vigorously
promoted industry transformation and upgrade by introducing
new advantageous businesses, building the industrial ecological
chain in each project through precise merchants recruitment and
comprehensively enhancing the refined operating management, which
significantly improved the quality of operation services, and set sail
on the journey of digital transformation to empower enterprises and
merchants with technology. Currently, CSC Hefei has formed an
education industry cluster, with a gross floor area (“GFA") of nearly
300,000 sgm, China’s first fourth-generation Wanda Plaza is expected
to commence operation in CSC Shenzhen in the second half of 2021,
AETM Supermarket (P 45 258 ) with GFA of over 50,000 sgm,
commenced operation in CSC Nanning, Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale
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Plaza (MEIB(RIEHLEEY,) with a GFA of nearly 300,000 sgm opened in
CSC Zhengzhou, Jiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market (JT 753
&35) moved in CSC Nanchang, and Yuzhou Household and Building
Materials Market (il M X /& 2 #7 30) was contracted to move in CSC
Chongging. In addition, benefiting from demolition and transformation
of the old markets, CSC Xi'an and CSC Chongging attracted a large
number of merchants. With various industry-supporting policies in
place, new advantageous businesses of China South City have been
developed flourishingly.

In terms of transportation infrastructure, in August 2020, Shenzhen
Metro line 10 was officially opened with the Huanancheng Station (2
4 ufi) along the line. In November 2020, the separate interchange
in the area where CSC Harbin is located was completed and open to
traffic, enabling passing-through in seconds. The Huanancheng Station
of Harbin Metro is also under planning. The Hefei Metro which is
passing through CSC Hefei, is under construction. There are four metro
stations located in project site of CSC Hefei. The Shuangzhai Station
(%3834 and Guoji Gangwuqu Station (BIB B uf) of Xi'an Metro
line 3 adjacent to CSC Xi‘an are open to traffic, while Olympic Sports
Centre Station (BEEFR.L\UA), Xinsi Station (3137 Uk) and Gangwudadao
Station (& KB UE) of line 14 are about to be completed. So far,
there are nearly 20 metro stations in the China South City project
sites nationwide, with more metro and other transportation hubs
to be completed and put into operation, making China South City
enjoy a much more prominent advantage in terms of transportation
infrastructure and location.

At present, as the overall layout of China South City highly adheres
to national development strategies such as the “Greater Bay Area”
and the “Yangtze River Economic Belt”, and the Central Government
authorized Shenzhen to implement comprehensive pilot reforms, as
a local enterprise in Shenzhen, China South City is well positioned
to embrace this important historic opportunity. China South City will
continue its comprehensive transformation and upgrade and facilitate
the coordinated development of the regional economy with digital
technology based on consolidating its main businesses such as trade
and logistics and driven by “new business + new technology” two-
pronged strategy, achieving the development goal of “Integrating
Industries into Projects, Building Beautiful New City Conducive to Work
and Life”.
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During the FY2021/22, the Group has officially launched the Urban
Renewal Project (the “Project”) in CSC Shenzhen. The land area of
the Project is approximately 430,000 sgm. The Group estimated that
the construction area of the Project will exceed 2.5 million sgm upon
completion and the estimated commercial value will be more than
RMB100 billion. Due to the large scale of the Project, the Group
is now negotiating with various relevant government departments
on specific planning details to ensure that the Project is advanced
at the fastest speed and in the direction of maximizing commercial
benefits. The Group, as the main operator and largest owner of the
Project, will discuss with other owners of the Project on the follow-
up developmental issues.

Results and Dividends

During the Year, the contracted sales of the Group amounted to
HK$16.1489 billion (FY2019/20: HK$13.5141 billion); revenue rose by
HK$1,421.6 million to HK$11,309.3 million (FY2019/20: HK$9,887.7
million), with recurring income up by HK$353.5 million to HK$2,765.4
million (FY2019/20: HK$2,411.9 million).

Net profit attributable to owners of the parent was HK$2,415.5 million
(FY2019/20: HK$2,633.1 million), while core net profit attributable
to owners of the parent (excluding fair value gains on investment
properties and certain tax effects, impairment of goodwill and
loss of forward contract, etc.) was HK$1,885.6 million (FY2019/20:
HK$1,553.3 million). Basic earnings per share was HK29.85 cents
(FY2019/20: HK32.47 cents).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per share for FY2020/21 (FY2019/20: HK3.0 cents per share),
subject to approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held by the Company on 28
September 2021.

Review of the Market and Operations

During the Year, China South City was ranked as “2020 China Top
5 Asset Management in Commercial Real Estate Developers” and
“1st in Comprehensive Strength in 2020 China Commercial Logistics
Operations” by EH Consulting. Two subsidiaries of the Group, namely
First Asia Pacific Property Management Limited and Qianlong Logistics
Group Co., Ltd. (“Qianlong Logistics”), won respectively the “2020
China Top 10 Commercial Properties in Property Enterprises” and the
“National Excellent Enterprises with Foreign Investment — Excellent
Tax Payment and Turnover”. In addition, by improving its governance
and debt structure, the Group was upgraded from “B-" to “B” for
its issuer credit rating by Standard and Poor’s (an international credit
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rating agency) with a stable outlook, and was confirmed the issuer
credit rating of “B” from Fitch (an international credit rating agency)
with a stable outlook as well.

Taking great efforts to overcome the impact of the pandemic, the
investment development division started construction of a number
of new projects during the Year, which have been in progress in an
orderly manner, including CSC Shenzhen No. 3 City Living Room (%
I F 3% T B E8) of approximately 250,000 sgm, CSC Xi‘an
1668 Times Square Zone C and D of approximately 650,000 sgm
in aggregate, CSC Zhengzhou Times Square, Asia Pacific Plaza and
Zhongyuan Plaza of approximately 530,000 sgm in aggregate and CSC
Nanchang B07 and D07 projects of approximately 440,000 sgm in
aggregate, providing sufficient property resources for the subsequent
development of China South City.

During the Year, the business management division made
breakthroughs in merchants recruitment, achieved remarkable results
in business upgrades, improved its refined operations, and made great
achievement in operational indicators. The advantageous businesses
in CSC Shenzhen, CSC Zhengzhou, CSC Xi'an and CSC Hefei have
formed a cluster, and the merchants recruitment in CSC Nanchang
and CSC Chongging has made a historic breakthrough. Among them,
CSC Nanchang introduced Jiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market
of approximately 26,000 sgm, CSC Chongging introduced Yuzhou
Household and Building Materials Market of approximately 80,000
sgm, CSC Shenzhen introduced Heung Kong Furniture of approximately
54,000 sgm, and CSC Nanning introduced AETM Supermarket of over
50,000 sgm. The exhibition activities achieved significant effects, with
activities such as CSC Zhengzhou Building Materials and Hardware
Trade Fair, CSC Nanning Southeast Asian Food Festival and Lunar New
Year Festival boosted the transaction volume.

The merchant advisory committee was established to strengthen
quality supervision, promote mobile bill payment and online repair, so
as to improve the quality of the project sites and strengthen merchant
interaction, which enhanced merchant satisfaction and increased
merchant loyalty. By upholding its business motto of “Safety, Quality
and Service” to adopt a diversified and flexible model for integrated
property management and ancillary services, we have won recognition
from the industry.
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Qianlong Logistics provided customers with comprehensive supply
chain integrated logistics solutions through three business platforms
with the “project operation platform” as the foundation, the
“warehousing service platform” as the core and the “forwarder
distribution platform” as the substance. During the Year, the project
occupancy rate was 91%. The merchants recruitment of the project
under construction was carried out in advance to achieve full
occupancy upon delivery and maximize the lease efficiency; the third-
party logistics services focused on supply chain integration, won bids
for Vitasoy, Eastroc Beverage, Hitachi Elevator and other high-quality
customers, and established its brand in the industry.

Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development Co., Ltd. (“Huasheng
Outlet”) actively innovated in operating management and made a big
breakthrough in operating performance in the fiscal year with recorded
turnover of RMB2.1 billion. In terms of operations, it achieved results
of RMB350 million in the three large-scale promotional activities held
in the important festivals in spring, autumn, and winter, realizing a
significant growth. It increased more than 370,000 new members,
growing the membership base. In terms of merchants recruitment, it
introduced large anchor stores such as Windy Valley Amusement Park
([l 2 A3 £435) and Haosenmei Furniture (52 FXZE1X18) into large-scale
properties in CSC Hefei and CSC Chongging. It also standardized the
national merchants recruitment management system and implemented
the brand optimization program with nearly 900 cooperative brands.

Digitalization was fully applied to facilitate our development with
technology. In the era of digital economy, digitalization is the
key to build core competitiveness of enterprises. The Group has
attached great importance to digital transformation and has made
a comprehensive planning for digitalization and formulated step-
by-step and phased implementation. The marketing and operation
analysis system of the investment development division was based on
business data visualization and marketing mega data analysis, which
effectively helps operation managers to scientifically formulate sales
policies and business operation decisions. Lots of merchants realized
online self-service payment, which improved service quality while
reducing labor costs and established online communication channels
with merchants. The smart water and electricity metre program in
CSC Shenzhen significantly improved the payment collection rate for
energy consumption and management efficiency. Phase | of the digital
exhibition hall located in the headquarter of the Group showcased the
results of smart property management, boosting confidence in digital
transformation.
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The Market Procurement Trade Pilot Policy and E-commerce Industry
Alliance aimed to create an ecosystem of industrial development
in China South City. Innovation is the soul and power source for
enterprise’s development. In September 2020, CSC Shenzhen was
approved as the only “Market Procurement Trade Pilot Unit (77 35 £
EE S BENM)" in Shenzhen. Relying on the market concentration
advantage of China South City and adopting the internet service
model, the market procurement trade will greatly improve the
transaction efficiency, reduce trade costs, and effectively assist the
merchants in the project sites in utilizing both international and
domestic markets and 020 resources. It can also attract overseas
buyers, domestic exporters and foreign trade service providers to
rapidly drive the industrial development of the regions, so as to
increase the government tax revenue and achieve an overall increase
in property value and rental income of China South City. On 25
November 2020, the Group initiated the establishment of the
E-commerce Industry Alliance, which will give full play to the role of
“serving e-commerce enterprises in the project sites” and continue
to facilitate merchants recruitment to attract all kinds of resources to
China South City, so as to enhance its property value and empower
the development of eight projects and these enterprises located in the
project sites.

Based on its own development, China South City carried out strategic
cooperation with external outstanding enterprises, making obvious
progress through joining forces and complementing with each other.
It conducted in-depth cooperation with Wanda Group. Following the
project in CSC Shenzhen, it has discussed the cooperation on project
in CSC Zhengzhou to achieve win-win in many aspects.

Financial Management

During the Year, the Group remained prudent in its financial
management to maintain multi-channel financing for better cash
management, and debt structure. In offshore market, the Group
issued additional US$125 million senior notes in June 2020; US$200
million senior notes in August 2020; US$250 million senior notes in
September 2020; additional US$120 million senior notes in January
2021; and US$175 million senior notes and additional US$50 million
senior notes in March 2021.
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The Group continued to maintain the smooth development for multiple
financing channels in both domestic and offshore capital markets,
selected the proper window based on market conditions and improved
the overall debt structure. The Group further optimized its debt
structure by repurchasing and cancelling offshore bonds. In addition,
since from the financial year of 2019/20 and up to the Year, the Group
was granted a number of domestic long-term bank loans in aggregate
amounting to RMB7.44 billion by various banks with terms from 5
to 15 years. Such loans shall significantly extend the loan terms and
increase the flexibility of working capital. On top of the repayment
of the original loans due, it allowed the Group to acquire additional
liquidity by making full use of property valuation. Looking forward to
next financial year, the Group will maintain and extend its prudent and
sound financial management strategy as well as flexible and smooth
financing channels in both domestic and offshore capital markets, with
the aim of achieving steady growth under healthy financial structure
and thereby creating maximum value for shareholders.

Prospects

Despite the complicated international political and economic situations
and the threat of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, with the upturn of
the domestic economy, China South City will continue to adhere to its
"Trade and Logistics+” multi-industry operation model, deleverage and
reduce debt, increase efficiency by refined management and develop
advantageous new businesses in line with the economic and industrial
development, thus to achieve new surmounting development.

“Innovation, Integrity, Consensus and Collaboration” are core values
of China South City and the foundation of its development as well.
China South City has positioned itself to be “world-class integrated
trade and logistics centre, digital centre, innovation centre and living
centre”, and is committed to the development strategy of “Integrating
Industries into Projects, Building Beautiful New City Conducive to
Work and Life”. Leveraging its wealth of experience throughout the
years, the Group is committed to being an incubator for strategic
emerging industries, uncovering new growth point collectively with
the real economy, increasing investment in digital transformation and
empowering industry upgrade and business development with digital
technology, striving to become a benchmark enterprise in the industry.
We will continue to promote the development of each project, improve
urban functions together with industry and sector layout, prosper
the regional economy and create jobs for local residents, ultimately
realizing the vision to build beautiful new city conducive to work and
life.
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The management plans that the Group will deliver its annual
contracted sales target of HK$16 billion for the financial year ended 31
March 2022. In respect of recurring business, the Group will strive to
keep its growth momentum and develop diversified and stable revenue
streams.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincerest gratitude
to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their
consistent trust and support to China South City. | would also like
to thank the management and staff for their dedication, which have
helped China South City grow from strength to strength.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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Business Review

Focusing on primary business with flourishing
development of new industry sectors

During the Year, the economic situation at domestic and international
was complicated, and the world’s economic development was
facing with grave challenges amid the frequent international trade
disputes and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic. Thanks to the
unified arrangements and strict prevention and control by the Central
Government, the infection situation in China has gradually stabilized,
the normal business activities of enterprises have been well protected,
and as a result, the overall economy displayed a gradual upswing. Last
year, China was also the only country among the major economies
in the world that achieved positive economic growth. During the first
quarter of 2021, China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) increased
by 18.3% year on year. It is expected that the recovery of the overall
environment will have a positive impact on the industry.

Facing the industry regulation and the ever-evolving domestic and
international situation, the diversified and flexible business model of
China South City has enabled timely and effective adjustments to sales
and operations strategies according to different development stages
of a project and the market demand in different regions. Leveraging
its innovative and integrated trade and logistics model that have been
improving over the years, the Group will continue to remain as a
leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated commercial
logistics and trade centres in China.

As the projects in various places are becoming mature, China South
City has actively been adding new industries and businesses in the
respect of innovation and technology on these project sites, apart from
continuously strengthening the provision and services on trade centres,
residential units, multi-purpose commercial properties, property
management, conference and exhibition facilities, warehousing and
logistics, outlets operation. Through continuous cultivation and
introduction of new industries, China South City has achieved the
flourishing development of new industries comprising livestreaming
base for e-commerce influencers, membership supermarkets,
inexpensive quality home furnishing stores and outlets which have
become the “four important growth engines”. In addition, education,
new energy automobile and motorcycle, healthcare and beauty
industry, and health foods are also quite distinctive. The rapid
development of some projects has created huge industrial cluster
effect, forming a new growth pole, such as the automobile and parts
specialized market in CSC Xi‘an and the education base in CSC Hefei,
Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza in CSC Zhengzhou, and Yuzhou
Household and Building Materials Market in CSC Chongging, which
were strategically complementary to the Group’s existing businesses.
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During the Year, the Group's total revenue was HK$11,309.3 million
(FY2019/20: HK$9,887.7 million). Its recurring income was HK$2,765.4
million (FY2019/20: HK$2,411.9 million), accounting for 24.5% of the
total revenue (FY2019/20: 24.4%). Gross profit margin was 43.7%
(FY2019/20: 45.7%). Core net profit attributable to owners of the
parent was HK$1,885.6 million (FY2019/20: HK$1,553.3 million).
Profit attributable to owners of the parent was HK$2,415.5 million
(FY2019/20: HK$2,633.1 million). Basic earnings per share amounted
to HK29.85 cents (FY2019/20: HK32.47 cents).

Refined Management Facilitating Collaborative
Development

The Group is committed to developing into a leading developer
and operator of large-scale integrated commercial logistics and
trade centres. The Group has established projects standing in
eight cities in China, covering first-tier cities, provincial capitals
and a direct-administered municipality for over a decade. Trade
centres, warehousing and logistics facilities, residential units, multi-
purpose commercial properties, and commercial complexes were
successfully developed on these projects, which delivered sustainable
revenue for the Group. During the Year, the Group continued to
promote transformation and upgrading, achieving good results in
refined management, cost reduction and efficiency improvement,
and boosting the collaborative development of merchants in the
project sites and the regional economy through targeted merchants
recruitment and improved service facilities.

Project Investment and Development

The investment development division mainly focuses on the Group's
project investment, development and construction. To meet local
demands of projects in different places, the Group has developed
various types of commercial complexes accordingly. Multi-purpose
commercial properties are being developed in various China South
City projects, such as Zhengzhou, Xi'an, Nanchang and Shenzhen.
With respect to project construction, the investment development
division keeps abreast of the latest development trend by continuously
improving the construction standard, so as to elevate the construction
quality of projects. For instance, the Zijingmingdu residential project
(RFZEBEETEE) of CSC Zhengzhou was listed in the first batch
of “Model Construction Sites with Standardized Construction Quality
in Henan Province” by the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development ({X #E2) of Henan province. This project adopted the
engineering general contracting model of “prefabricated construction
+ EPC”, which was more environmentally friendly with less carbon
footprints and higher quality standard. During the Year, in terms
of management and team building, the investment development
division has achieved remarkable results, with a number of projects
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completed for delivery. The division strove to create an overall
healthy development environment by vigorously promoting refined
management, improving whole-process dynamic cost management,
implementing various measures to strengthen pre-activity cost control
and building up a reserve of outstanding talents.

RBALER BREAKLABEHRER
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In FY2020/21, the Group recorded total contracted sales of 202021 FE AEBHEBSADHEEN
approximately HK$16,148.9 million, with GFA of approximately 161.489f8 /8 L @+ &4 EREMEL1,695,500F
1,695,500 sgm. JokK e
Contracted sales EHHEE
FY2020/21 FY2019/20
2020/ 218t L E B 201912081 B 5 &
Average selling Contracted Average selling Contracted
price (before amount (before % of total price (before amount (before % of total
deduction of deduction of contracted deduction of deduction of contracted
GFA sales tax) sales tax) sales amount GFA sales tax) sales tax) sales amount
THER BHEE THER ROk~
(MNBRHEE (MBREE BENHE (INk#EE (ks BENMHEE
BEEE BAN) BAD) SEELY BEER ) B SBIEL%
(sqm) (HK$/sqm) (HK$'million) (sqm) (HK$/sqm) (HK$'million)
(FFK)  (Br/THXK) (BEET) (FHK) BT/ FHK) (BEAT)
CSC Shenzhen RINE R 10,400 12,200 127.3 0.8% 9,200 17,100 157.8 1.2%
CSC Nanchang HEEEN 176,800 10,900 1,930.5 12.0% 65,100 12,700 826.5 6.1%
CSC Nanning BEERH 57,900 9,700 562.8 3.5% 56,000 9,400 525.0 3.9%
CSC Xi'an BRERH 525,500 10,300 5,398.6 33.4% 396,700 9,200 3,6604.7 27.1%
CSC Harbin MEEERR 184,200 7,700 1,410.7 8.8% 233,800 7,700 1,809.2 13.4%
CSC Zhengzhou — EBNZEFH 581,100 9,000 5,236.2 32.4% 484,600 9,200 4,448 32.9%
CSC Hefei ARERH 28,800 10,300 296.0 1.8% 18,700 10,200 191.6 1.4%
CSC Chongging ~ EEEMEH 130,800 9,100 1,186.8 7.3% 213,400 8,900 1,897.5 14.0%
Total/average @t/ ¥ 1,695,500 9,500 16,148.9 100.0% 1,477,500 9,100 13,514.1 100.0%

CSC Shenzhen

As of 31 March 2021, construction of a GFA of approximately 2.39
million sgm was completed in CSC Shenzhen. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 248,800 sgm was
underway.

CSC Nanchang

As of 31 March 2021, construction a GFA of approximately 2.40
million sgm was completed in CSC Nanchang. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 710,700 sgm was
underway, of which approximately 546,800 sgm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.
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CSC Nanning

As of 31 March 2021, construction of a GFA of approximately 1.95
million sgm was completed in CSC Nanning. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 154,800 sgm was
underway.

CSC Xi'an

The development of CSC Xi'an is well underway with a GFA of
approximately 1.97 million sqm was completed. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 984,800 sgm was
underway, of which approximately 344,400 sqm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.

CSC Harbin

The development of CSC Harbin is well underway with a GFA of
approximately 1.97 million sgm completed. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 981,800 sgm was
underway, of which approximately 433,700 sgm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.

CSC Zhengzhou

The development of CSC Zhengzhou is well underway with a total
GFA of approximately 3.86 million sqm completed. As of 31 March
2021, planned construction of a GFA of approximately 2,398,700 sqgm
was underway, of which approximately 897,500 sqgm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.

CSC Hefei

The development of CSC Hefei is well underway with a GFA of
approximately 3.16 million sgm completed. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 721,500 sgm was
underway, of which approximately 201,600 sgm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.

CSC Chongqing

The development of CSC Chongging is well underway with a GFA
of approximately 2.18 million sgm completed. As of 31 March 2021,
planned construction of a GFA of approximately 649,600 sgm was
underway, of which approximately 196,300 sgm was expected to
complete in FY2021/22.
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Sustaining the Healthy Growth of Recurring
Business

As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated
commercial logistics and trade centres in China, China South City
pays high attention to the overall operation of its projects. Apart
from actively enriching the industries available on project sites and
promoting industry concentration, China South City has offered room
to accelerate vertical market integration within different industries. The
Group also provides tenants and merchants with a one-stop solution
by consolidating resources such as business management, property
management, brand value, merchant resources, etc. As each project
matures over time, the recurring business has become a diversified and
steadily increasing revenue stream of the Group. During the year, China
South City continued to introduce e-commerce influencer livestreaming
base, education and training base, beauty and hairdressing products
industry of Jiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market, etc., which
complemented and promoted each other with the original industries.

The Group still recorded total recurring income of HK$2,765.4
million (FY2019/20: HK$2,411.9 million) representing an increase of
14.7%. Revenues from property leasing and property management,
logistics and warehousing services and outlet operations amounted
to HK$1,523.4 million, HK$421.5 million and HK$536.9 million,
respectively (FY2019/20: HK$1,344.1 million, HK$404.9 million and
HK$440.2 million, respectively).

Business Management and Operation

China South City pays high attention to the overall operation of its
projects. Apart from actively enriching the industries on project sites
and promoting industry cluster, China South City has been providing
or introducing a variety of ancillary facilities and services in response
to the demands of its project management and expansion, to develop
a comprehensive business portfolio. The business management
division is principally engaged in merchants recruitment and operation
management of the Group, providing professional operation and
management services for all links along the value chains of China
South City. Its business covers trade centres, logistics zones, hotels,
integrated commercial complexes, commercial blocks, neighborhood
centres, residential ancillary, and multi-purpose properties.
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During the Year, the Group practically kept implementing the strategy
of “Emphasizing on Merchants Recruitment and Strengthening
Operation” to promote cost reduction and efficiency improvement.
The professional business management division resulted in more
efficient project management and merchants recruitment. Overall, the
Group made breakthroughs in merchants recruitment by accurately
introducing emerging industries and new formats that meet the future
development trend, which are well supplementary to the existing
industries. The upgrading effect of industries was remarkable, and the
level of refined operation was continuously improved.

Specifically, the CSC Shenzhen No. 3 City Living Room Project is under
development, which is expected to further enrich the industries of
CSC Shenzhen after completion; and CSC Nanchang has established
an e-commerce influencer livestreaming base of nearly 30,000 sgqm,
and introduced Jiangxi Meibocheng Beauty Supplies Market as well as
Old Wine Museum, showcasing the good development momentum of
the new formats. CSC Nanning has created special activities such as
Southeast Asia Tourism and Food Festival around China-ASEAN Digital
Trade Centre, and successfully introduced Guangxi's first membership-
based large-scale supermarket with over 50,000 sgqm, further enriching
commercial industries and stimulating consumer popularity. CSC Xi’an
successfully held the Second Motorcycle Riders Festival, with the rapid
development of the automobile and motorcycle parts industry chain.
Thanks to the relocation of the old markets, CSC Xi‘an ushered in
a rapid development opportunity. The separated interchange in the
area where CSC Harbin is located was completed and opened to
traffic, enabling passing-through in seconds. For CSC Harbin, the
transportation facilities ushered in a major upgrade, the used car and
seed agricultural materials market performed well and the overall
development situation was optimistic. CSC Zhengzhou successfully
held the “2020 Central Region Building Materials and Hardware Trade
Fair-Autumn”. The introduction of inexpensive quality home furnishing
stores represented by Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza further
improved the overall industry. What is more worth looking forward to
is the re-cooperation between China South City and Wanda Group. A
new generation of Wanda Plaza is being discussed to establish in CSC
Zhengzhou, which will greatly promote the development of the project
site, accelerate the gathering of popularity and commerce, radiate
and drive the economic development and overall improvement of the
project site. There are educational institutions opened in CSC Hefei,
taking shape cluster development trend in the science and education
industry. CSC Chongging made a new breakthrough in merchants
recruitment as Yuzhou Household and Building Materials Market has
contracted to move in CSC Chongging.
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With the introduction of the “Plan on Implementing Comprehensive
Pilot Reforms in Shenzhen to Build the City into a Demonstration
Area of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics”, the implementation of
the Market Procurement Trade Pilot Program, as well as the opening
of the E-commerce Demonstration Base, China South City benefited
from a variety of key strategic policies, new historic opportunities
for the development of its commercial and trade business emerged.
The first fourth-generation Wanda Plaza in China is expected to
commence in CSC Shenzhen in the second half of 2021, integrating
new industries such as technology, food, sports and fashion, forming
a huge complementary and promoting role with the whole business
district of China South City, further activating the popularity of the
project site and enhancing the consumption potential.

Property Leasing and Property Management

The Group implements diversified property management mode. As a
leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated commercial
logistics and trade centres in China, China South City has developed
diversified and flexible property management and ancillary services
model to ensure stable revenue sources and sustainable development
in the future. Residential facilities, shopping malls, wholesale markets,
as well as conference and exhibition are developed to create synergy.
Business is tuned and optimized according to local market demands.

After years of development, the property management division has
gained National First-Class Property Management Qualification. It was
one of the few integrated property management enterprises capable
of managing both trade centre premises and residential properties in
China. As the projects in various cities mature over time, the Group
continuously seeks to add multiple streams of revenue to improve
its operation, including advertising and exhibitions, temporary space
leasing and parking charge.

Meanwhile, the Group continued to strengthen digitalization on its
property management through the application of mobile payment,
online payment, electronic invoicing, smart device control, etc., with a
view to provide higher usability while significantly reducing manpower
costs at the same time increasing efficiency.
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Logistics and Warehousing Services

Qianlong Logistics is an integrated modern logistics enterprise. As
a professional operator of e-commerce, logistics and information
industrial parks, it adopted the “Internet + Logistics Parks” operation
mode to realize the integration of information and resources between
transportation, warehousing, distribution and other logistics services
providers and production, manufacturing, sales, e-commerce and other
cargo owners across the country through the platform, and focused
on the establishment of the integrated China South City logistics
network. Built on the base of stable “logistics park operation” and
improvement of park operation, Qianlong Logistics actively expanded
its comprehensive third-party logistics services of warehousing and
distribution, and accelerated improving the network presence, resulting
in a higher occupancy rate as a whole and good results were achieved.
In terms of brand cooperation, Qianlong Logistics has successfully
involved in the upstream and downstream of industries and enterprises
as it not only maintained five core customers of daily chemicals, food,
industrial products, infrastructure and shoes and clothing, but also
gained a number of leading cooperative merchants. In warehouse
construction, Qianlong Logistics has made a new breakthrough in
accelerating the nationwide presence of its network. Warehouses
No. 1-5 of Qianlong Logistics Hefei have been delivered, warehouses
No. 1 and 2 of Qianlong Logistics Nanchang have met the delivery
conditions.

In this fiscal year, Qianlong Logistics participated in the 15th China
(Shenzhen) International Logistics and Supply Chain Fair and was
awarded the “Outstanding Logistics and Supply Chain Service
Provider”; Qianlong Logistics Zhengzhou won the title of “2020
Outstanding Logistics Park” by the China Logistics and Purchasing
Federation; Qianlong Logistics Hefei won the “Advanced Entity in
Fighting Against the COVID-19 Pandemic in China in the Category
of Communications and Transportation” awarded by China
Communications and Transportation Association, etc., demonstrating
its capability has been widely recognized by the society.
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Outlet Operations

Huasheng Outlet, specialized in outlet development and operation,
unceasingly enhances its commercial value through professional and
effective management. This year, Huasheng Outlet launched various
new activities and measures in operation, merchants recruitment,
expansion and other aspects by making active efforts in innovation,
resulting in a significant increase in the overall performance. Sales
of and visitors to Huasheng Outlet in Shenzhen hit new highs year
on year during the first golden week consisting of the Mid-Autumn
Festival and National Day after the Huanancheng Station of Shenzhen
Metro was put into operation; and on New Year's Day of 2021, the
single-day sales of Huasheng Outlet in China reached a record high.
In terms of tenant recruitment, Huasheng Outlet has further improved
the nationwide branding database and laid a firm foundation for future
development by continuously adding high-quality brand customers,
increasing the number of registered members and building a team of
outstanding talents.

Exhibitions and Events
The Group organized a number of large-scale exhibitions and events
during the Year.

In May 2020, as this year marks the 18th anniversary of the
establishment of the Group, an event under the theme of “Mutual
Sharing and Benefit in CSC” was officially launched in May 2020,
which provided an opportunity for our subsidiaries and business
segments to share the development achievements of the Company
with all business partners and customers, with aim to strengthen the
reputation of the CSC brand. The event also boosted sales of various
business segments through a wide variety of promotion campaigns,
driving the flourishing development of all businesses and further laying
a solid foundation for the development of the Company.

In September 2020, a popular sports and health event was initiated
concurrently by the Group in eight projects, i.e. the “CSC Run ¢ 888
(¥ » 888)". Adopting the strategy of combining online and offline
channels, the event launched a tailored clock-in mini program for
exercise count PK contests, which offers a variety of games such as
step count clocking-in through WeChat, visit and snapshot at popular
internet destinations, leading sport city PK contest.
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“Nanning and Southeast Asia International Tourism and Food Festival”
was successfully held in CSC Nanning from 1 October to 11 October
2020. The food festival demonstrated the Chinese traditional delicious
food culture by combining the local distinctive delicacy of Guangxi
Province and three major Chinese cuisines namely the Sichuan Cuisine,
Hunan Cuisine and Canton Cuisine with Southeast Asian culture
and cuisine, and established three function areas including cuisine,
commodities as well as culture and tourism interaction. During the food
festival, a variety of activities were also held, including Guangxi local
ethnic distinctive cuisine competition, Russian theme experience, home
living festival and various night market activities. The Food Festival has
been held for 21 consecutive years, and has become a well-known
tourism festival brand in Nanning and “Top 10 Tourism Festival Brands
in Guangxi”, which has greatly enriched the lives of local citizens and
also boosted the popularity on the scene.

From 30 October to 1 November 2020, CSC Zhengzhou “2020 Central
Region Building Materials and Hardware Trade Fair Autumn” was
successfully held.

In January 2021, with the theme of “Happy City ® Chinese New Year”,
China South City created an 020 one-stop New Year Festival, which
provided a convenient platform experience for purchasing New Year's
goods through events such as having New Year’s food, purchasing
New Year’s clothes, enjoying New Year’s customs, giving New Year's
gifts, and enjoying the festival.

In addition, the “Enjoy Autumn” series events were launched from the
end of September to October 2020. Wine Carnival in CSC Shenzhen
displayed more than 300 types of wine from 15 countries, and held
a wine culture salon. In the Home Shopping Festival in CSC Nanning,
100 home-building materials brands offered sales. Besides, massive
scale one-stop shopping activities were the spotlight of the Third
Autumn Home Building Materials Expo in CSC Nanchang.
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Full Digitalization Through Technology +
Innovation

In the era of digital economy, digitalization is the key for enterprises to
build their core competitiveness. The Group attaches great importance
to and actively implements digital transformation, through detailed
planning and step by step implementation. The marketing and
operation analysis system of the investment development division was
based on business data visualization and marketing mega data analysis,
which effectively helps operation managers to scientifically formulate
sales policies and business operation decisions. The mega data platform
of the smart industrial parks was already put into operation and has
access to various data such as visitors flow analysis, self-service online
payment, self-service online reporting for repair, smart customer
service, smart lift control, the energy consumption of project sites, and
smart parking, etc. Through the perceptual analysis of mega data of
business elements such as pedestrian and vehicle traffic and business
operations, as well as property management behaviors, the experience
of tenants and merchants has significantly improved, effectively
facilitating managers to scientifically carry out business and industry
planning and merchants recruitment for industrial clusters, a closed-
loop and efficient customer service, refined property management as
well as real-time emergency incident handling.

Partnering with industry leading companies provides new synergy for
internal digital management, project transformation and upgrades,
and tenants and merchants’ access to the cloud. Information and
Communication (“ICT") technology was applied to help China South
City propel the construction of the smart industrial parks and the
digitalization of tenants and merchants based on the diversified
project management scenarios of China South City. In addition, CSC
Zhengzhou is also focusing on establishing a livestreaming e-commerce
base.

China South City kept up with market development by continuously
upgrading its businesses. On 25 November 2020, the Group initiated
the establishment of an E-commerce Industry Alliance with an aim
to build a comprehensive and integrated e-commerce chain service
platform for China South City together with other e-commerce
enterprises through the establishment of a long-term communication
and resource sharing mechanism. With the rise of e-commerce live
streaming, the Group conducted e-commerce business training in
CSC of cities such as Shenzhen, Harbin, Hefei and Chongqing, and
established a training base for professional livestreamers in CSC
Nanchang and a base for influencers in CSC Hefei, providing one-
stop services such as anchor training, marketing planning and market
promotion, and offer a large number of professional talents to the
merchants of the projects as well as the market.
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Land Bank

With its unique and flexible business model, the Group intends to

retain

commercial properties including logistics and warehousing

facilities and hotels, as well as approximately 50% of trade centre units
for self-use or long-term leasing purposes, in order to generate stable
recurring income and achieve capital appreciation, while the remaining
approximately 50% of trade centre units and residential properties will

be gradually sold to generate cash flow for the Group’s development.

During the Year, the Group’s land bank was as follows, mainly for
residential, warehousing and logistics, and commercial purposes.

T i ik

ZHEFAEEEUENRERS  AEBESRE
MRERRRE BESEEDERLH0NNE
mMRZPOERERBEIRALERE - UEF
REFBELRANLEERE  MHTHL50%
HmXZTOEBREENE AEBEEEF T
T RAKEEREHRAFSHNRESR

RAFE

CAEBETHMFEAENT  REFLIHHA

BANEE - RREOAEEERT -

Properties
Properties  Properties to planned for future Total Planned GFA for acquired land
Completed under be completed development on planned (% to total
Projects properties” development  in FY2021/22 GFA acquired?® GFA® planned GFA)®
%R REE CHiRE
2021/22 ARBEH EEENM
BRF HHREE Bt “wiRe (fhaRagg
EA BHINE g  BRINYE BEAREY EEEE EREAL) @
Saleable or in
(in sqm) Sold operation Estimated Estimated Estimated
(FAK) BE AEREED ik ich ich

CSC Shenzhen RYNE AR 872,900 1,519,400 248,800 - 66,200 2,707,300 2,707,300 100%
CSC Nanchang BMEERN 1,406,600 994,300 710,700 546,800 1,682,800 6,866,000 4,794,400 70%
CSC Nanning HEEHN 687,600 1,265,500 154,800 - 372,100 4,880,000 2,480,000 51%
CSC Xi'an AREHH 1,061,800 910,400 984,800 344,400 1,719,600 17,500,000 4,676,600 27%
CSC Harbin RREERN 703,600 1,269,800 981,800 433,700 2,980,400 12,000,000 5,935,600 49%
CSC Zhengzhou B 2 o 1,842,800 2,014,600 2,398,700 897,500 3,936,100 12,000,000 10,192,200 85%
CSC Hefei AEERH 1,857,000 1,302,000 721,500 201,600 2,112,500 12,000,000 5,993,000 50%
CSC Chongging BEEMN 829,300 1,350,700 649,600 196,300 3,672,200 13,100,000 6,501,800 50%
Total @zt 9,261,600 10,626,700 6,850,700 2,620,300 16,541,900 81,053,300 43,280,900 53%

Notes: B =T

) Represents the GFA for which the construction of all various types (1) REEEKERNSEUMENZERE  21F
of buildings had been completed, including properties held for sales, BIEHEEME B ZEREME BEER
warehouses, multi-purpose commercial properties, hotels and trade ERENERRZSTL  AREAME -
centres held for rental purpose as well as self-use properties.

() Represents the remaining GFA after deducting the completed properties  (2) REHMKRERIVMELRERTYEENDE i
and properties under development from the total planned GFA for RIBR B ELEMMERE -
acquired land.

(3) Represents the planned GFA upon establishment of the projects. The (3) AREXBERUVBMBEFZERE  ETHEIUERE
actual land and GFA to be acquired or built are subject to different BRHTHMERAEAEERZBARTYEME
factors and may vary subsequently. FRBERE o

(4) Represents the planned GFA for the land acquired including completed  (4) REXEESZ LN REEZEARELECRTY

properties, properties under development and properties planned for
future development. The actual GFA may vary subsequently according
to needs of the Group.

X BRPOERRIAFERRERYE  BERRZ
EHEVEERAEASENTENELRES
B o
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Strengthening the Senior Management Team

In order to meet the rapid development needs of the Group’s
businesses, China South City has continued to strengthen its senior
management team to ensure that its long-term development goals are
achieved with the best combination of administrative resources and
operational capabilities.

In April 2021, the Group appointed Ms. Geng Mei (“Ms. Geng”) as
the Executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer
of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the overall operation
and management of the Group to achieve the long-term development
goals of the Group. Ms. Geng has more than 20 years of experience
in the operation and management of real estate companies. Ms. Geng
studied for an EMBA at Renmin University of China. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Geng served as a cadre of the International Hotel Youth
League Committee of the National Tourism Administration*, the vice
president of Beijing Xinhengji Group*, the vice president of Beijing
Huahan Group*, the managing director of the Northern Region of Ping
An Real Estate Co., Ltd. and the managing director of Headquarters
Construction and Operations Centre of Ping An Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Under the leadership of the Board, the strengthened senior
management team will lead the Group to create greater value for
shareholders and propel the goal of comprehensive transformation and
upgrade.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The main objective of the Group’s financial management is to pursue
long-run sustainable growth while maintaining financial health through
a strong and stable capital base.

The Group proactively adjusts its business development strategies, the
pace of land acquisition and other capital expenditures in concurrence
with its cash flows from operating and financing activities, in order to
maintain liquidity while uphold growth momentum.

The Group actively manages its financing structure through various
financing channels, from onshore and offshore bank loans to different
interbank and capital market instruments, in order to achieve an
optimal capital structure and maturity profile. As at 31 March 2021,
the total interest-bearing debts of the Group were HK$37.3454 billion
(31 March 2020: HK$33.7537 billion). The gearing ratio was 67.6%
(31 March 2020: 67.2%). Furthermore, as at 31 March 2021, cash and
bank balances were HK$9,442.8 million (31 March 2020: HK$10,303.5
million) and the Group had unused banking facilities of approximately
HK$17.6661 billion.

* For identification purpose only
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Comparing with the last fiscal year, the revenue of the Group increased
by 14.4% to HK$11,309.3 million (FY2019/20: HK$9,887.7 million), and
the core net profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by
21.4% to HK$1,885.6 million (FY2019/20: HK$1,553.3 million) during
the Year. Net profit attributable to owners of the parent decreased
by 8.3% to HK$2,415.5 million (FY2019/20: HK$2,633.1 million) and
the basic earnings per share decreased to HK29.85 cents (FY2019/20:
HK32.47 cents). The decrease in net profit attributable to owners of
the parent and basic earnings per share are mainly due to the decrease
in fair value gain of investment properties, which is a non-cash item.

Revenue

Revenue for the Year increased by 14.4% to HK$11,309.3 million
(FY2019/20: HK$9,887.7 million) comparing with last fiscal year.
The increase was mainly attributable to more sales and delivery of
properties and the growth in recurring income during the Year.

HBEFPHFELLE  AEERAFEER U AL I
14.4%Z113.09318 /8 7T (2019/20 8 IR & [Z : 98.877
BB M REHEAE A B ZOFF B
21.4% %18.8561% 78 7T (2019/2081 B F & : 15.533
EET) - BREIHABABEFHERS83%E
2415518 7 7T (201920 R F & 1 26,3318 L) °
FIRE AT = 29.85811 (201920 A BU4F £ -
3247784 - BRRMEBABGFERERER
BRI EERR —HIFBRSBEZREMEQT
BERKRZ DT -

N

HEFHBRFELR  AFEMNR AL MNLL%
Z113.0931& 7 JT (2019/208% BX F J€ : 98.87718 /&
) EINEEREARHRAFEERZ Y X
ER R EEFEEW AL RPTE -

FY2020/2021 FY2019/2020 Change
2020/21 2019/20
MBEE W HRER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THER FAT %
Sales of properties and finance #IZEHER
lease income BEME SR A 8,543,938 7,475,735 14.3
Sales of properties Y HE 8,426,662 7,142,767 18.0
Finance lease income FEHE KA 117,276 46,842 150.4
Others Ht = 286,126 -100
Recurring income SE MW A 2,765,366 2,411,919 14.7
Property leasing and Y EHE R
management service B R A
income 1,523,386 1,344,130 13.3
Other recurring revenue H ol f5 E 1EHA 1,241,980 1,067,789 16.3
11,309,304 9,887,654 14.4
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Sales of Properties and Finance Lease income

Revenue from sales of properties increased by 18.0% to HK$8,426.7
million (FY2019/20: HK$7,142.8 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to more sales and delivery of properties in Hefei, Xi'an
and Chongging projects during the Year. The sales of properties for

each project are as follows:

Sales revenue (before

MEHERRERAERA

Sales revenue

Y S AIE HN18.0% £ 84.2671 78 7T (2019/20
MHFEE 71428 Bm) EWNMEEREAZHRN
AFEEMNRERE ALKEEEEEERZHNME
HERRM - STHEMBEEBELWT:

Average selling price
(before deduction of

deduction of sales tax*) (net of sales tax*) GFA sold sales tax*)
HEWA HEWA TYEE
(MERSEEB AT (MBREERE) EEEEER (MERSEEB AT
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20214 20204 20214 20204 20214 20204
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (sqm) (HK$/sgm)
(BEBATT) (BEBATT) (EAXK) GBL/FHK)
CSC Shenzhen RINEER - 259 - 247 - 1,600 - 16,200
CSC Nanchang EEET R - 15.9 - 15.2 - 1,000 - 15,900
CSC Nanning BEERN 88.0 163.0 83.8 155.2 7,900 13,500 11,100 12,100
CSC Xi‘an BRERN 1,848.4 811.8 1,742.7 747.4 179,100 90,000 10,300 9,000
CSC Harbin BEBEERN 919.1 172.8 845.4 162.6 123,100 22,600 7,500 7,600
CSC Zhengzhou N ERM 903.9 3,863.2 830.8 3,560.4 87,200 379,500 10,400 10,200
CSC Hefei AEERR 3,800.6 1,997.7 3,512.1 1,855.3 301,700 188,200 12,600 10,600
CSC Chongging BEEREH 1,529.1 673.7 1,411.9 622.0 161,400 82,800 9,500 8,100
Total @t 9,089.1 7,724.0 8,426.7 7,142.8 860,400 779,200 10,600 9,900
- Trade centre units - RGHEN 1,556.9 648.8 1,473.9 606.7 153,500 70,300 10,100 9,200
- Residential properties -EEYE 7,126.4 6,614.5 6,578.0 6,112.7 668,900 656,300 10,700 10,100
- Multi-purpose - SRR
commercial ES/E
properties 405.8 460.7 374.8 4234 38,000 52,600 10,700 8,800

*  Sales tax represents value-added-tax and related surcharges.

* HEBEEERLEBEMMER -

Finance lease income derived from the leasing of office buildings
increased by 150.4% to HK$117.2 million (FY2019/20: HK$46.8
million). The increment was primarily attributable to more finance lease
of office building at CSC Shenzhen made during the Year.
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Property Leasing and Management Service Income

The Group intends to retain approximately 50% of the trade centre
units for self-use or rental purposes. Meanwhile, the Group also
provide property management services for its trade centres, shops
and residential properties delivered and in use. Given the diversity
of its property types and industries in China South City projects, the
Group's business management division continued to provide diversified
leasing and property management services, to cater to the needs
of different property types and industries across respective projects
during the Year. Property leasing and management service income
will become an important component of the recurring income of
the Group in the long run. CSC Shenzhen, being the more mature
project in the Group’s portfolio, contributed a substantial part of the
property leasing and property management service income. During
the Year, property leasing and property management service income
of the Group increased by 13.3% to HK$1,523.4 million (FY2019/20:
HK$1,344.1 million) comparing to last fiscal year.

Other Recurring Revenue

Other recurring revenue increased by 16.3% to HK$1,242.0 million
(FY2019/20: HK$1,067.8 million). As a result of the growth in volume
of business the revenue from outlet operations increased by 22.0%
to HK$536.9 million (FY2019/20: HK$440.2 million). Meanwhile,
revenue from logistics and warehousing services increased by 4.1% to
HK$421.5 million (FY2019/20: HK$404.9 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly includes construction costs, borrowing
costs and land costs of properties sold and properties sold under
finance lease, and operating costs of recurring business. During the
Year, the cost of sales increased by 18.6% to HK$6,365.1 million
(FY2019/20: HK$5,365.0 million). The increase in cost of sales was
basically in line with the increase of total recognized sales during the
Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 9.3% to HK$4,944.2 million (FY2019/20:
HK$4,522.6 million). During the Year, gross profit margin decreased
to 43.7% (FY2019/20: 45.7%), which was mainly due to the increase
in cost of properties sold.
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Other Income and (Losses)/Gains

During the year, other income decreased by 36.2% to HK$264.0
million (FY2019/20: HK$414.0 million), which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in government grants (FY2020/21: HK$150.8 million;
FY2019/20: HK$267.5 million). In addition, during the Year, other gains
turned from HK$73.3 million for the corresponding period of last year
to other losses of HK$284.7 million, which was mainly attributable to
the fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and losses on disposal of subsidiaries.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

For each of the interim and annual financial reporting date, the Group
appoints an independent professional qualified valuer to determine
the fair value of our investment properties. The change in fair value
of our investment properties may be affected by a variety of internal
and external factors, such as rental area, rental rate, market prices of
comparable properties.

Based on our business model, the Group may have new additions of
investment properties every year that generate fair value gains. The fair
value gains/(losses) may fluctuate with time due to the change in the
volume of the investment properties, the change in market conditions
and different construction phrases of our projects. Therefore, the
amount of fair value gains/(losses) will also fluctuate accordingly.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses slightly increased by
0.3% to HK$486.1 million (FY2019/20: HK$484.7 million), which
remained almost the same as last year.

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses increased by 4.0% to HK$1,041.5 million
(FY2019/20: HK$1,001.9 million).

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by 92.5% to HK$409.6 million (FY2019/20:
HK$212.8 million), which was mainly attributable to the impairment
goodwill and financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and other long-term
receivables.

of trade receivables,
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Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by 23.3% to HK$638.4 million (FY2019/20:
HK$517.6 million). Due to the change in capital market conditions, the
Group's weighted average financing cost increased to 8.39% at the
end of March 2021 (31 March 2020: 7.85%).

Tax

Income tax expenses recorded a significant decrease in 46.4% to
HK$987.0 million (FY2019/20: HK$1,842.6 million), which was due
to the tax effect of the decrease in fair value gains of investment
properties during the Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group finances its development and operations primarily through
internally generated funds, bank and other borrowings, and the
issuance of different types of bonds and notes on the onshore and
offshore market, which includes but not limited to senior notes,
short-term notes, medium-term notes, corporate bonds and domestic
company bonds. The Group will continue to explore different financing
means and to extend its financing channels.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had HK$9,442.8 million cash and
bank balances (31 March 2020: HK$10,303.5 million). The Group's
cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in Renminbi, HK
dollars and US dollars.

Borrowing and Charges on the Group’s Assets
As at 31 March 2021, the total interest-bearing debts of the Group
was HK$37,345.4 million (31 March 2020: 33,753.7 million). The
details of borrowings and charges on the Group’s assets are set out
below.

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

The Group had aggregated interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of HK$18,899.0 million as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
HK$17,121.1 million), of which HK$7,232.4 million is repayable within
one year or on demand, HK$4,920.6 million will be repayable in
the second year, HK$2,055.6 million will be repayable in the third
to fifth years and HK$4,690.4 million will be repayable after five
years. As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of approximately HK$18,216.1 million were
secured by certain buildings, investment properties, properties under
development, properties held for finance lease, properties held for
sales and bank deposits with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$44,752.8 million.
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All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi or US dollars with interest rates range
from 3.75% to 12.00% (31 March 2020: 3.95% to 12.35%) per
annum. Furthermore, as at 31 March 2021, the Group had unused
banking facilities of approximately HK$17.6661 billion. The Group will,
depending on the needs of project development and working capital
status, utilize these banking facilities as appropriate.

Issuance of Notes

Senior Notes

During the Year, the Company issued (1) additional US$125 million
10.875% senior notes due 2022 in June 2020; (2) US$200 million
11.5% senior notes due 2021 in August 2020; (3) US$250 million
10.75% senior notes due 2023 in September 2020; (4) additional
US$120 million 10.75% senior notes due 2023 in January 2021; (5)
US$175 million 11.95% senior notes due 2023 in March 2021; and
(6) additional US$50 million 11.95% senior notes due 2023 in March
2021.

During the Year, the Company repaid (1) 10.875% senior notes due
2020 with a principal amount of US$201.1 million upon maturity
in August 2020; (2) 7.25% senior notes due 2021 with a principal
amount of US$128.094 million upon maturity in January 2021; and (3)
11.875% senior notes due 2021 with a principal amount of US$243.5
million upon maturity in March 2021.

During the Year, the Company made on-market repurchase of (1)
6.75% senior notes due 2021 with a principal amount of US$8
million in June 2020; (2) 7.25% senior notes due 2022 with a
principal amount of US$10 million in June 2020; (3) 7.25% senior
notes due 2021 with an aggregate principal amount of US$100.906
million in May, June and September 2020; (4) 10.875% senior notes
due 2020 with a principal amount of US$39.9 million in May 2020;
and (5) 11.875% senior notes due 2021 with a principal amount of
US$8.5 million in May 2020. The repurchased notes were cancelled
accordingly.
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Details of movement are set out below:

HERFBHIMT

Dec 2019 Sep 2020

May and Mar and Sep and and  Feb and and
Issued Date Jun 2018 Jan 2018  Jun 2019 Aug 2020  Oct 2016  Jan 2020  Jun 2020 Nov 2017  Jan 2021  Mar 2021
10.875% 7.25%  11.875% 11.5% 6.75% 11.5%  10.875% 7.25% 10.75% 11.95%
senior senior senior senior senior senior senior senior senior senior
notes notes notes notes notes notes notes notes notes notes
due 2020  due 2021 due 2021 due 2021 due 2021 due 2022 due 2022 due 2022 due 2023  due 2023

2019% 20205

128K 9AR
20185 20185 20195 20205 20165 20205 20205 20176 20215 20215
RiTAE 5K6A 18 3K6A 8A 9%108 18 2K6AR 1A 18 3R
10.875% 7.25%  11.875% 11.5% 6.75% 11.5%  10.875% 7.25% 10.75% 11.95%
20205 20215 20215 20215 20215 2022 2022 2022 2023% 2023%
Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz Bz
BAEE BAEE BAEE BAEE BiFEE BiEE BiREE BARE BAXRE BXAEB
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Issued nominal value BTEE 250,000 250,000 260,000 200,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 300,000 370,000 225,000
As at 1 April 2020 1202054 A1H 241,000 229,000 252,000 - 340,700 350,000 225,000 286,500 - -
New issuance BOHRE - - - 200,000 - - 125,000 - 250,000 175,000
Additional issuance ENBTER - - - - - - - 120,000 50,000

Repayment upon B E A
maturity (201,100)  (128,094)  (243,500) - - - - - - -
Repurchase and BEREH

cancellation (39,900)  (100,906) (8,500) - (8,000 - - (10,000) - -
As at 31 March 2021 1202193A318 - - - 200,000 332,700 350,000 350,000 276,500 370,000 225,000

All of the notes above are listed and traded on the Singapore Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of senior notes were
HK$15,947.7 million (31 March 2020: HK$14,319.5 million). The senior
notes are jointly guaranteed by certain subsidiaries and part of the
senior notes are secured by pledges of share of certain subsidiaries.

Medium-Term Notes

In April 2019, China South International Industrial Materials City
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“China South International”) issued the
first tranche of the medium-term notes of 2019 with a total principal
amount of RMB600 million with a maximum maturity period of 3 years
and at an interest rate of 8.5% per annum.
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Domestic Company Bonds

In August 2019, China South International issued the first and second
tranche of the domestic company bonds of 2019 with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1.4 billion with a maximum maturity period
of 3 years and at an interest rate of 8% per annum.

As at 31
International’s medium-term notes were HK$765.6 million (31
March 2020: HK$707.7 million) and domestic company bonds were
HK$1,733.1 million (31 March 2020: HK$1,605.4 million).

March 2021, the carrying values of China South

Gearing Ratio
The Group’s gearing ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 67.6%
as at 31 March 2021, and 67.2% as at 31 March 2020.

Net Current Assets and Current Ratio

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had net current assets of HK$8,427.9
million (31 March 2020: HK$4,054.9 million) and a current ratio of
1.18 (31 March 2020: 1.08).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees mainly with respect to banking
facilities granted by certain banks in connection with mortgage loans
made by purchasers of the Group’s trade centres and residential
properties, and bank loans made by lessees of the Group’s residential
and commercial properties. The guarantees granted to purchasers of
trade centres and residential properties will be released when the
purchasers obtain building ownership certificates, which will then be
pledged to the banks. For leased residential and commercial properties,
the guarantees will be released accordingly when the lessees repaid
the loan. Further details to the above and other matters are set out
in notes to the financial statements.

Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had future capital expenditure
contracted but not yet provided for amounting to HK$15,429.1 million
(31 March 2020: HK$13,221.6 million).

Acquisition and Disposal
Associated Companies

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the Year.

of Subsidiary and
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The income
and bank deposits of the Group were substantially denominated in
Renminbi to meet the Group’s development and operation needs in
the PRC. Other than the bank deposits, bank borrowings and senior
notes denominated in foreign currency, the Group does not have any
other material exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the Year, the
Group entered into certain forward currency contract with a bank to
hedge the amount of approximately US$200 million against the foreign
exchange exposure. All forward currency contract had been expired
during the Year.

The Group continues to adopt a proactive approach to closely monitor
the foreign currency market and explore the domestic capital market
for financing opportunities. Other hedging arrangements will be made
if such need arises.

Economic, Commercial and Other Risks

The Group may be exposed to the risk of negative developments in
national and regional economies, property and financial markets. It
may result in reductions in sales and selling prices of the properties,
rental rates and occupancy rates of properties, and demand for
ancillary services and facilities it provides. It may also result in recession,
inflation, deflation and currency fluctuations as well as restrictions in
the availability of credit, increases in financing and other operating
costs. The development of the Group's projects may subject to market
risks as it usually takes time to complete. Though the Group appoints
quality partners for the development of its projects, it may still be
subject to associated risk of the quality and safety of the products
and services provided to the Group. The Group may also be subject
to a number of regulatory environments in the territories in which
it operates. Changes in the regulatory approach to such matters as
ownership of assets and businesses, regulations related to development
and operations,
legislation may impact the business of the Group. Changes in the

exchange controls, tax rules and employment

political environment in such territories may also affect the business
of the Group. The management of the Group will keep abreast of the
environment and policy changes and make the necessary adjustments
in response to such changes, if any. Further steps taken by the Group
to manage the financial risk are set out in notes to the financial
statements.
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Land for Projects and Restriction on Sales

The Group signs project agreements with local governments prior
to the development of all projects in order to outline the long-term
blueprints of relevant projects. These agreements generally set out the
size and use of lands and the related development plans. However,
the actual acquisition of lands, land area and terms and conditions
of such acquisition are subject to the relevant regulations and local
governments’ requirements, the Group’s development plans and the
results of the relevant public tender, auction and listing. Since the
development of each of these projects may last for more than ten years,
the Group and the local government may discuss to adjust the details
of these agreements to align with the actual needs of developments.

The pace of the land acquisition and project development depends
on the progress of the Group's planning, as well as the procedural
formalities as determined by the local government departments. As the
procedures and requirements set by different local governments vary,
the Group may adjust the development of each project according to
relevant conditions. In view of its substantial land bank and flexibility
in project planning, the Group believes such circumstances will not
have material impact on its development as a whole.

Pursuant to certain project and land related contracts and documents,
some of the land acquired by the Group may have sales restrictions
on properties built on it. These include the saleable area of trade
centres of CSC Shenzhen is limited to 30% of the total buildable GFA
of properties built on the relevant parcels of land. The saleable area
of trade centres and warehousing facilities built on certain parcels
of land acquired by CSC Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010 are
limited to 60% of the relevant total buildable GFA. The saleable area
of trade centres or commercial properties built by CSC Hefei and
CSC Chongging are limited to 50% of their relevant total buildable
GFA. The saleable area of trade centres or commercial properties of
phase | and future phases of CSC Zhengzhou are limited to 60% and
50% respectively of its relevant total buildable GFA. According to the
Group’s business model, the Group intends to hold not less than 50%
of trade centres and commercial facilities for leasing and self-use, the
related sales restrictions will not have significant impact on the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a workforce of 3,907 employees.
The Group aims to recruit, retain and develop competent individuals
who are committed to the Group’s long-term success and growth.
Remunerations and other benefits of employees are reviewed annually
in response to both market conditions and trends, and are based on
qualifications, experience, responsibilities and performance. In addition
to basic salaries and other staff benefits, discretionary bonuses and
share options may be awarded to employees who display outstanding
performance and contributions to the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 =R

TH A+ SR
AEEEERZBEEMNOEZHWBRARTEEB W
# NNSEBEERENMEEE  %FHE
—RERBEELHRE UHERBEREMBOE
BEEE L HMOIGE L EERREZ G R
HERE EHBFEXR - AEENERAER
BHHNERRE  -ARNSHENERMB AR
BB+ AEEREHBTARSEEEREE
EHZEMHEARBEAR -

AEBEBRELHORERERNEE  BREFRA
MZREISN  MRFREBEHRBRFAMASEFZ
FE - -SHBANRBFAEREE Bt - A%
BSREAMERKETABBRMEERNH
BEMES EARAEENEERBITH  RE
LARENEE AEERLEHEBERAEAREKE
MEBEBERZELIK -

RipETHAR BB ARMXMT - BOIEA
THARZYMEFEHEERS SRR EBR
R e R S0 H AT E E B IR R AR 2
EEEEMN30%  FEEFERMRANEEERKN2010
FRENET LU ELEERONZXZPORER
RIENAHEMERNZEYERTEZEERRE
Me0%  AIREEHMMEEEEAMERNIRST
LDEEEMENATHERRRNZFWEATZ
EEEAEN50% : BN ERBERD —HRIAE
EHRNRSHOLREENENRHEE®E D RIR
RZEMERTEZLEEEMN60%K50% © BA
SERERK  AEERIABTE TP R0%R 5
RLOREEREEREFEEHEMER  FRAEER
HEAREENZEAIK -

AHNER

M20214F3A318 - K& B B {E 53,907A - A& E
BMAORE BRBERBIZERIREAEBREK
NEREBEHAE - EENHFWEEMENHL2ZE
MARMHZBE  UKEFEENERE &% B
ERKBEGFETRN -BREXAFERHEMET
‘AN RBEEFEALNEEELERNEES D
AT E BB TEAT K BB IR o



PROJECT PORTFOLIO
]EE Eﬂll 12?

Properties held for sale/finance lease

FFEHE/MEEAEY R

Approx.
Group's land area Approx. GFA
Project Location Interest (sqm) Description (sqm)  Completion Year
BHLhEE BOREER
EH e rEERR (FA%) AR (FHK) BRIEH
China South City Shenzhen No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100% 1,023,500  Phase | trade centres 900 2004
R ZEWH Pinghu, Longgang District, L
Shenzhen, China
MR Y 8 R T Phase Il residential facilities 800 2008
E@AE-® —HEZRERE
Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities
HEXREMRERE
Phase Il trade centres
ZHRSHL
Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities
SHEEREMEERR
Phase Il trade centres 42,500 2016
RSP0
Logistics zone commercial and
other ancillary facilities
NREEEXREBEER]
- Office tower 16,300 2015, 2016
o YN
China South City Nanchang No. 1, Huanan Avenue, 100% 1,807,800  Phase | trade centres 171,300 2012, 2014,
HEERY Honggutan New District, L 2015, 2016
Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, China Phase | residential facilities 2,600 2012, 2015,
PEIREMETAAENE —BETRERS 2017, 2018

EHAE-¥
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS (E)

Properties held for sale/finance lease

FFEHE/MEEAEY R

Approx.
Group's land area Approx. GFA
Project Location Interest (sqm) Description (sqm)  Completion Year
BOLHEE BHREEE
&R ik ] AEERR (EHK) KA (EHK) RIEHR
China South City Nanning No. 56, Shajing Avenue, 100% 890,000 Phase | trade centres 179,500 2012
HEERY Jiangnan District, —HRHHD
Nanning City, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Phase | offices 3,500 2018
China —HETE
hEERAEEREEES
TR Y KE56% Phase | residential faciities 4,000 2013, 2017,
-BETEERKE 2018
China South City Xi‘an No. 8, Port Avenue, Xi'an 100% 1,926,000 Phase | trade centres 107,400 2013, 2015,
ARERH International Trade and Logistics —HRZH0 2017, 2018,
Park, Xi‘an City, 2019
Shaanxi Province,
China Phase | multi purpose properties 7,000 2020, 2021
MERBEALT - ELIE Ak
BZEREBR
A8
China South City Harbin Tuanjie Town, Daowai District, 100% 2,386,700 Phase | trade centres 645,900 2014, 2017,
BEEZERN Harbin City, L 2019
Heilongjiang Province, China
PEERIERAETENE Phase | multi purpose properties 1900 2020
EiE o ESIEAES
Phase | residential facilities 23,300 2020
-BETEERKE
China South City Zhengzhou  Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, 100% 3,684,200  Phase | trade centres 484,700 2014, 2016,
BMERR Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, —HRHPL 2018
China
hETEEENTHED Phase | residential faciities 12,200 2019, 2020
BiE -BETEERKE
China South City Hefei Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial 100% 2,450,100  Phase | trade centres 15,800 2014, 2015,
ARERFN Park, Feixi County of Hefei City, —HRFHD 2018
Auhui Province, China
PERHEARTIERKELE Phase | residential faciities 4,400 2016, 2018,
ZERE —HEZRERM 2019, 2020
China South City Chongging  No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue, 100% 2,751,400  Phase | trade centres 408,400 2015, 2016
E-E Nanpeng, Banan District, —BRHP0
Chongging Municipality, China
hEERTCME Phase | residential facilities 64,300 2018, 2019, 2021

BYRBKE-%

—HEZRERE
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Investment Properties

REWE

Group's Approx. GFA
Project Location Interest  Description (sqm) Lease Term
BAREER
b= b AEEEE KB (FEX) BHEH
China South City Shenzhen No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100%  Phase | trade centres 167,100  Medium Term Lease
RYEE Pinghu, Longgang District, —BREH0 HERY
Shenzhen, China
RERYIHEEE T Phase | commercial and other
EBMRE-F ancillary facilities
—HARREMERER K
- Business centres 22,400 Medium Term Lease
- BHRL HERY
- Hotel properties 32,500 Medium Term Lease
-BENE RERY
Phase Il trade centres 446,300  Medium Term Lease
ZBRGRD HERY

Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities

“HEEREMRERE

- Office tower 15,100  Medium Term Lease
N - RERY

- Shopping plaza 15,200 Medium Term Lease
-®% RERY

Phase IIl trade centres 264,500  Medium Term Lease
ZHRSRL RERY

Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities

“HEERAGRERE

- Office tower 4,400 Medium Term Lease
N - RERY
- Warehouse 136,700  Medium Term Lease
-Ef RERY
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HEAS (E)

Investment Properties

REWE

Project

EH

Location

BB

Group's
Interest

FEEER

Description

RE

Approx. GFA
(sqm)
BREREEE
(FAK)

Lease Term

ROER

China South City Nanchang
CEELT:

China South City Nanning
HEERN

China South City Xi'an
AR EBH

China South City Harbin
REEZEE

China South City Zhengzhou
Mz

China South City Hefei
Az

China South City Chongging
EBERY

No. 1 Huanan Avenue,
Honggutan New District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China
HEIRAmEMAAENE
ERARE-F

No. 56 Shajing Avenue,
Jiangnan District, Nanning City,
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, China
HEERLEEREEED
THED HRES6H

No. 8, Port Avenue, Xi‘an
International Trade and Logistics
Park, Xi‘an City,

Shaanxi Province,

China

HERERERD
ARERAEKR

A ESHR

Tuanjie Town, Daowai District,
Harbin City,

Heilongjiang Province,

China
TEREIERBETEIE
E&HE

Longhu Town, Xinzheng City,
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province,
China
FRAEES N M
EE

Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial
Park, Feixi County of Hefei City,
Auhui Province, China

PEZHEAETEAKEIZE

ZEXRE

No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue,
Nanpeng, Banan District,
Chongging Municipality, China
TEEETEER
HZRARE-T

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Phase | trade centres

—H2HP0

Phase | trade centres and offices

~HRGPLNBTFE

Phase | trade centres

—H2ZP0

Phase | trade centres and
multi purpose properties

—HRFPOANERENE

Phase | trade centres

—H2ZP0

Phase | trade centres and
warehouse

—HRHPONE R

Phase | trade centres

—HRHHDL

247,000

719,700

439,500

527,200

838,700

1,144,900

509,500

Medium Term Lease

PHRD

Medium Term Lease

FHRY

Medium Term Lease

FHRD

Medium Term Lease

FHRY

Medium Term Lease

FHRD

Medium Term Lease

PERD

Medium Term Lease

)
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS (&)

Properties under Development — with Land Use Rights Certificates

BREPYE-BERIERERS

Properties Estimated
Group's ~ Approx. land  Total Planned under completion
Project/Location Interest area® GFA®  Description Development  Stage of completion calendar year
(sqm) (sqm) (sqm)
Bt a4
BE/%% rEERR HEY  BEEEY AF RRONE THER BHRIEE
(FH %) (FH %) (F1K)
China South City Shenzhen 100% 1,023,500 2707300 a.  Trade centres, warehouse and other 248,800 Foundation work and 2022-2023
FlEgH ancillary faclties superstructure in progress
No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, Pinghu; RARL BRREMEERE WETRREETIREAG
Longgang District, Shenzhen, China
rERNTEEETH b Remaining portions - Planning -
FERE-H BIES R
China South City Nanchang 100% 1,807,800 4794400 a.  Trade centres, residential, commercial, 710,700  Foundation work and 2021-2022
EEEL L) warehouse and other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1, Huanan Avenue, HElHE B ARREL WEIRREETIRENS
Honggutan New District, RERE
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China b, Remaining portions - Planning -
PEIREEETAARNE BTHA s
FERE-H
China South City Nanning 100% 890,000 2,480,000 a  Trade centres, warehouse and other 154,800  Foundation work and 2022-2023
HEEEY ancilary facilties superstructure in progress
No. 56, Shajing Avenue, Jiangnan RARL - BRREREERS WETRREETIREAG
District, Nanning City, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, China b, Remaining portions - Planning -
HEEE A RERET BrES R
THEDH RE56%
China South City Xi‘an 100% 1,926,000 4676600 a.  Trade centres, commercial, warehouse 984,800  Foundation work and 2021-2022
EREEY and other ancillary facities superstructure in progress
No.8, Port Avenue, Xi'an International 5L BE ERREGRERE WEIRREETIRENS
Trade and Logistics Park, Xi‘an City,
Shaanxi Province, China b, Remaining portions - Planning -
TERESRRTERERERE BTE5 R
BBABES
China South City Harbin 100% 2,386,700 5935600 a.  Trade centres, residential, commercial, 981,800  Foundation work and 2021-2022
REEEE hotels, warehouse and other ancillary superstructure in progress
Tuanjie Town, Daowai District, facllities WEIRREETIRENS
Harbin City, Hellongjiang Province, China RAfLEE BEEE BRR
FEERTARBATENREEE HPRERH
b, Remaining portions - Planning -
BTH5 R
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS (E)

Properties under Development — with Land Use Rights Certificates

BREPYE-BERIERERS

Properties Estimated
Group's ~ Approx. land  Total Planned under completion
Project/Location Interest area® GFA®  Description Development  Stage of completion calendar year
(sqm) (sqm) (sqm)
Bt Rua
BR/ %Y rEEER mEY  BEARY AR RETUE THER B RIEE
(FHX) (FHX) (FHK)
6. China South City Zhengzhou 100% 3,684,200 10,192,200 a.  Trade centres, residential, commercial, 2,398,700  Foundation work and 2021-2022
BHEEE warehouse and other ancillary facilties superstructure in progress
Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, ReRLEE BE AERAR WETRREETIREAH
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, RERI
China
HETREOMTHED b Remaining portions - Planning -
Eig BTH2 HElP
1. China South City Hefei 100% 2,450,100 5993000 a.  Trade centres, residential, commercial, 721,500  Foundation work and 2021-2022
AREDY warehouse and other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial Park, Re%LHE BEAEREH WEIRR FEIRETH
Feixi County of Hefei City, Auhui Province, RERH
China
HERYEEETRE b Remaining portions - Planning -
KEIXRZEAE BTH2 HElP
8. China South City Chongging 100% 2,751,400 6,501,800 a.  Trade centres, residential, commercial, 649,600  Foundation work and 2021-2022
ERERY warehouse and other ancillary facilties superstructure in progress
No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue, Nanpeng, RPRL-ET BF RERAM WEIRR FEIRETH
Banan District, Chongging RERI
Municipality, China
FEEETEREAYRANE T b Remaining portions - Planning -
BTE5 HElP
Notes: B 5 -
(1 Represents the land area acquired by the Group as at 31 March 2021. (1) AREANEER2021F3A3NMBEEEZ Lib -
(2) Represents the planned GFA for the land acquired including completed  (2) REEBESZTHHNEEEZEEBELEERIY

properties and properties under development. The actual GFA to be built

may vary subsequently according to needs of the Group.
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FIVE YEARS’' FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEHE

Summary of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBRERME
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3AMNALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTEL FEL FiET FTEL
RESULTS £
Revenue N 11,309,304 9,887,654 10,274,255 9,405,370 7,838,510
Gross Profit EF 4,944,205 4,522,647 4,439,594 4,069,179 3,510,145
Profit before tax TR 7R 3,402,087 4,470,759 5,376,775 6,783,465 6,592,254
Income tax expenses FERAY (986,958) (1,842,611) (2,133,661) (2,281,133) (2,269,292)
Profit for the year REEHE 2,415,129 2,628,148 3,243,114 4,502,332 4,322,962
Attributable to: TH &7 el
Owners of the parent BRAEEA 2,415,498 2,633,141 3,250,962 4,511,679 4,322,626
Non-controlling interests FERER (369) (4,993) (7,848) (9,347) 336
Core net profit attributable to BRRABEARKER
owners of the parent* 3 1,885,622 1,553,250 1,749,575 1,608,548 1,351,212
Earnings per share BERSAREER
attributable to ordinary BEBEAZ
equity holders BREF
of the parent
Basic HA HK29.85 cents HK32.47 cents HK40.33 cents  HK56.35 cents  HK53.99 cents
A&l A gl gl A
Diluted g HK29.85 cents  HK32.47 cents HK40.33 cents  HK56.19 cents  HK53.96 cents
Bl Al gl pll] Al
Summary of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BEUBERAEBE
As at 31 March
R3A318
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERL TAEL FTAEL FAEL TAEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
Non-current assets ERBEE 64,328,859 59,080,150 59,867,531 59,267,098 51,889,666
Current assets MBEE 56,214,071 54,353,902 53,239,431 52,278,868 37,086,167
Total assets BERAE 120,542,930 113,434,052 113,106,962 111,545,966 88,975,833
Current liabilities RBEE 47,786,203 50,299,050 48,873,586 43,910,048 29,601,179
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 31,460,177 28,252,482 28,083,549 31,235,164 30,895,263
Total liabilities BEEGE 79,246,380 78,551,532 76,957,135 75,145,212 60,496,442
Equity attributable to owners of ~ B 2RAAIEAEA
parent [EfG 2 41,278,881 34,832,726 35,990,593 36,218,344 28,298,254
Non-controlling interests e G 17,669 49,794 159,234 182,410 181,137
Total equity EmBE 41,296,550 34,882,520 36,149,827 36,400,754 28,479,391

Mainly represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent *
excluding fair value gains on investment properties and certain tax
effects, impairment of goodwill, impairment loss of available-for-sale

investments and loss on redemption of senior notes, etc.

TERRRAEENELTERERETRBEY
B BHERE THOEESRERERENMERE
ERBE2ERENQGARESAREFFNE -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT

ESRTEEEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 60, is our Chairman and an Executive
Director. He is a co-founder of our Group and has been a Director
since 2 August 2002. He acted as Co-Chairman of the Group from
30 September 2009 until he was re-designated as Chairman of the
Group on 25 July 2017. He is primarily responsible for formulating
the overall strategies and assessing the performance of the Group
as well as providing leadership for the Board. He has more than 38
years of management experience in the manufacturing, wholesale
and distribution businesses. Mr. Cheng has been awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 1997” from the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and the Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur
Award 2008 from the China Enterprise Confederation and the China
Enterprise Directors Association. Mr. Cheng is the vice chairman of
the China Chamber of International Commerce, a member of the 10th
and a standing member of the 11th Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a member of the 3rd, the 4th and the 5th Shenzhen
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Mr. Cheng is also presently a standing member of the China Enterprise
Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors Association, vice
president of the China Federation of Logistics and Purchasing, vice
president of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region Federation
of Industry and Commerce, vice president of the Guangxi Overseas
Friendship Association, vice president of the China Chamber of
International Commerce Shenzhen, honorary chairman of the Shenzhen
Logistics and Supply Chain Management Association, vice chairman of
the Federation of Shenzhen Industries, honorary life president of the
Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited and member
of the Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Cheng is the
father of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman, an Executive Director, and a
younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, a Non-Executive Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTEEEEBRE(A)

Mr. ZHAO Lidong, aged 50, is our Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Zhao joined the Group as the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group in November 2018, and he has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 1 February 2019. He is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Group.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Dalian University in 1992 with a Diploma
in Thermal Power Engineering and graduated from Dalian University
of Technology in 1999 with a Bachelor degree in Computer and
Applications. Mr. Zhao obtained the qualification of Heating and
Ventilation Engineer in November 2000. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhao was the president of China Glorious City Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd. from April 2017 to November 2018, the president of =z (FE])
ABR/A7] (Hua Dong (China) Co. Ltd.*) from September 2016 to April
2017. During the period of November 2011 to September 2016, Mr.
Zhao worked with Wuzhou International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1369) as executive
director and executive president. During the period from 2003 to
2011, Mr. Zhao served as a deputy general manager of Wuhan Wanda
Plaza Commercial Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Wanda Plaza
Commercial Management Co., Ltd., and a general manager of property
management department, construction department and preparatory
department of EESEEFHEEE AR AR (Wanda Group Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.*), etc. respectively.

Ms. GENG Mei, aged 50, is our Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer. Ms. Geng joined the Group as the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group since 1 April 2021, and she has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group with effect from 20 April 2021. She is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Group to
achieve the long-term development goals of the Group. Ms. Geng has
more than 20 years of experience in the operation and management
of real estate companies. Ms. Geng studied for an EMBA at Renmin
University of China. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Geng served
as a cadre of the International Hotel Youth League Committee of
the National Tourism Administration*, the vice president of Beijing
Xinhengji Group*, the vice president of Beijing Huahan Group*, the
managing director of the Northern Region of Ping An Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. and the managing director of Headquarters Construction and
Operations Centre of Ping An Real Estate Co., Ltd.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Ms. CHENG Ka Man Carman, aged 32, has been an Executive
Director since 4 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for the
administration and operations of the Group. Ms. Cheng graduated
from the University of London with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Financial and Business Economics. She also obtained a Master of
Science degree in Management from the Imperial College London
and a Master of Philosophy degree in Real Estate Finance from the
University of Cambridge. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng was
an executive director of Man Sang International Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock
code: 938). She had also worked in a leading investment firm in Asia.
Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the Chairman
and Executive Director and the niece of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, a Non-
Executive Director.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 69, is a Non-Executive Director. He has
been a Director since 30 April 2010 and is primarily responsible for
advising on the formulation of the Group’s general business models,
development strategies and the resolution of major issues. Mr. Cheng
has over 38 years of experience in manufacturing, wholesale and
distribution businesses. Mr. Cheng is the chairman of Hong Kong
Overseas Puning Sheshan Clansmen Association and the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Association of Jie Yang Federation
of Returned Overseas Chinese Limited. He was a board member of the
Zhanjiang Ocean University, China and a general committee member of
the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association. Mr. Cheng is an
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the Chairman and Executive
Director and is an uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman, an Executive
Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Mr. LIN Ching Hua, aged 48, has been a Non-Executive Director
since 28 June 2014. He is primarily responsible for advising on the
formulation of the Group’s general business models, development
strategies and the resolution of major issues. Mr. Lin joined Tencent
Group which includes Tencent Holdings Limited (it is listed on the
Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 700)
and its subsidiaries in April 2013. He is currently senior vice president
of Tencent Group, and leads strategy development, advertising and
marketing services and smart retail. Before joining Tencent, Mr. Lin
was a partner at McKinsey & Company and office manager of Taiwan
for 12 years, serving mainly clients in TMT sector. Prior to McKinsey,
Mr. Lin worked at Anderson Business Consulting as a consultant. He
received his MBA degree from Harvard Business School in 2001.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwan Yuen Andrew, G8M, GBS, JP, aged 70, has been
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 4 September 2009. He
has more than 41 years of management experience in the textile
manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses. Mr. Leung
was elected as the President of the Sixth Legislative Council of Hong
Kong on 12 October 2016 and a member of the Industrial (First)
Functional Constituency of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, he
is also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Leung is currently the honorary
chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong, the honorary president
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, a fellow member of the
Textiles Institute as well as the Clothing and Footwear Institute in the
United Kingdom. He was a council member of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. In addition, Mr. Leung is an independent non-
executive director of Wharf Real Estate Investment Company Limited
(stock code: 1997) and Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 440), both are companies listed on the Main Board of The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung was an independent non-executive
director of Harbour Centre Development Limited (stock code: 51) until
his resignation effective from 4 May 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director since 4 September 2009. Mr. Li has more than 43 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Li graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau (currently known as the
University of Macau). He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li is currently a standing member
of Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the honorary president and director of Hong
Kong Business Accountants Association, the chairman of the Council
of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited, a member of China
Overseas Friendship Association, the secretary of the Financial and
Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association and Advisor of Management Accounting of
the Ministry of Finance, PRC. Mr. Li is an independent non-executive
director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (“SZ Investment”), Hans
Energy Company Limited (“Hans”) and Centenary United Holdings
Limited (“Centenary United”). SZ Investment, Hans and Centenary
United are listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock codes: 604, 554 and 1959 respectively). Mr. Li was an executive
director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited, an executive
director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (stock code: 124) and a
non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code:
270) until his resignation effective from 27 June 2019, 31 December
2019, 20 February 2020 and 28 March 2020 respectively. Mr. Li had
worked for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (stock
code: 12).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung Stephen, /A, aged 74, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 11 April 2011. Mr. Hui has over 50 years
of experience in the securities and investment industry. He served as a
council member and vice chairman of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, a Government appointed independent
non-executive director and a member of the Listing Committee of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of
the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform and an appointed member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation
Panel A, a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and a member
of Government “Appointees” (independent member) of the Appeal
Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong throughout the
years. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2004 and
was also appointed as a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a senior fellow member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. Mr. Hui also serves as a non-executive director of Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (stock code: 590) and an independent
non-executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited
(formerly known as Jiuzhou Development Company Limited) (stock
code: 908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212),
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (formerly
known as Frasers Property (China) Limited) (stock code: 535), SINOPEC
Engineering (Group) Co., Limited (stock code: 2386), Agile Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Agile Property Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 3383) and FSE Services Group Limited (formerly known
as FSE Engineering Holdings Limited) (stock code: 331), of which the
shares are listed on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Key Management

Mr. CHAN Mau Cheong Bryan, aged 42, has been appointed as
the Group’s Chief Financial Officer since 15 November 2019 and also
serves as Company Secretary with effect from 1 February 2021. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the overall financial management of the Group,
establishing and maintaining investor relations and executing the
Group's capital market financing, mergers and acquisitions, business
cooperation projects and company secretarial duties. Mr. Chan has
more than 19 years of experience in financial management, specializing
in auditing, accounting, financial due diligence and investments
management. Mr. Chan graduated from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a first class honours degree in Bachelor of Business
Administration. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer
of a Hong Kong based family office. Mr. Chan had worked in Big 4
international accounting firms, Arthur Andersen & Co. Hong Kong,
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. and PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultants
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch for about 15 years.

Mr. YU Mingming, aged 42, is the Group’s Vice President. Mr. Yu
joined our Group in June 2017 as the General Manager of Qianlong
Logistics Group Limited, and was appointed as the Group’s Vice
President in June 2021. He assists in overall operation of the Group and
is responsible for the overall operation and management of Qianlong
Logistics Group Limited. Mr. Yu graduated from Shanghai Maritime
University with a Bachelor degree in Logistics Management and
subsequently graduated from the Economics and Management School
of Wuhan University with an EMBA degree. Mr. Yu was qualified as a
Senior Logistician by #i1b& A &R &R EEE (Hubei Provincial
Department of Human Resources and Social Security*) in 2016. Mr.
Yu has extensive experience in investment, operation and management
of logistics parks. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu was the general
manager of Guangzhou branch company of China Merchants Logistics
Group Limited and an assistant to the general manager of China
Merchants Logistics Group Limited (a subsidiary of China Merchants
Group Limited which is a state-owned backbone enterprise directly
administered by the central government of China with its headoffice
based in Hong Kong).

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERFTEEEERE (#)

Mr. CHEN Weiguo, aged 53, is the Business Management Division’s
President. Mr. Chen joined our Group as the General Manager of CSC
Nanning in February 2018. In December 2018, he was appointed as
the Business Management Division’s Executive Vice President, and was
then appointed as the President of the Business Management Division
in April 2020, responsible for merchants recruitment, operation and
property management. Mr. Chen graduated from the Chemistry
Department, Hanshan Normal University. Mr. Chen has extensive
experience in merchants recruitment and management in the wholesale
market. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked as managing
director of China Pearls and Jewellery International City Co., Ltd. (a
subsidiary of Man Sang International Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 938). He
had also worked for Man Hing Industry Development (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. QIU Wen, aged 48, is the Investment Development Division’s
Executive Vice President. Mr. Qiu joined our Group in July 2016
and served as the General Manager of CSC Shenzhen. He was
the Investment Development Division's Vice President in December
2018, and was then appointed as the Executive Vice President in
June 2019, responsible for the operation and management of the
Investment Development Division. Mr. Qiu has extensive experience in
construction management, cost control, real estate sales planning and
corporate management. Mr. Qiu graduated from the Industrial and
Civil Architecture College of Huanghe S&T University, and obtained
an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from Lingnan
(University) College. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qiu was a general
manager of Guangzhou region of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 754). He also worked in Guangdong
Pearl River Engineering General Contractor Limited*, and served as a
deputy general manager of Beijing region in Zhujiang Investment Co.,
Ltd*, and a general manager of Beijing office in Guangdong Han Jian
Construction & Installing Engineering Co., Ltd.

*  For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Board hereby presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are developing and operating
large-scale integrated logistics and trade centres in China, and has
developed and been operating eight projects located in Shenzhen,
Nanning, Nanchang, Xi‘an, Harbin, Zhengzhou, Hefei and Chongging.
Adhering to its “trade and logistics+” model and focusing on real
business, China South City endeavors to provide an online-and-
offline combined logistics and trade integrated ecosystem for SMEs.
Throughout the years, the Group has evolved a diversified and flexible
business model. As the projects in various places are becoming
mature, China South City has actively been adding new industries and
businesses in the respect of innovation and technology on these project
sites, apart from continuously strengthening the provision and services
on residential units, multi-purpose commercial properties, office
buildings, commercial complexes, property management, conference
and exhibition facilities, warehousing and logistics, outlets and financial
services. The Group is striving towards the world-class integrated
trade and logistics centre, digital centre, innovation centre and living
centre, and aiming to “Integrating Industries into the Projects, Building
Beautiful New 'City’ Conducive to Work and Life”.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out under Management Discussion and Analysis as well as in note 1
to the financial statements of this annual report respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE#E)

Results and Dividends

The Group's results for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out under Chairman Statement as well as in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 127 to 260 of this annual report respectively.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share in respect of FY2020/21 (FY2019/20: HK3.0 cents). Subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Tuesday, 28 September 2021.
The proposed final dividend will be distributed around Friday, 31
December 2021 to eligible Shareholders.

Closure of Register of Members
The register of members of the Company will be closed for the
following periods:

(@)  For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on
Tuesday, 28 September 2021, the register of members of the
Company will be closed on Thursday, 23 September 2021 to
Tuesday, 28 September 2021, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, Shareholders shall
lodge all transfer documents for registration with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 21 September 2021.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are qualified for the final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed on Tuesday, 5 October 2021 to
Friday, 8 October 2021, both days inclusive. The ex-dividend
date will be on Thursday, 30 September 2021. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, Shareholders shall lodge all
transfer documents for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 4 October 2021. The proposed final dividend, subject
to the approval of Shareholders at the AGM, will be distributed
around Friday, 31 December 2021 to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 8 October 2021.
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Business Overview

The business overview of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion
and Analysis and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
this annual report.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Details of the reserves are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” and in note 46 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 March
2021, calculated in accordance with Part 6 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), was
approximately HK$351.1 million (31 March 2020: HK$617.1 million), of
which HK$242.8 million (31 March 2020: HK$242.8 million), subject to
the adjustment with the number of shares which may be allotted after
the date of this report but before the date of book close, has been
proposed as final dividend for the fiscal year under review. Details are
disclosed in notes 11 and 46 to the financial statements.

Debt Securities

Details of the outstanding senior notes issued by the Company during
the Year are disclosed in the section headed “Issuance of Notes” and
note 30 to the financial statements.

Details of the outstanding medium-term notes and domestic
company bonds issued by China South International, a subsidiary of
the Company during the Year are disclosed in the section headed
“Issuance of Notes” and notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations totaling
approximately HK$2.51 million (FY2019/20: HK$5.18 million) to various

charitable organizations.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021

are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Di

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

rectors

Executive Directors*

Mr
Mr

. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman)

. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer)
. Geng Mei (Chief Operating Officer)

. Wu Guangquan

. Cheng Ka Man Carman

Non-Executive Directors

Mr
Mr

. Cheng Tai Po
. Lin Ching Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors**

Mr
Mr.
Mr
Mr

. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew
. Li Wai Keung

. Hui Chiu Chung

. Yung Wing Ki Samuel

Notes:

* %

Mr. Wu Guangquan resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1

February 2021.

Ms. Geng Mei has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 20 April 2021 and 1

April 2021 respectively.

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director
and resigned as a member of Audit Committee of the Company,
thereupon, and has been appointed as Honourable Advisor of the Group

with effect from 22 September 2020.
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The Company’s Articles provide rotation and re-election for all
Directors. In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation. The Articles also provide that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible to offer for re-election, and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible to offer for re-election.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

The list of names of all Directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company up to the date of this report is available
on the Company’s website.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into service contract
with the Company while each of the Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years, subject
to the retirement by rotation and re-election requirements under the
Company’s Articles. The service contract and the letter of appointment
may be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance
None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any significant contract to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its
holding companies was a party during the Year or as at 31 March
2021.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Biographical Information of Directors and Key
Management

The biographical information of the Directors and Key Management
of the Company is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Key Management” on pages 66 to 73 of this annual
report.

Enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition
Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 4 September 2009
("Non-Competition Undertaking”) entered into by Mr. Cheng Chung
Hing, he has undertaken with the Company (for itself and on behalf
of each other member of the Group) that so long as the Company is
listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange and so
long as:

o in respect of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, he remains as the
controlling shareholder or a director of the Company;

that he shall not, and shall procure his associates not to, either alone
or jointly with any other person or entity, or for any other person, firm
or company, or as principal, partner, director, employee, consultant
or agent through any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual arrangement, be engaged, invested, or otherwise
involved, whether as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent
or otherwise, directly or indirectly, in the carrying on of any business
in any form or manner in China that is in competition or is likely to be
in competition, directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
unless those business opportunities have been first offered to the
Group upon terms of which are fair and reasonable and the Board
has declined such opportunities, in accordance with the provisions
of the Non-Competition Undertaking, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing or his
respective associates may pursue such opportunities.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing confirming his compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the Year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the fiscal year ended 31
March 2021 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed above, the Company has received confirmations from
all Directors that none of them had engaged or were interested in any
business which were in competition or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Securities

As at 31 March 2021 the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were

as follows:

Long Position in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company
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Number of Shares held
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Approximate

percentage of

the Company’s

Corporate Personal Family Share total number of

Name of Directors Class of Shares interest interest interest Options Total issued Shares®

BERR

BRT

R4 48 8

ESn B E5 ARRE  BARE  REEE  BRE g% BOESHLY

Cheng Chung Hing Ordinary Shares 2,306,553,791 - - - 2,306,553,791 28.50%
/N il

Cheng Tai Po Ordinary Shares 588,984,145% 4,936,000 - - 593,920,145 7.33%
HBRE TRK

Zhao Lidong Share Options - - - 18,000,000% 18,000,000 0.22%
HUR BE

Cheng Ka Man Carman Share Options - - - 7,800,000 7,800,000 0.09%
) B

Li Wai Keung Share Options - - - 2,000,000® 2,000,000 0.02%
TR B

Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew  Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
REE B E

Hui Chiu Chung Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
TR B
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Notes:

() Mr. Cheng Chung Hing is interested in 100% of the issued share
capital of Accurate Gain Developments Limited which in turn holds
2,306,553,791 Shares and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
aforesaid 2,306,553,791 Shares. He is the father of Ms. Cheng Ka Man
Carman and the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po.

(2) Mr. Cheng Tai Po is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Proficient Success Limited which in turn holds 588,984,145 Shares and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the aforesaid 588,984,145 Shares.
Mr. Cheng Tai Po is the elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and
the uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman.

(3) The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Leung Kwan
Yuen Andrew, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung pursuant to
the Company’s 2009 Share Option Scheme adopted on 4 September
2009. Further details of the 2009 Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

(4) The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Zhao Lidong
and Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman pursuant to the Company’s 2019 Share
Option Scheme adopted on 13 September 2019. Further details of the
2019 Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this report.

(5) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,091,892,848
Shares issued as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be: (i) notified to the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executives were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or (i) notified to the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
As at 31 March 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executives of the Company) had
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

#2021938318  HEFHA - LTAL(EH%
ARTEE(THA BB KA 548 B R 1) o
B SRR S (R T IR IR 5 B 1 XV
BERISBEXANARTDRE - RAAKR
ABEESR DG F3BMETHFENER
1 04 35

Long Position in the Shares RBRBFHER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Shares or total number

underlying of issued

Name Nature of interest Shares held Shares®

T #5 BR 15 HEAFE

HEE BORGAY

nE BB EanE ROBE  BOEI L

Accurate Gain Developments Limited Beneficial owner 2,306,553,7910 28.50%
EnEAA

Tencent Holdings Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 955,936,666 11.81%

BAZERAER AT AR AE AR HIE B R &

THL H Limited Beneficial owner 955,936,666? 11.81%
EnEAA

Proficient Success Limited Beneficial owner 588,984,1453 7.27%
EmfEAA

Notes:

() Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Accurate Gain Developments Limited.

(2) THL H Limited is wholly owned by Tencent Holdings Limited.

(3) Mr. Cheng Tai Po owns 100% of the issued share capital of Proficient
Success Limited.

(4) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,091,892,848
Shares issued as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, to the knowledge of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, no other person
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Information on Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 4 September
2009 became effective on 30 September 2009 and expired on 29
September 2019 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”). In light of the
expiration of the 2009 Share Option Scheme, a new share option
scheme was adopted by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 September 2019, after which the
Company obtained a conditional listing approval for such new share
option scheme from The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “2019 Share
Option Scheme”).

No options can further be granted under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme which expired on 13 September 2019. However, the
outstanding 140,495,000 share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2009 Share Option Scheme remain valid and
exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 1.73% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021.

2009 Share Option Scheme
The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme were summarized
as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to provide
incentives to eligible persons for their contribution to the
Company and to enable the Company to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the

Group.

2. The Board may at its discretion grant options to Directors,
employees, officers, agents, consultants or representatives of the
Group.

3. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise

of all share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of Shares in respect
of options which granted under the Share Option Scheme
was not permitted to exceed 10% in nominal amount of the
issued Shares as at the date of commencement of the listing of
Shares on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange unless with the prior
approval from the Shareholders. The Share Option Scheme limit
was refreshed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 21 August 2013.
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The total number of Shares issued upon the exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant should
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to approval of the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised would
be determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than 10 years after
grant.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options
is HK$1.

The exercise price in relation to each share option would be
determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion and
should not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares on the date of grant.
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The table below summarized the details of movements in the share  AZANFE AR E2009F B E T2 H B REY
options granted pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme during ZBFBERENR TR ZA:
the Year:

Number of Share Options

BREZE
As at As at  Exercise
Date of 1 April Cancelled/ 31 March Price
Name Grant 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2021 HK$ Exercisable Period
120205 g/ w021E  THEE
£1 REAS 4818 BERE BfTE x¥ 3A31R BT TS
Directors
Ez
Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
2EE 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Li Wai Keung 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
TER 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Hui Chiu Chung 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
FTERH 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Advisers 13/1/2016" 39,995,000 - - (39,995,000) - 1528 13/1/2016-12/1/2021
B 39,995,000 - - - 39,995,000 1528 13/1/2017-12/1/2022
3/7/2017% 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 152 3/7/2017-2/7/2022
40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 152 3/7/2018-2/7/2023
13/4/2018® 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Employees 22/8/2016 11,250,000 - - (7000,000) 4,250,000 175 22/8/2016-21/8/2021
&8 14,500,000 - - (8,250,000) 6,250,000 175 22/8/2017-21/8/2022
3,250,000 - - (1,250,000 2,000,000 175 22/8/2018-21/8/2023
13/4/2018 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - 181 13/4/2020-12/4/2025
201,990,000 - - (61,495,000) 140,495,000
Notes: B =

1. Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen resigned as Vice Chairman of the Group 1. BEMEEB200F4AHRETEEEEFEHR
and Executive Director and has been appointed as Senior Adviser of the WITEE UEZAALAEEZERERM -
Group with effect from 1 April 2020.

2. Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director 2. AXKEEAB2020F98 228 B EBLIERITE
and has been appointed as Honourable Adviser of the Group with effect F O UWEZEARAAEZRERER -
from 22 September 2020.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 35 to the 3. B MR st Bl R I A B IS SR R M FE35 o
financial statements.
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2019 Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the 2019 Share Option Scheme are summarized

as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
to eligible participants to contribute to the Company, and to
enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Board may at its discretion grant options to Directors
(including executive and non-executive Directors), employees,
officers, agents or consultants of the Company or any subsidiary.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of Shares in respect of options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the issued Shares on adoption date that is 810,722,884
Shares. The maximum number of the Shares available for issue
upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme is 747,422,884 Shares, representing
approximately 9.23% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2021.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue
of the Company as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval of the
Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than 10 years after
grant.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options
is HK$1.
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7. The exercise price in relation to each share option will be 7. BZA2HBMEBERFTSBEBRENTEE

determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion and shall ERFERTISEENRSE (LA
be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares as (WEREXER)BABIMEHREXRFAT
stated in the daily quotation sheets of The Hong Kong Stock AR DU TE Rb)EERE LB A R E
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day; EXAEBBHMIMEARERMIARKR D
and (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the FHWTE -

daily quotation sheets of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

8. No further options will be granted under the Share Option 8. RERETIEHRE THE-—FTERHE

Scheme after the date of expiration. In respect of the options BeaE - BIBERETEINEERRT - RE
granted and accepted prior to the date of expiration and not MEAE LW EEAEERERITEZ
then exercised, they shall continue to be valid and exercisable EREBDAG R RAITE -

subject to and in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
The table below summarized the details of movements in the share  RZN4F Z N1 1520194 B8 AX 4 51 20 3% ) B IR #E &Y

options granted pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme during ZBFBERBENTERZA:
the Year:

Number of Share Options

BREHA
As at As at  Exercise
Date of 1 April Cancelled/ 31 March Price
Name Grant 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2021 HK$ Exercisable Period
R20206 BE#/  R0NFE  HEE
£ REBH 418 E&H BT P34 3A31A B s
Directors
£z
Zhao Lidong 71212020 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 712/2021-6/2/2025
WIR 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 712/2022-6/2/2025
6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 7/2/2023-6/2/2025
Cheng Ka Man Carman 7/2/2020 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 7/2/2021-6/2/2025
i 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 7/2/2022-6/2/2025
2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 712/2023-6/2/2025
Employees 71212020 16,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 12,500,000 1.00 7/2/2021-6/2/2025
E& 16,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 12,500,000 1.00 712/2022-6/2/2025
16,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 12,500,000 1.00 7/2/2023-6/2/2025
73,800,000 - - (10,500,000) 63,300,000
Notes: Bt 5% -
1. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 35 to the 1. REREG BN FBE RN M RE M35 -

financial statements.
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Directors’ Debt
Securities

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Securities” and “Information on Share Options”
in this report and in note 35 to the financial statements, at no time

during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party

Rights to Acquire Shares or

to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
During the Year, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company
repurchased and cancelled part of the senior notes of the Company
from the open market. Details are set out in the section headed
“Senior Notes” and note 30 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and notes to the financial statements, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Bank Borrowings
Details of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 March 2021 are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest customers were less
than 10% of the Group's total revenue. The aggregate purchases from
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
40% (FY2019/20: 44%) of the Group’'s total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 12%
(FY2019/20: 13%) of the Group's total purchases for the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2021.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholders which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
total number of issued Shares has any interests in the Group's five
largest suppliers or customers.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance. Detailed information on the Company's corporate
governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report as contained in this annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility in
community affairs, environmental protection and corporate governance
during its business operation in order to achieve its sustainable
development. The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Report is set out in this annual report.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Five Year’s Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five fiscal years is set out on page 65 of this annual report.

Management Contract

During the Year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, the Directors are not aware
of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of this
Report.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young
who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Messrs. Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHENG CHUNG HING
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CREREE

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving
high standard of corporate governance to enhance the corporate
performance accountability and is committed to doing so. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the
year, save and except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 provides that Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors are equal board members,
should attend general meetings of the Company. During the Year, one
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company was unable to
attend the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 22
September 2020 as he had other prior business engagement.

The Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprises eight Directors, including
three Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Ms. Geng Mei has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 20 April 2021 and 1
April 2021 respectively. Since then, the Board comprises nine Directors,
including four Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Key Management”
on pages 66 to 73 of this annual report.

Independent Non-Executive Director

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors and representing at least one-third of the board with at
least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise.

During the Year, all existing Independent Non-Executive Directors have
made an annual confirmation of independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that each of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors be independent.
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EEEREHS (H)

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Group to the Executive Directors and key senior
management within the control and authority framework set by the
Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees are set
out in this annual report.

Relationship between Directors

Mr. Cheng Tai Po is an elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and
the uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman, whereas Ms. Cheng Ka Man
Carman is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of Directors since the publication of
the 2020/21 interim report up to the date of this annual report is set
out below pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

° Mr. Wu Guangquan resigned as Executive Director with effect
from 1 February 2021.

o Ms. Geng Mei has been appointed as Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 20 April
2021 and 1 April 2021 respectively.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the relevant
period of the fiscal year ended 31 March 2021. Employees who are,
or likely to be, in possession of unpublished price sensitive information
in relation to the Company or its Shares are required to prohibit from
dealing in shares of the Company during the black-out period.

AeRBE
ExgnAfIEARENBRERBRLERERE
VERATEERTIESREBAEEEFER
EREGHENBREERANRERNEENAEE
fEe i EFRTHETEEZRTEREZE
T VHZEERREREZBE - 2FLREBeWHE
—HHBERAFEA -

HEZNEE
BABEERBLRELENBR  REFXLL
MAR  MBHEXLTABRELENLS -

BEEXxEREH
B4 Em R B $13.51B(1) 1§ - 7R2020/217 Bi R &
TG EARFRAGNESTEREHHIMT

. RNEREB2021F2 B RBEEHTE
= .

. BigZ £ plE2021F4820H K 202164 5
1HEZTARTTESREEEEHLH -

BTESETESREZBRETA

AABIERMIZESTR  (EBRRAEBHETHE
ERXPMIZE - ARBIEMEEESEHAES
HiE o BEEREZE2021F3A318 It B FEAE
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EEERRS (H)

Board Meetings

During the Year, four Board meetings were convened by the Company.

ExEE=

RAFER  ARAAAHOREEE S -

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings was as follows: EERNESHEBEROT:
Number of
Attendance/
meeting held®
b BT
Directors BE=x BB AHO
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) B FN B 5 A () 4/4
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer) MY R E(TTHAZ) 4/4
Mr. Wu Guangquan(” RHIEFAED 2/3
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman B 5=+ 4/4
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cheng Tai Po 8K 5 A 4/4
Mr. Lin Ching Hua IR EE L A 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUkHITES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REESRE 4/4
Mr. Li Wai Keung FEBEL 4/4
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BT 4/4
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel® AKELED 2/2

Notes:

CES

(1) Mr. Wu Guangquan resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1 (1)

February 2021.

(2) Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director 2)

and has been appointed as Honourable Advisor of the Group with effect

from 22 September 2020.

(3) The attendance figure represents actual attendance and the number of 3)

meetings such director is entitled to attend.

The Directors are provided with agenda and Board meeting materials
related to the agenda before the meeting. They can access to the
senior management and the company secretary of the Company at

all time and, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional & &

advice at the Company’s expense.
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EEEREHS (H)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into service contract
with the Company while each of the Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’s Articles provide retirement by rotation and re-election
for all Directors. In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation. The Articles also provide that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall hold office only
until conclusion of the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election, and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election/election. Accordingly,
four Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Ching Hua, Mr. Li Wai Keung, Mr. Hui
Chiu Chung and Ms. Geng Mei will retire from office and are eligible
to offer themselves for re-election/election at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. During the Year,
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing was the Chairman of the Company and he
provided leadership for the Board and ensured the proper and effective
functioning of the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities,
while Mr. Zhao Lidong was accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the coordination of
overall business operations of the Group.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to handle particular responsibilities of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which have been
published at the websites of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively. The board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense.

ZERERES
ERTEERHARATLRE AL - MEFEH
TEERBUFNTERCARIRRTIEEH
REM=F HARKELT IRAFDANRER
FAELEREMT -

ARAERRELRETARFERERERET -
BERRAE RARRAZERREBFAGL B
=R WER(RMABLIFE=X=MEE 8l
BRREOLET IR =Dz —WAB) A& ERE -
ERTAECTEHESFEZENETER AR
EFxghRBER HEMEEEARF TRAERR
RETH ERBNTAEREREME: MEMH
EESZMENESFUEREFTSMEXE  HE
HEBEEARRA TABRRAFARE  BEKNA
BREBEEEER - Al MBEHELE FR
WAL FRPAEEMUBLISFHEEEHR
T AINAEBRRARAEERREFASGLE
BMEEBRE -

EIRRITHRAR

ARRENRBETE IFERTRAROBE
BRES - RAFER  BRELERAFDTY
IR RASESE YHRREFENATEM
B ERAILER MBYRELANNES
BAERRTARANERRRRIB AL EENE
mEBELE

ExZEE

EFEENU=-AZES BREZZES ¥
ZEEhRAZBEE AEREESFERARA
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control system and review of the Company’s financial statements. The
written terms of reference are in line with the provisions under the
CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board, which include to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Group’s circumstances
and to ensure processes and procedures are in place to achieve the
Group’s corporate governance objectives.

During the Year, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Li Wai Keung
as chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel (Mr. Yung retired as Independent Non-
Executive Director and resigned as a member of Audit Committee with
effect from 22 September 2020). All the Audit Committee members
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. During the Year, two Audit
Committee meetings were held to review the FY2019/20 annual results
and the FY2020/21 interim results of the Group before submission to
the Board.

During FY2020/21, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control system, connected transactions,
interim results and annual results of the Group, and accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group. The attendance of the
Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as follows:

BEREES

ERZESRARN REREAKENM KB RIZ
FrREEERABEZERFRENAQFNHT
Bk HEOBRESERELRTHBETRER
EFEERKEZZEENRERBREMEN  EF
BHRAEEEERNAKREBANKELXER
B OUERARAELEFAIZEZAKEELE
EIRMBR °

RAFEN BEREECHTERLE(ERE)
REERE HFRPEERBKELE(REER
2020F9A22HBBREBIENTES RNBEEEX
ZEGgB)HENK - BERZECHMANENYAB
ERTEET -RAFEN  TAFRMAEZZE
TEH LREXEFEZTSHEMAEE2019/208
BEEEER202021 B EERE L -

P00/ RFE  BEREZEGEENALEEN
R EANREZERS BERS  THMEENRE
FEEUARAEERMN SR RED - T
ZECERNEFTHEBRLT:

Number of

attendance/

meeting held

HE BT

Directors = BERY
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman) FERBEE(EE) 272
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REELE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BT 2/2
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel AL E 11
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is
Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and other benefits. The remuneration of all Directors
and senior management is subject to regular monitoring by the

Remuneration Committee so as to ensure that the level of their

responsible for making
recommendations on

remuneration and compensation are reasonable. The specific written
terms of reference are in line with the provisions of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one Executive Director, including Mr. Li Wai
Keung as chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew and Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for Executive
Directors is to enable the Company to retain and motivate Executive
Directors by linking their compensation with their individual
performance as measured against the Group’s corporate objectives
and operating results, taking into account also the comparable market
conditions. The principal elements of the remuneration package of an
Executive Director include basic salary, performance and/or discretional
bonus, participation in the Share Option Scheme and other benefits.
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (including Independent
Non-Executive Directors) includes mainly the director's fee and
participation in the Share Option Scheme which is a matter for the
Board to decide by reference to their duties and responsibilities and
the comparable market conditions.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to
review the structure of remunerations for Directors of the Company
and the grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme to
Directors of the Company. The attendance of the Directors at the
Remuneration Committee meeting was as follows:

yFMEES
VFINZESAENEST RS RERARHFMEE
MmEMNELHER FHEESEHERE2RES

SREEAEOFH - BRSO H KT R
MEBARE HAREAMELETSELTH
RIE °

FHEZECHMBBUFATEER —RNTE
ZHlK BREFEREE(XRE) REEXRLER
B EEAE -

AEENATERFHBRRIZEENREARA
HTESNMERREFNEARREAEEN D
FERMEEXEEHRE ARZEIELBTS
Bh BARBRHBATES - ATEFNFH
MEBIERBEATFS AN LWELAL
SEBREFELEMERN - FRTES (R
BYFBTES)INHEIZEREFTHAELS
HERENE THEFSK2BRESFORER
AELBRTSBEREETE

RAFEN BEAFA-—AFMEZEe R UF
B AKX B E B B B AR DA SR B B AR A B 9%
TEEERREEE FHZETSENESTLRE
BamT:

Number of

attendance/

meeting held

HE R

Directors BE=x CE VS
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman) FERBEE(EE) 1”1
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REELRE 1”1
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing B AN B S A 11
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The remuneration of the senior management (excluding Directors) by
band for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

HE2021F3A3MBLTREE R EEABECT
BREB)ZFWERNEDOT :

Number of

persons

Remuneration band Fa | A
HK$1,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 per annum & 41,000,000/ 7t £ 3,000,000 7T 3
Over HK$3,000,001 per annum & 43,000,00178 7T UA 2

Further particulars regarding the directors’ emoluments and the
five highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
on the nomination of Directors with a view that the appointment
of suitable individuals possess relevant expertise and experience to
enhance the constitution of the Board and to contribute to the Board.
The specific written terms of reference are in line with the provisions
of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one Executive Director, including Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen
Andrew as chairman, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, including skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of background of its members, and the re-
designation of senior management of the Company. The attendance of
the Directors at the Nomination Committee meeting was as follows:

ARESEHESRALRaFATZEZHB
RETMBAKMSETN2RERE  THAMER
=M FE8 KO ©

REEZES
REZBECAENEFTRAREHER  UZEAR
BHREXNBELRERNEEAE  URLLES
EXRERE RESSFLER HBAREER
BHBENTEERTRIEE

RAZEEHMEBUFATERTR —HLNTE
FHK BRERBEARE(ER) FEARELER
HMEEE - RNAFEAN REZERITES
SEE O ABLEK BREFSRENRE -
ME - KREERNEEL UWERARASRE
BEzHAF REZESEHENEFLERBLN
T

Number of

attendance/

meeting held

b BT

Directors = CE VS
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew (Chairman) REEFRE(FE) 1”1
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEALE 1”1
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing BN R S A 11
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity by adopting a board
diversity policy which stipulates that when identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Directors, the Nomination Committee
will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity, including but
not limited to a number of factors, such as age, race, cultural and
educational background, professional and business-related experience,
reputation of candidates for integrity and his/her accomplishment,
skills, knowledge and length of service, in order to maintain an
appropriate range of balance of skills, experience and background on
the Board. The appointments of Directors will be based on meritocracy
and take into account the aforesaid factors as a whole for the benefits
of the Company, as well as the business model and specific needs of
the Company from time to time.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

During the Year, the Company arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal action against
its Directors and officers.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness.
A defined management structure with specified limits of authority
and responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Group has established an internal audit department to perform
regular financial and operational reviews and recommend necessary
actions to the relevant management. The works carried out by the
internal audit department ensure the risk management and internal
control systems are in place and function properly as intended. The
results of the internal audit and reviews are reported to the Executive
Directors and Audit Committee of the Company. The Directors have
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and are satisfied with the adequacy of the
systems of risk management and internal control of the Group during
the Year.

ESEREZTLEER
REZEFEREZ T ARARMEFTIK
BZUEHE EREZESVEABAEER
BEEZFZALH BZEZTCESTENE
7 BREEFTER -LEREXFNFEK Bk X
EERBEER FEREBHEBELER REAN
HEERRZKH] - KRig - MBEMBEH - U
GCEEFSAGAEALMHEOERI XM - L
RER BFRZEZEBUABREREZRRA A
RARBWMNEEEER LARE  RIKEE
ARAAGHEBEARABTE -

EEREEEARR

RAFER FARCHEEREABETLS
AHOERTHRFRREAENES RS A E
EERME -

&5

BEkEERAEE
EEAEAREZAREERAMEERS
Wigs EB R - RRECHIEHERENEIE
BB YRTABRESELBE  UHIERERRE
ERREEEE BRAETSZEGTLE IR
WA EHMHEMHAME BT L ETED
ER - RBNRER o

REBREANEZHL  UERETHBELE
By YAAMEEABREZZMTTE - A
EAZEBPIFTEITEY TR AR BB &2 R A AP
ERRGAEMET U TEEBREF -
N EZRBHNEREAARAAITEETRE
REEeHE EFCEHNLAEEHRBREERA
BEZRFNERE  LEMATEEREAFERN
MEREERABEEZRBRESN -
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TEERRE(E)

For the annual review on the risk management and internal control,
the Audit Committee considered the internal control report and risk
management report satisfying as to effectiveness of the Group'’s risk
management and internal control systems. There were no matters
of material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance
control. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy and the effectiveness
of the systems of the risk management and internal control of the
Group during the Year.

Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Messrs. Ernst & Young. During the
last three years, the Group did not change any independent auditor.
For FY2020/21. The remuneration paid and payable by the Group to
the independent auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by them was as follows:

REBREAREENFEEHNNS  EKEES
ERANNEEREREREERS  LEMARE
EREREABEZERREAR  AXBAEBHE
BEYAREEMASERINEE BEFERE
MAERERNAFENRREERABEZRSE
BB R o

BIUZEAMNE
REEMBLZHBA AL KGFTMERH - 8L
=F - REERBEIRE L AZEAD o # E2020/21
HRFEE ANEBRBLZBAMMEEMIRER
ZRIIEEZRBENREFOMESOT

HK$'000

FET

Audit and review services B MEERS 4,650

Non-audit services Ik Z RS 1,460
Directors’ Responsibility EEER

Every newly appointed Director will
comprehensive induction on appointment to ensure the understanding
of Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to refresh their
knowledge and skills and the Company would organize appropriate

receive briefings and

directors’ training to help ensure they are apprised of the role,
functions and duties being a director of the Company.

The Directors are aware that they should give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and they are continually
adapted with regulatory developments and business development of
the Group to discharge their responsibilities. The Directors’ knowledge
and skills are continuously developed and refreshed by, inter alia, the
following means:

(1) Attending training session organized by and/or reading materials
provided by the Company, which included but not limited
to legal and regulatory changes and matters relevant to the
Directors in discharging their duties, including the laws, rules
and regulations relating to corporate governance;
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EEEREHS (H)

(2)  Participating in continuous professional training seminars/ (2) 2 E|mEM AT - 2 B L sk BT LS R 9t

conferences/courses/workshops on subjects relating to directors’ FHAEERENLEES  REENEEE
duties and corporate governance, and rules and regulatory FEBNRENFEFTEFIEE g5
changes organized by the other companies, professional bodies RIS E R

or government authorities; and

(3)  Reading news, journals, magazines or other reading materials (3) THFHEREGBEEIERREET « £F U

from time to time as regards legal and regulatory changes, LEMEHESRTAEEREESEE 2
economics and matters relevant to the Directors in discharging B HF) - MRk EMmBEER -
their duties.

According to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors RIBEESRIBEMLE  RNAFERN EFEL2 0

received the following trainings during the Year: 2

Type of Training
Directors BE=x EIER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) N N E YY) (1) and (3)
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer) MR (TTBAEE) (1) and (3)
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman BEXZ L (1) and (3)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cheng Tai Po N g (1) and (3)
Mr. Lin Ching Hua WERBE L A (1) and (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REELRSE (1), (2) and (3)
Mr. Li Wai Keung FERKE (1) and (3)
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BT S A (1), (2) and (3)

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the EERZHM M P B HRRAENSE
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of % % K 4% Bt Al # 32 H ¥ 4R & AN &£ E2020/21 84 R F
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2020/21, EHAMBKBREMNEN  UEBIRBEATHTE LE
which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and & 528 {7 & -

applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the independent auditor of the Company — ZN/A ]38 37 #% Bt Al ¥ A & B 47 & B 75 TR R 89 A =R
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in EEFH R FI1208 1268 MBI X B RENR -
the independent auditor’s report on pages 120 to 126.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Mau Cheong Bryan also serves as the Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2021. He is a full
time employee of the Company with professional qualifications and
extensive experience, and has adequate working knowledge about
the Company to discharge his duty as the Company Secretary. During
the Year, Mr. Chan confirmed that he received relevant professional
training of not less than 15 hours to update his skills and knowledge.
Communication with Shareholders and
Noteholders

The AGM of the Company is to be held at Garden Room 2/F., New
World Millennium Hong Kong Hotel, 72 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 28 September 2021 at 2:30
p.m..

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders,
noteholders and other investment communities is essential. During
the Year, the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and team of
investor relations of the Group held regular briefings, press conferences
and analyst meetings of interim and annual results, attended investor
forums and participated in roadshows, conducted meetings and visits
to projects of the Group with institutional investors and financial
analysts in China, Hong Kong and overseas to keep them abreast of
the Group's business and development. Investors can also communicate
with the Company through email at ir@chinasouthcity.com.

The shareholders’ meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Directors and Chief Financial
Officer of the Group will attend shareholders’” meetings to answer
questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders can also direct their
enquiries and proposals to the Company. The contact details of the
Company are set out in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s
website at www.chinasouthcity.com.
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Shareholders’ Right

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), shareholders of the Company holding not less than 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at
general meeting may request the Directors to call a general meeting.
The request must state the general nature of business to be dealt
with at the meeting and may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it in accordance with the provisions under sections
566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles.

The attendance of the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company which was held on 22 September 2020 was as follows:
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M EB RN T

Number of
attendance/
meeting held
HE BT
Directors 2= CE VS
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) RN S () 1”1
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer) T REE(TTHAZ) 171
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman B =X+ 11
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cheng Tai Po N e 11
Mr. Lin Ching Hua WEREE R & 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 11
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEARKLE 11
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BT SEAE 11
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel ATKAE S E 0/1

Published documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are available on the Company’s website at
www.chinasouthcity.com.

EREMXHERSHIORRNERRHNE 713

B KA A 48 5 www.chinasouthcity.com ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HIHEERHRE

About this Report

This report disclosed the actions and performance of the Group in
the environmental, social and governance issues during the financial
year (the “Report”). The Report disclosed the applicable and relevant
information pursuant to the “Comply or Explain” level of Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of the Main
Board Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Scope of the Report

This Report covered the Group’s core business including project
investment and development, business management and operation,
property leasing and property management, logistics and warehousing
services and outlet operations. The above-mentioned major businesses
are the main sources of income of the Group and have considerable
influence on the environmental, social and governance issues of the
Group, so they were included in the scope of this Report.

The reporting period of this Report began from 1 April 2020 to 31
March 2021, same as that of the Group’s account reporting period.

Our Philosophy

China South City is a leading developer and operator of large-
scale integrated logistics and trade centres in China, endeavoring to
provide an online and offline combined logistics and trade integrated
ecosystem for SMEs. On one hand, the Group assists local governments
in upgrading old markets by developing modern wholesale
marketplaces that promote regional economic transformation and
development. On the other hand, it provides one-stop comprehensive
value-added services for SMEs in China South City projects, thereby
helping such businesses reduce their operation costs and enhance
their competitiveness through business initiatives aimed at “Sustaining,
Supporting, Assisting and Promoting Enterprises”.

Through years of operation and development, the Group has adhered
to its business philosophy of “Innovation, Integrity, Consensus and
Collaboration”. While promoting business development, we also pay
attention to expectations and demands of all parties and integrate
the concept of sustainable development into our corporate culture,
corporate planning and operational decision-making. We continuously
improve the capabilities and performance in relation to environment,
society and corporate governance. In addition to relentlessly
maintaining close communications and cooperation with shareholders
in the course of operation for raising the level of corporate governance,
the Group endeavors to attain sustainable development by creating
a favorable working environment for its employees, assisting its
customers in improving their operational competitiveness and
establishing sustainable relations to create value, and continuously
minimizing environmental impact in the course of operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Environmental Protection

China South City is deeply aware of the potential eco-environmental
impact which may result from business development. Therefore,
to ensure sustainable development and protect the ecological
environment, the Group adheres to the concept of energy saving
and emissions reduction in the entire process of its development
and operation, ensuring its compliance with applicable laws and
regulations on environmental protection. In addition, the Group has
implemented multiple recycling plans during its daily operations, to
raise environmental awareness of employees, business tenants and
residents. From product design, green construction to daily operations,
the Group is committed to reducing its environmental impact through
various green measures.

The Group has formulated “Energy Conservation Management
Regulations” to ensure effective energy conservation in daily
operations. Such regulations are managed by the project management
and property management teams, who are responsible for the
introduction and evaluation of energy-saving technologies and
equipment, management and development of programs and data
analysis respectively.

Environmental Friendly Facilities

To better incorporate the philosophy of sustainable development into
its daily operation and management, the Group proactively promotes
the application of energy-saving equipment on each project. The
energy saving renovation of lighting fixtures is one of the arrangements
widely used in daily construction and operational activities.

For instance, lamps have been replaced with LED energy-saving ones
at many buildings of CSC Shenzhen, coupled with an intelligent air
conditioning system.

The 12W T8 dual-brightness LED voice-activated lighting have been
installed in the voltage power distribution rooms, generator rooms,
aisles and corridors of various districts of CSC Zhengzhou.

In CSC Harbin, LED lamps have been used in the underground car
parks of Trade Centre Plaza 2 with assured illumination. There are
also timer setup for signboard lighting on a seasonal basis, and usage
control of the air conditioning system based on seasonal and outdoor
temperature.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHERARE(E)

During the Year, the consumption of electricity of Group’s eight
domestic project sites was approximately 335,822,620 kWh.

In respect of water saving, CSC Shenzhen and CSC Harbin have applied
water saving equipment and facilities, using sensor-activated taps and
pedal-enabled water-saving toilets, which effectively reduced the water
usage of the plazas and public areas within the project. Administrative
Tower and Trade Centre Plaza 3 of CSC Nanchang and Trade Centre
Plaza 2 of CSC Xi‘an have applied water saving equipment and
facilities.

During the Year, the consumption of water of Group’s eight domestic
project sites was approximately 7,367,731 cubic metres.

During the year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions were
approximately 271,600 ton carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,-eq”),
including direct emissions (Scope 1) were approximately 620 tCO,-eq,
indirect energy emissions (Scope 2) were approximately 270,259 tCO,-
eq and other indirect emissions (Scope 3) were approximately 721
tCO,-eq.

During the Year, the consumption of diesel oil of Group’s eight
domestic project sites was approximately 3,769 litres.

During the Year, the consumption of natural gas of Group’s eight
domestic project sites was approximately 8,042 cubic metres.

Education on Environmental Protection

To make the best use of resources, the Group proactively implemented
Green Office in its daily management and operation. Employees have
been educated on energy saving and environmental protection to raise
their environmental awareness. In addition to reminding employees to turn
off various non-used power sources in the office, they have also been
encouraged to go green through office supplies consumption control,
online working process and paper reduction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Civilized Construction

Highly attentive to the potential impact on the environment and
communities during its project development, the Group strictly
complies with applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection. The Group has formulated civilized construction standards,
including “Management System for Safe and Civilized Construction”
((ZE2XEETEEHIE)), “Management System for Fire Safety in
Construction” ((TI2EMZ 2B EH|E)), “Management Standard
for Safe and Civilized Construction at Sites with Diagrams” (< T
RISELTE2XHEITEEEZERKE)) and “Standard for Fire Safety
at Construction Sites” (i TIRIGHEHZ 212 4)), in order to
advocate civilized and green construction and strive to mitigate the
environmental impact in a more environmental friendly manner.

In respect of exhaust gas and dust pollution, green management has
taken place on construction sites. Cement and other construction
materials which are easily blown into the air are sealed and stored;
and construction waste is discharged and transported through special
airtight refuse passages or containers. Construction sites are also
equipped with enclosed waste stations where construction waste and
domestic waste are classified and stored.

In respect of sewage discharge, sedimentation tanks have been built
at the cleaning space for concrete carrier vehicles for diversion of
rain, sewage and wastewater from construction sites. Sewage goes
through technical treatment before being reclaimed. The remainder
of processed water is discharged into municipal sewage pipelines or
recycled for greening and road flushing. QOil, thinner and paint on
construction sites must be placed in storage rooms whose ground
must have received anti-seepage treatment to prevent any groundwater
pollution.

According to “Environmental Protection and Occupational Health and
Safety Management Standards” of the Group, toxic and hazardous
waste must be stored in qualified containers. It is strictly forbidden to
mix different types or incompatible toxic and hazardous wastes in the
same container. Containers containing toxic and hazardous wastes shall
be sealed, packaged, and marked, and stored in designated storage
areas. Toxic and hazardous wastes must be transported to designated
locations for dumping by handlers that have the qualifications for
the transportation of toxic and hazardous wastes issued by the
environmental protection department.

During the Year, the Group did not generate a substantial amount of
hazardous waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHEHERERE (H)

In respect of solid waste discharge, the Group requires the constructor
to timely remove the solid waste generated during its construction
process and, utilize or dispose of such wastes according to regulations.
Wastes are packed by bags and regularly collected and placed in
dumpsters by property management personnel. They will be sorted
in garbage stations and transported by garbage trucks after sealing
treatment.

During the Year, a total of approximately 200,986 tons of solid waste
were cleared and transported.

Vehicle emissions are the main air pollution source of other business
of the Group. The Group is committed to controlling the source of
air pollutants. In addition, the Group also conducts exhaust emissions
testing to ensure the vehicle exhaust amount meeting the relevant
laws and regulations.

During the year, the Group’s nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions, sulfur
oxide (SOx) emissions and particulate (PM) emissions were respectively
approximately 372kg, 20kg and 27kg.

In respect of environmental protection in communities, the Group also
requires its contractors to establish relevant measures not to disturb
residents nearby, conducting proper prevention of dust, noise and light
pollution as well as traffic congestion on construction sites to further
mitigate the impact on the life of community residents.

Climate Change

The Group understands that the impacts of climate change may bring
different risks to the Group’s operations. For this reason, the Group
strives to take the best measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
from business operations and combat climate change. In order to
prevent and control potential natural disasters, the Group has also
formulated emergency plans to minimize the possible consequences of
accidents and effectively protect the safety of the Group’s assets and
employees.

In addition, we are also looking for opportunities brought by climate
change and hope to achieve the goal of sustainable development of
the Group through the application of new energy and updating of
energy-saving equipment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #HSHERARE (E)

Employee Overview

Employees are important assets of the Group. As at 31 March 2021,
the total number of employees was 3,907, including 3,885 full-time
employees, 18 contracted employees and 4 part-time employees and
internship. The younger generation has become the major composition
of employment. The number of the employees within the age group
of 18-40 attributed more than 75% of the total working force of the
Group, and gender composition by and large reached a balance.

China South City strives to allocate human resources and make timely
adjustments to its team structure according to the actual needs of
business development. During the Year, the Group adopted digital
system in human resources management and brought technology into
the operation. Apart from providing customers more convenience, the
Group streamlined part of the employee structure in response to its
business needs, by retrenching employees not in line with business
development and engaging qualified candidates through public
recruitment, campus recruitment, internal referrals and such for the
expanding business need. The Group upheld the principle of fairness,
equity and openness during these processes.

The overall employees (by age) as at 31 March 2021
BHE2021F3RNEAERFREATNEERER
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Talents are the prime impetus to sustainable corporate development.
Adhering to its “people-oriented” management philosophy, the
Group aims to attract and cultivate talents by providing them
with an extensive platform to grow and perform. Meanwhile, the
Group complies with national and local labor laws and regulations
and upholds the principle of equity and fairness, so as to provide
employees with equal opportunities. Our policy of equal employment
opportunities applies to employment arrangements including
recruitment, hiring, promotion, re-designation, redundancy and
dismissal, regardless of race, religion, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, physical disability or any other reasons, to ensure all
employees and job candidates are treated equally. During the Year, the
Group continued to achieve a win-win situation for both employees
and corporate development, by effectively allocating human resources
and standardizing collaborative relationships among employees.
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Total number of employees (by gender)
as at 31 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHERARE(E)

In respect of remuneration and fringe benefits, externally the Group
takes reference to the general economic environment and the pay level
of industry peers, while internally it advocates the principles of fairness
and competitiveness, with reference to position, capability, performance,
as well as educational and professional qualifications. According to
employees’ position, job duties and job nature, the Company applies
three different categories of remuneration, namely an annual scheme
with reference to operating results of the year, a performance-based
scheme with reference to annual and quarterly performance, and a
commission-based scheme with reference to sales performance.

The Group has a comprehensive vacation system in place in accordance
with local labor laws and regulations, which covers sick leave, casual
leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, lactation leave, annual leave, injury leave and statutory holidays.
The employee benefit system is under constant improvement to take
better care of our employees and their personal growth.

During the Year, the average monthly employee turnover rate of the
Group was 3.29%.

The Group recognizes the importance of cultivating an excellent
management team, and hence it put more efforts to the career
planning of employees, including the balanced development between
personal career and life. Moreover, the Group placed emphasis on
nurturing the younger generation for society. The diversified businesses
of China South City can provide a good platform for outstanding
graduates to embark on their personal career path across a broad
spectrum as soon as possible.

Over the course of one month, the Group has conducting campus
recruitment covered 14 well-known colleges and universities in 5 key
cities across the country. During the Year, China South City provided
more than 100 job positions in campus recruitment.

Campus Recruitment Training Class
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Occupational Safety and Health for Employees
The Group endeavors to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for its employees. The Group has established its
safety management committee and project management centre to
ensure regular inspection and evaluation of the safety and civilized
construction of each project on a quarterly basis. During the Year, as
required by the State Council, the Group continued to actively carry out
the “Production Safety Month” activities, with the theme of “Eliminate
Hidden Dangers of Accidents and Build A Strong Line of Defense”, to
promote safety management in places, including but not limited to,
office premises, construction sites and the entire project area.

The Group also provides regular courses and training on occupational
safety, safety seminars and fire drills for employees, particularly those
involved in construction and fire services. Project inspections by the
safety team are also arranged. These activities raise the awareness of
safety precautions among all the employees, improve their safety skills,
eliminate potential safety risks and proactively eliminate hazards.

Fire Drills

HPIRE

Apart from accident prevention, we have also invested resources to
enhance health awareness among employees. Moreover, in response
to the prevailing running trend in recent years, we have organized
running groups and hired professional coaches to give guidance. CSC
Shenzhen has its employee dormitories furnished with various fitness
facilities such as gyms and table-tennis tables, treadmills, multi-training
machines, indoor cycling accessories, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHERARE(E)

CSC Harbin Running Team
MERBERSARE

Staff Body Check Activity
BETRBIEH

With a comprehensive response mechanism in place, the Group
provides medical payment in advance for the injured employees in the
first instance while timely reporting to the Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau to ensure adequate risk prevention and emergency
response measures. The Group also delegates its labor union personnel
to visit the injured employees, console their family members, and seek
for the best treatment plan together with medical institutions.

During the Year, there was 1 job-related fatality.
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Male Female Total

B keg 3 Log: ]

Rate of work-related injuries per BTHREINIEGE 3.01 0.69 3.70
thousand employees

Number of working days lost due AIGHEAIEBEH 283 103 386

to work-related injuries

The Group attaches great importance to caring and helping employees,
adhering to the concept of “The Company Has Love, Mutual
Assistance”. During the Year, the Group raised charitable donations
for employees who suffered from family tragedies, providing care and
economic support.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Employee Development and Training

China South City believes learning serves as the principal means for
employees’ sustainable development and creativity. Therefore, it is the
responsibility of a corporation to provide employees with opportunities
of continuous improvement.

During the Year, the Group continued to enhance its staff training
system that incorporated orientation, training for management
associates, etc. at all levels. Furthermore, the Group provided adequate
on-the-job training for its employees through a wide array of activities,
such as lectures and seminars, online learning, outward bound courses,
experience sharing and so on.

Outward Bound Activity
FNAEES

Staff Forum
BETEAE

During the year, the Group held the “Growing for New Power” training
camp. After the 12-days intensive training, the selected participants
whom were full of skills, knowledge and corporate culture will be
dispersed to their professional working positions, attaining the goal of
building a team of backup working power for China South City.
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B HEHERARE(E)

“Growing for New Power” Training Camp

M- =#HE IR E

During the Year, the Group recorded an average of approximately
23.58 training hours for each employee.

Training hours (by grade of staff) in FY2020/21
2020/218t F R B TR B 8 2 #9535 3 B &

RAREER  REBETEENEHEIIFHRY
5 N23.58/\F o

Entry Level Middle Level Senior Level Total
2E g BE a%
Number of Hours AN 73,510 27,036 1,217 101,763
Percentage BO 72% 27% 1% 100%
Labor Standards B IR

The Group strictly complies with the PRC government’s “Provisions
on the Prohibition of Child Labor” and would not hire any employees
aged below 16. During the Year, there were no incidents related to
child labor, forced labor or harassment. The Group works regularly
to inspect and prevent child labor and forced labor through proper
pre-employment review of the personal information of its employees,
as well as inclusive internal training to raise the legal consciousness
among its subsidiaries and in turn attain the goal of forbidding child
labor and forced labor.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Supply Chain Management

The Group values product quality and cost control, as most of
its procurement would go through a tender process. The Group
implements a series of unbiased, fair, just and transparent tender
processes and a supervisory mechanism to ensure the quality of
its products and services as well as professionalism during contract
fulfilment. In selecting contractors, the Group also takes into account
a contractor’s environmental awareness and social responsibility. The
number of suppliers of the Group by geographical region during the
Year is detailed as follows:

Number of suppliers by region

EHEETNHEBHEE

12%

12%

Product Liabilities

Apart from property development, the Group actively cultivates the
market in order to provide a favorable business environment for its
tenants. In this regard, the Group values the advice and suggestions
from its tenants and seeks to communicate with them through
different channels. The Group has formulated the implementation rules
of customer satisfaction surveys for its regional subsidiaries. The Group
would learn the extent of customer satisfaction to China South City in
respect of product planning and design, construction quality, business
operation, property management and customer service through
customer satisfaction surveys. Accordingly, specific targets are set, to
drive the continuous improvement of management and services, so as
to raise customer satisfaction and loyalty.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHERARE(E)

In addition, along with business development, the Group has set up
effective channels to listen to the opinions of tenants and landlords,
with the goal of building a platform for effective communication and
to enhance mutual understanding and trust between China South
City, our tenants and landlords. Based on the actual situation of the
property management business of the Company, we have formulated
the policy for customer complaint management and handling
guidelines to clearly define the responsibilities and authority of the
Group and its property service centres in the management of customer
complaints in every aspect to ensure that customer complaints are
resolved timely and effectively in a fair and reasonable manner. General
complaints would be concluded within two working days from the
date of receipt. During the Year, the Group received and processed
727 customer complaints in accordance with the regulations, with a
completion rate of 100%.

During the Year, China South City received many pennants and
commendation letters from customers.

Regarding the protection of customer information and privacy, the
Group uploads its customers’ personal information to the CRM System,
and assigns special personnel to be responsible for the use of CRM
accounts. Any access to such information must go through a multi-
level approval procedure.

As more and more China South City projects are put into operation,
safety management has become an important part of the Group’s
development. The Group has set up a Safety Management Committee,
which is responsible for formulating rules and regulations on fire
prevention, disaster prevention and epidemic prevention for various
areas from the safety office to construction environment, and to the
management of the entire project area, and all relevant departments
are required to comply with these rules and regulations. During the
Year, the Group continued to intensify its fire safety and prevention
management, with the completely revised “China South City Manual
of Fire Safety” ((EmIMEBE L2 EFM)). The Fire Safety
Manual is divided into 10 volumes with both practical and applicable
content, covering duties, systems, standards, practice, knowledge,
firefighting, rescue, etc. It emphasizes “the Control of Unsafe Factors,
Unsafe Attitudes and Unsafe Behavior” as the root of fire prevention
measures.

The Safety Management Committee also inspects and prevents
individual safety matters. For example, it regularly checks the
implementation of safety measures of each construction unit and the
project site, and reminds employees and relevant units to beware of
fire and theft before the start of a long leave.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B S HEHERKRE (H)

Operating Practices

Through close cooperation with its suppliers and contractors, the
Group seeks to provide its customers with efficiently high-quality
products and services. All employees are required to comply with the
Group's anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies at all times to prevent
violating laws and regulations.

Professional Ethics

The Group strictly prohibits any acts of bribery and corruption during
its business operation. The staff handbook applicable to the Group
is prepared in accordance with national laws and regulations, and
ethical requirements of the industry, to regulate any abuse of power,
malpractice, bribery and corruption. Announced through OA office
system and official website that the Group has set up a wide array
of channels for whistleblowing, such as mailbox and phone number,
CO-I=E

BX 1% 7)) as a standard contract term into all commercial contracts

and incorporated the “Anti-Commercial Bribery Clause”

and agreements signed by the Group, so as to convey the concept
of building a healthy business ecosystem to all business partners. At
the same time, the Group focused on fostering a culture of corporate
integrity to raise the awareness of all employees on compliance
operation, and continuously carried out the education and training of
integrity practice for all new and existing employees.

Strengthen the Construction of Corporate Integrity Culture

058 4 2 RO LR

In case an employee is reported to have violated any code of professional
ethics, the Group will carry out investigation internally. Where such case
is confirmed, the Group will file such case to the judicial authority.

During the Year, there was 1 employee of the Group was reported
and transferred to the judicial authority due to violations of code of
professional ethics.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHEHERERE (H)

Community Engagement

The business operation of China South City is closely related to
community development. Over the years, the Group, actively engaged
in charity affairs at the communities where the Group operates
its business and well aware of its responsibility in community
development, has been striving to respond to the demand of such
communities and make contribution to their sustainable development.

Anti-epidemic work

Since the outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19), the entire world and
all sectors of society have been widely affected. China South City has
diversified projects and is serving a large number of merchants and
residents. The Group bore a great mission on the anti-epidemic work
that the Group immediately arranged a range of comprehensive anti-
epidemic work in residential area, commercial area, office buildings and
logistic warehouses in the project sites. The Group worked together
with its partners to overcome difficulties to protect public health, fulfill
social responsibilities and fight against the epidemic.

Committed to Epidemic Prevention and Control

NI EFRIED

The Group puts the health and safety of employees, merchants and
residents in the first place, and immediately established a special anti-
epidemic work leading group and launched an emergency mechanism
in order to prevent the epidemic and protect the safety of the project
sites.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE #H2HERARE (E)

Condolence to the Front-Line Medical Staff
HEEE—RAE

Express Heartfelt Gratitude to the Medical Staff
HEEABRTH R

Qianlong Logistics Hefei has outstanding performance in fighting
against COVID-19 outbreak and was publicly commended and notified
by the Anhui Provincial Logistics Association, awarded the title of
"Advanced Unit and Advanced Individual in Fighting against COVID-19
in Anhui Province Logistics Industry”.

The Group also purchased anti-epidemic materials, performed the
anti-epidemic work in the project sites and assisted the merchants in
fighting the epidemic.

Qianlong Logistics Donated Anti-flooding Materials
ERYRELCBENANE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B HEHEHERERE (H)

Charity Donations

The Group cares for the communities where its projects are located
and made an aggregate charitable donation of approximately HK$2.51
million to various charitable organizations during the Year. China South
City is concerned with people’s livelihood, poverty relief, disaster relief,
education, medical assistance, care for children and other charitable
causes.

In response to the central government’s call for poverty alleviation
and actively fulfilling corporate social responsibilities, on 29 August
2020. CSC Nanning went to the pig breeding base in Nongyong
Village, Pansheng Town, Dahua County to carry out an industrial
poverty alleviation donation ceremony. In recent years, China South
City Nanning has carried out various poverty alleviation projects,
and participated in social welfare activities, promoted the common
development of surrounding people.

Support from the Industry

A large-scale web live broadcast conference relating to supply
matching was opened in CSC Zhengzhou. Hundreds of people from
the Municipal Bureau of Commerce, the Finance Bureau, the Poverty
Alleviation Office, goods suppliers, live broadcast agencies, internet
celebrities, and news media from all over different parts of Zhengzhou
Province attended the conference.

Compassion for Education Support

Teenagers are the hope of our society in the future. China South City
is always dedicated to finance study such that poor students would
receive education. During the Year, China South City donated money
to Hefei 42nd Secondary School CSC Branch as school funding.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B S HEHERKRE (H)

Serving the Community

1.

3.

Used Clothes Recycling Fundraising

To further enhance the public’'s awareness of conservation,
environmental protection and ecology, CSC Shenzhen launched
the “Clothes Warm People’s Heart, Let Love Pass on” used
clothes recycling fundraising activities, carrying forward the
Chinese nation’s traditional virtues of helping the poor and
doing good things.

Used Clothes Recycling Fundraising
EXEWER

Public Legal Consultation

CSC Harbin held a large-scale public legal consultation activity
“Educate Laws to Benefit Private Enterprises, Increase Production
to Help Spring Farming” at the China South City Agricultural
Market. A legal consultation desk was also set up at the event
site, whereas lawyers answered legal questions from private
enterprises and the public, and the law popularization materials
and souvenirs were distributed.

Public Legal Consultation

REmEREBRED

National Flag Raising

In celebrating the national day, CSC Harbin organized related
theme activities and promoted traditional festivals and patriotism
to the merchants, so as to increase communication between
the merchants and to enhance their sense of belonging in the
community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

1B M % B AN R

e
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To the members of China South City Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
South City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 260, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were

in our professional

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B BEN RS (&)

Key audit matters (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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Fair values of investment properties

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of investment properties
was HK$55,695,354,000. Fair value gains on investment properties
amounted to HK$1,054,256,000 which accounted for 30.99% of
profit before tax of the Group. The Group engaged an external
valuation expert to perform valuations of the Group’s investment
properties to estimate their fair values as at 31 March 2021. The fair
values of investment properties were determined principally using
the income capitalisation method by capitalising the rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due provisions for the
reversionary income potential of the properties. The determination
of application of the valuation technique, future rental income
and rental rate involved significant management judgement and
estimates.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included evaluating the valuation process and
the independence and expertise of the external valuation expert. We
assessed the related data of the properties as used by the external
valuation expert as inputs for the valuations by comparing to the
historical data and market index. We also involved our internal
valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology
and the underlying assumptions, which principally included the
market unit rental rate and capitalisation rate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B % BE R E (&)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$824,705,000. Assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables involves a high level of management judgement. During
the year, management used a provision matrix to calculate expected
credit losses (“ECLs") for receivables. The matrix was initially based
on the Group's historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates, including
the type of customers, ageing of the balances and recent historical
payment patterns. Management then calibrated the matrix for the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information,
such as forecasted economic conditions.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern credit control,
debt collection and estimation of ECLs.

We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items in the trade
receivable ageing report were classified with the appropriate ageing
bracket by comparing individual items in the report with the relevant
sales invoices.

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by: (i) evaluating
management’s assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by management to
form such estimations, including testing the accuracy of historical
default data, and evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information and (iii) examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year.

Key audit matters (Continued) BREZSBEG
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B BEN RS (&)

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B BEN RS (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B % BE R E (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

28 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mER@ER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # Z202143831HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 March

HBE3AMBLEEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i FET FAET
REVENUE A 5 11,309,304 9,887,654
Cost of sales FERl DN (6,365,099) (5,365,007)
Gross profit EH 4,944,205 4,522,647
Other income and (losses)/gains Hip g AR (E18), W 5 (20,753) 487,217
Fair value gains on investment properties & W E QA FEW 5 1,054,256 1,677,947
Selling and distribution expenses HERHEAX (486,088) (484,712)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,041,540) (1,001,916)
Other expenses Hib & (409,630) (212,803)
Finance costs B & Bk AR 7 (638,363) (517,621)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bi B R 6 3,402,087 4,470,759
Income tax expenses FrEBiRx 10 (986,958) (1,842,611)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEEFHE 2,415,129 2,628,148
Attributable to: T A& T G
Owners of the parent (S/NEIE PN 2,415,498 2,633,141
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR = (369) (4,993)
2,415,129 2,628,148
EARNINGS PER SHARE FERELAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BakiEAz
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER 12
Basic AR
— for profit for the year - KNFEFH HK29.85 cents &l HK32.47 centsi 1l
Diluted BE
- for profit for the year - NFEFH HK29.85 cents &l HK32.47 centsi 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3831HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 March

B ZE3A3MBALEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEEFE 2,415,129 2,628,148
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Htz2mk A~
(LOSS) (5 #8)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BREZBZHMERIEESEE
may be reclassified to profit or BamEME2EKRA(EBE)
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation ME G INETEH
of foreign operations M & =58 4,280,977 (3,410,861)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ KEERBZ
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF Hi2EBA(B#E)
TAX 4,280,977 (3,410,861)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ EEELZERA(FIR)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 6,696,106 (782,713)
Attributable to: T 75 G
Owners of the parent HATHB A 6,684,377 (758,049)
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR = 11,729 (24,664)
6,696,106 (782,713)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

e B AR RR

As at 31 March 2021 72021435318

FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

2021438318  202043A318
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FER FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L 13 949,329 1,451,308
Investment properties wEWE 14 55,695,354 50,873,673
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 16 993,811 1,424,217
Properties under development B ES 15 2,499,166 1,120,379
Goodwill GES 17 - 34,128
Financial assets at fair value through FERBEEARNFEIERZ
profit or loss CHEE 18 9,214 8,524
Other long-term receivables Hib R HE R IE 19 807,013 587,944
Deposits paid for purchase of BE T AR T
land use rights birgca 20 15,985 29,799
Deferred tax assets BEXERIEEE 33 3,358,987 3,550,178
Total non-current assets EmBEELE 64,328,859 59,080,150
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties held for finance lease HIERMEHEDX 21 212,451 259,431
Properties held for sale FEHEME 21 42,259,146 40,065,384
Inventories FE 22 55,894 109,087
Trade receivables FE U E 5 R 23 824,705 560,891
Contract assets BHMEE 25 - 161,830
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT IR - H ARG IE
other assets RHMEE 24 3,407,024 2,536,396
Financial assets at fair value through BBBEBZARAFENNEZ
profit or loss EREE 18 12,069 357,342
Cash and bank balances Be MIEITER 26 9,442,782 10,303,541
Total current assets MBEERE 56,214,071 54,353,902
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 I HAth JE TR 27 11,281,121 15,589,798
Contract liabilities SHBE 28 16,212,034 15,578,700
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERRITRHEMEE
borrowings 29 7,232,328 8,200,428
Senior notes BEERE 30 7,681,918 5,356,119
Medium-term notes REIE R 31 60,343 55,820
Financial liabilities at fair value BEBE AR FEER
through profit or loss ZEMBE 18 19,010 -
Domestic company bonds REANREESH 32 1,378,177 1,277,098
Tax payables JE A B 18 3,921,272 4,241,087
Total current liabilities mEBEAER 47,786,203 50,299,050
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 8,427,868 4,054,852
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAR
LIABILITIES 72,756,727 63,135,002
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RE MR R ()

As at 31 March 2021 72021434318

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
202153 A31H 202043 H31H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FH T FHBT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kEnBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other AERITERAMEER
borrowings 29 11,666,645 8,920,685
Senior notes BEER 30 8,265,791 8,963,385
Medium-term notes FREIE R 31 705,279 651,847
Domestic company bonds RARBEFH 32 354,960 328,350
Other long-term payables Hib R H ERRIE 16 36,044 122,732
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREEE 33 10,431,458 9,265,483
Total non-current liabilities FmEBBEERE 31,460,177 28,252,482
Net assets BEEFE 41,296,550 34,882,520
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &t A& % B A E1E # 25
Share capital fi% 7 34 7,222,312 7,222,312
Other reserves HAbfH B 36 34,056,569 27,610,414
41,278,881 34,832,726
Non-controlling interests IE 17 A% = 17,669 49,794
Total equity EERBE 41,296,550 34,882,520
CHENG CHUNG HING Zf 12 8 CHENG KA MAN CARMAN #f = 3%
Director &= Director &%=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # Z202143831HIEF/E
Attributable to owners of the parent
NG 2PN L
Statutory Share Exchange Non-
Share surplus option  fluctuation Capital  Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EE BRE B ER ) *E FER B
RA  BHEE FE  RDEE =1 =1 b @5t Ea 2%
Note  HK§'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Wi FEx TEr  Thn T FiBT FiBT Tr  Thzn T THT
Note (i)
()
At 1 April 2019 #201954A18 7,222,312 2,595,496 161,821 (971,340)  (275,841) 286,456 26,971,689 35,990,593 159,234 36,149,827
Profit for the year RrEEHE - - - - - - 2633141 2,633,141 (4993) 2,628,148
Other comprehensive loss AEEEMZE
for the year: B
Exchange differences on BEBNEBE
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - (3,391,190) - - - (3,391,190 (19,671)  (3,410,861)
Total comprehensive loss rEEBRERR
for the year - - - (3,391,190) - - 2,633,141 (758,049) (24,664) (782,713)
Disposal of subsidiaries EENBAF - - - 2,070 - - - 2,070 - 2,070
Shares repurchased BB E - - - - - - (24,013) (24,013 - (24,013)
Acquisition of non-controlling M kB &
interests - - - - 25,558 - - 25,558 (84,776) (59,218)
Transfer of share option BRERNA
reserve upon the forfeiture KMmER
or lapse of share options BERERRE - - (85316) - - - 85,316 - - -
Equity-settled share option IEREER
arrangements BERERH 35 - - 1,928 - - - - 1928 - 1,928
Final 2019 dividend paid B2019%
KBRS - - - - - - (405,361)  (405,361) - (405,361)
Transfer from retained profits ~ # & AR BB - 404,086 - - - - (404,086) - - -
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3318 72031 2999582 78433 (4360460 (50283 286456* 28856,686% 34832726 49794 34882520
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
MEERESBR(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3831HIEF/E
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARREAER
Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share surplus ~ option fluctuation  Capital Revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EE  BRE i3] % Eff RE FER | $:
Rx  BHEE e RIRE L it G| EH [ $5 ag
Notes  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ME  TEx TEn TE=n TEn TE=n TEn TEx TEn TER TER
Note (i)
K& i)
At 1 April 2020 202054818 7,222,312 2,999,582 78,433 (4,360,460) (250,283) 286,456 28,856,686 34,832,726 49,794 34,882,520
Profit for the year TEEHE = = = = = - 2,M5498 2,415,498 (369) 2,415,129
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ AFEEM2EMA:
Exchange differences on translation BERNERH
of foreign operations EXEE = = - 4,268,879 = = 4,268,879 12,098 4,280,977
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFEB2AMA = = - 4,268,879 = - 2,415,498 6,684,377 11,729 6,696,106
Disposal of a subsidiary RENELR 37 - - - (1,521) - - - (1,521) 3,332 1,811
Acquisition of non-controlling interests YR E R IR i % - - - - (254) - - (254) (51,186)  (51,440)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the B8 B R M3k X M
forfeiture or lapse of share options BERRERE = - (22,936) - - - 22,936 - - -
Capital contributions from non-controlling 3 #2514
interests = = o = o = = o 4,000 4,000
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ LEREERBRERHE 35 - - 6,310 - - - - 6,310 - 6,310
Fingl 2020 diidend paid BHANERER S 1 - - - - - - as)  (22750) - as)
Transfer from retained profits BEERENE - 249184 - - - - (9184) - - -
At 31 March 2021 Ra021E38318 312 328766+ 61807+ (9300 (2S0531) 286456 30803179+ 41278881 17669 41,296,550

ZERBERELA
H # ## #534,056,569,000% 7T (202043311 :
27,610,414,000% 7T) ©

BHERRRABENGEE

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of *
HK$34,056,569,000 (31 March 2020: HK$27,610,414,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Note: Bt 5 -

(i) In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the Company's subsidiaries (i)

registered in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of this reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilized to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the registered capital after such usages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # Z202143831HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3AMBLEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 5 A A1 E 3,402,087 4,470,759
Adjustments for: i
Finance costs Bl & BN 7 638,363 517,621
Interest income FLEdA 5 (105,820) (99,617)
Net gains on disposal of property, BEVE BELZRER
plant and equipment and EREEE 2 Fa
right-of-use assets 5 (2,185) (347)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREEBEZINE
equipment 6 155,388 153,882
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHEEENE 6 120,196 84,246
Changes in fair value of investment KEMERTEE
properties 5 (1,054,256) (1,677,947)
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE 2R E 6 231,465 105,279
Impairment of financial assets ST ATERT FRIE - Efth fE I
included in prepayments, other RIE R HAth & & R H Aty
receivables and other assets and REERFRIEBEZ CREE
other long-term receivables RE 6 10,785 12,568
Impairment of inventories FERE 6 25,185 -
Impairment of goodwill 7 B (E 6 34,128 14,983
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary BE—WBRAREIE 5 57,505 -
Gains on repurchase of the senior Bl E L EE 2 W=
notes 5 (20,062) (63,751)
Losses/(gains) on redemption/ O BN EETEE
repurchase of asset-backed Z B ()
securities 5 9,111 (19,345)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial FEBBEREARFEIEZ
assets/liabilities at fair value iwﬂﬁ?/% E2EE,
through profit or loss, net (Ma) 58 5 17,966 (8,638)
Losses on disposal of financial assets/ EEEREZNATE
liabilities at fair value through profit Rz eMEE AfEx
or loss, net B s F 5 214,421 -
Dividend income from financial assets iﬁiﬂ?ﬁl wmARAFEINEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMR WA - (2,237)
Equity-settled share option expense L/M mERENE Hxﬁéﬁfﬂi 6 6,310 1,928
3,740,587 3,489,384
Change in properties held for finance HT’EF{E§$ EREEMEZ
lease and sale & =g 5,495,776 729,787
Change in inventories FEZE(t 36,849 16,180
Change in other long-term receivables HEHmRHEIEWZE 2 E 1L (176,718) (567,380)
Change in trade receivables BUWE SRR ZE1L (449,824) 321,024
Change in contract assets AREEZE b 174,945 (68,302)
Change in prepayments, other TETFRIA - ﬁﬁﬂﬁfqﬁl KIE N
receivables and other assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁz """"" b (849,651) 102,132
Change in contract liabilities EHEEZE# L (552,417) 2,758,774
Change in restricted cash %ﬁE%U Rez8t (54,805) (244,737)
Change in pledged time deposits in Eﬁi/\{’ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁgﬁiﬁﬂ
connection with cooperation projects TRz 1,487,011 (3,072,010)
Change in trade and other payables Bk HEMmEMZREZEE (5,086,351) 773,646
Cash generated from operations KEFEMIRE 3,765,402 4,238,498
Taxes paid BT IE (754,736) (1,018,793)
Net cash flows from operating activities &2 /FHIR &R AFH 3,010,666 3,219,705
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERETRERE)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3831HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 March

HE3A3MBLLEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TExT F& T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEMKE
equipment 13 (192,850) (88,962)
Dividends received from financial assets  BEBREBEmIAAFEIIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss EHMEEDLKRE = 2,237
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on purchase/ & BBz AR FEDFE 2
disposal of financial assets at BE EELRMEERS
fair value through profit or loss B&FERA(Rd)
transactions 160,264 (78,927)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWME BELEE
plant and equipment Fr 5 %A 13,958 3,041
Net outflow on disposal of a subsidiary EE&—MHEBARBELHL
FE 37 (5.644) -
Additions of right-of-use assets TRAREERE = (91,620)
Additions to properties under BERAMERE
development (2,010,955) (2,695,795)
Interest received 2 U F 2 5 105,820 99,617
Increase in time deposits with maturity ~ ¥i2 2B =@ BB HH
of more than three months EHER (112,789) (232,773)
Net cash flows used in investing REZBHR e RLFE
activities (2,042,196) (3,083,182)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERETRERE)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # Z202143831HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 March

HZE3A31MHLLEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B = FTHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of senior notes BITERERRE 30 6,901,474 4,827,950
Issue of medium-term notes BITRHRE S 31 - 652,760
Issue of domestic company bonds BITHERNRAES 32 - 1,553,547
Payment of interest IRSEREN (2,886,927) (2,589,910)
Repayment of senior notes EEELERE 30 (4,467,013) (1,883,700)
Repayment of medium-term notes EERRER 31 = (2,265,781)
Repayment of domestic company bonds B EHE R QA &5 32 = (1,570,940)
Repayment and redemption of BERERNEEIFHES
asset-backed securities 29 (390,619) (112,210)
Repurchase of the senior notes o] 85 18 k2 ik 30 (1,146,452) (1,001,683)
Repurchase of asset-backed securities CEEEXEZES - (296,728)
Resell of asset-backed securities EEEESRRS = 76,371
Redemption of corporate bonds BERTXES - (528)
Share repurchased % 17 [ B& - (24,013)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Ui B JF 22 B% # 25 (51,440) (59,218)
New bank and other borrowings MIERITREMER 11,796,730 11,996,250
Repayment of bank and other BEERITRAEMERK
borrowings (10,761,475) (11,175,785)
Principal portion of lease payments YA ER A 2B 16 (84,968) (51,383)
Capital contribution from EERERTE
non-controlling interests 4,000 -
Dividends paid DIk IR B (242,757) (405,361)
Net cash flows used in financing BEEHR SR FE
activities (1,329,447) (2,330,362)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEYERZ
EQUIVALENTS -2 d (360,977) (2,193,839)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUNBReRBESEEY
beginning of year 3,537,611 5,933,832
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exga g 58
changes, net 271,313 (202,382)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNBRERBESEEY
AT THE END OF YEAR 3,447,947 3,537,611
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRASESEYRERINM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents e kBeZEEYD 26 3,447,947 3,537,611
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% SRR B A

31 March 2021 202143A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information

RFAREAEBEHR

China South City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office of the Company is located at Suites 3306-08,
33/F.,, Tower 5, The Gateway, 15 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
the development and operation of large-scale integrated
logistics and trade centres, the development of residential and
commercial ancillary facilities, property management and the
provision of logistics and warehousing services, outlet operations
and E-commerce services.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERPIERERAR(ARAF)EE LM
KRR ERRE - ARREMMPERUNF
BARRRSDEERBEISHEBRMANEELE

33##3306-08% °

FA - -ARALEMBRRA(RBIAEE])
TEREBRREBEANDGEAYRARE M
FREBELRERE DWEEEMN
REHYARBHRE REREELRE
TEERS -

RHHM

B B 2 B &

ARBNETEMBARFHENAT

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/  Date of Percentage of
registration and registered share capital  incorporation/ equity attributable
Name business as at 31 March 2021  registration to the Company  Principal activities
gRAL/ W021F3A31BERT  HMRYL/ KA AR
28 MRS LY LE/AMRAEE HMBEH BHEAD L TEXH
Direct Indirect
B Ek:3
% %
China South International Industrial Materials The People’s Republic HK$2,200,000,000 18 December 2002 100 - Development and operation
City (Shenzhen) Company Limited (ii)(iv) of China ("PRC")/ 2,200,000,000% 75 18-12-2002 of integrated logistics

Mainland China
B/ RE AR

("China South International”)
ZHEE TERFORINEBR AR
(EmAR)

PRC/Mainland China
B/ E KR

Renminbi (“RMB")
1,100,000,000
A & #1,100,000,0007T

Nanchang China South City Company Limited
(i)(iv) (“CSC Nanchang”)
BEEFHARAAW)
(EZEmu))

PRC/Mainland China
HE /AR

RMB1,000,000,000
AR #1,000,000,0007C

Nanning China South City Company
Limited (iii)(iv) (“CSC Nanning”)

BEZHHAERRAiY)
)

PRC/Mainland China
B/ E KR

RMB1,000,000,000
A K #1,000,000,0007

Xi'an China South City Company Limited (ii)
7 %% B A R AR i)

PRC/Mainland China
HE/RE AR

Harbin China South City Company Limited (iii)
" R E B R A (i)

RMB1,500,000,000
AR #1,500,000,0007

16 November 2007
16-11-2007

28 August 2009
28-08-2009

12 November 2009
12-11-2009

9 January 2012
09-01-2012

100

100

100

100

and trade centres
GEBHENRRERRS
RLRERES

Development and operation
of integrated logistics
and trade centres

FABENRRERRS
FLRERES

Development and operation
of integrated logistics
and trade centres

GEBHENRRERRS
TLHERER

Development and operation
of integrated logistics
and trade centres

FABENRRERRS
FLRERES

Development and operation
of integrated logistics
and trade centres

GEBHENRRERRS
TLHERER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % R BfY o (4

31 March 2021 202143A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. ARRXEEER @)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARER @)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/  Date of Percentage of

registration and

registered share capital

incorporation/

equity attributable

Name business as at 31 March 2021  registration to the Company Principal activities
ERRL/ W2021%53A31BE %7 ZMAL/ AN EMR
A% SR EE L LE/RMRAEE ZMEH EEAAN TEEH
Direct  Indirect
HE B
% %
Harbin Baolitong Market Development PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 22 December 2011 - 100 Development and operation
Management Company Limited (ii) R/ AR AK#500,000,0000C  22-12-2011 of integrated logistics
BREENETEREERERARIN) and trade centres
FEAENRRERRS
RLRERES
Zhengzhou China South City Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 17 May 2012 - 100 Development and operation
(ii)iv) (“CSC Zhengzhou") HE/PEARE AK%1,000,000,0007T  17-05-2012 of integrated logistics
B 2= /i 39 IR &) i) iv) and trade centres
(TBMEmE]) GRBENRRBRRS
HLRERES
Hefei China South City Company Limited (ii)(iv) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 25 December 2012 - 100 Development and operation
("CSC Hefei) RE /AR AK#1,200,000,0007T  25-12-2012 of integrated logistics
BRZEERAR DAV and trade centres
(TaEZEEHl) FEAENRRERRS
RLRERES
Chongging China South City Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 27 December 2013 - 100 Development and operation
(iiiv) ("CSC Chongging”) HE/PEARE AK%1,000,000,0007  27-12-2013 of integrated logistics
BEEHRERARAW) and trade centres
(ZEZEEH]) GRBENRRBRRS
HLRERES
Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 19 November 2010 - 100 Management of outlet
Company Limited (iii) B/ A AE#100,000,0007C  19-11-2010 operations
RINEREERRE R LA BERABHSELER
Shenzhen China South City E-Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 19 April 2012 - 100 Development, operation
Technology Company Limited (i) RE /R AR A K %100,000,000  19-04-2012 and management of an
R ERHAREERAA) E-commerce platform
ETHETARYE  EER
ER
Shenzhen First Asia Pacific Property PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 31 December 2003 - 100 Provision of property
Management Company Limited (i) RE /A R AR 50,000,000 31-12-2003 management services
RINE-ZANEERERAA0 RENEERRS
Qianlong Logistics Group Limited (iii) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,003,000,000 2 July 2004 - 100 Provision of logistics
LN & B AR RE/EKE AR #1,003,000,000T  02-07-2004 services
REDTRB
Shenzhen HOBA Home Furnishing Chain Store PRC/Mainland China RMB480,000,000 12 October 2001 - 90  Furnishing market
Company Limited (ii) HE/PEARE AR %480,000,0007  12-10-2001 operation
RN B F R 5 E SR BB R =i RERHES
Shenzhen China South City Commerce Group PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 20 December 2018 - 100 Provision of commercial
Limited RE /A R AE#100,000,0007T  20-12-2018 management services

AT ERRAEEBERLT

RUHEEERY

China South City Holdings Limited ZEHZERER AT
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % 2k B = (48D

31 March 2021 202143A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

registered share capital

1. 2§
Fff 8

Date of
incorporation/

REAEBER &)
YNEIE-§ > X¢-))

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name business as at 31 March 2021  registration to the Company Principal activities
EmAL/ R202153A31BB 8T AL/ KRF B
£ MRS LN EE/AMRAEE HMAH BEAD L TEER
Direct  Indirect
H# CF:3
% %
China South City Management Company Hong Kong HK$1 9 November 2007 - 100 Provision of management
Limited BiE VBT 09-11-2007 services
EZEHERERAA REERRE
China South City Group Company Limited (iii) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 20 July 2004 - 100 Investment holding
9 & B A R 2 A i) HE/PEARE AK%300,000,0007  20-07-2004 REZK
Chongging Zhenzhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 24 May 2016 - 100 Development and operation
Development Company Limited (iii) RE /A B AE%50,000,0007T  24-05-2016 of residential and
R R R EREBRAAN commercial ancillary
BEREREHERES
Notes: Bt 3
(i) Sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law. () FEVEERTHFIING BLEE QT -
(ii) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. (ii) FROXETHINEBE R -
(iii) Limited companies under PRC law. (iii) FEEERTHARAF °
(iv) Pursuant to certain project and land related contracts signed (iv) RN R BB A7 RE R R TN

by the subsidiaries of the Group and the local governments, as
well as pursuant to the requirements of the local governments
and the local authorities related to the relevant public tender,
auction and listing, some parcels of the land acquired have sales
restrictions on properties built on them. The saleable area of
trade centres of China South International is limited to 30% of
the total buildable gross floor area (“GFA") of properties built on
the relevant parcels of land. The saleable area of trade centres
and logistics facilities built on certain parcels of land acquired
by CSC Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010 is limited to 60%
of the relevant total buildable GFA. The saleable area of trade
centres or commercial properties built by CSC Hefei and CSC
Chongging is limited to 50% of their relevant total buildable GFA.
The saleable area of trade centres or commercial properties of
phase | and future phases of CSC Zhengzhou is limited to 60%
and 50%, respectively, of the relevant total buildable GFA. Except
for the restrictions mentioned herein, there is no sales restriction
on the parcels of land acquired by the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),

principally affected the results for the year or formed a

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 =R

TEHEERLHWAEBEAR Lx&*ﬁﬁf}f”“itﬂftﬁl
R BB BRI X ESR - 2D IE

BEFfiZMEGEHSERS - a%iﬁ@%
R E RS0 A AR R
R EEEEEN30%: MEEEHAMNE
BEFINA2010FMENSE T LM £ E
BERORZPLEEFEENIHEERE

RRZEMEBAEREEENCOD : &
JEEmREEEEARERNRZ RO
PMEVENAHEARBRRZEWE AT
BEAMMBENS0% : B ErR I ERN—
BRSO SR 0k EDENT
HEMBAORRRNZEMEREEER
TEH60% &50% ° Br LillfE R 290 - RE
BEr L2 EHEERE o

ERFAIIDARRNEETRREAFREEE
BEAFESABRAEBEEEFET 2

DZANTRIHBA

Al EERRIEMAEMM

BRARZHBHBRITE °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % R BfY o (4

31 March 2021 202143H31H

R

2.1 Basis of Preparation 2.1

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies

Accountants
accepted
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangement; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the dates on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

ZEVBRERDIREEBGAMAG(HFE
BEMAG)RH2BBHBREEN(F
BMBHREENDN(ERRBREMEETENH
BEREA - FEGSHEAU(HFEGERD
kBB BAAREARAURE L AR K
PIZREMBE > WIRELKAERE - I
BRENMERBFBEZURAFEIRZER
BERAFEAERI - REEFHAIN
HEHBHRRABTES  AEHEHEN
BAAEREOTAE

mERE
EHMBEHREBIEAS BB E£2021543H31
BEFENHBHERE - MBRARIALRRFER
FAEEESNERE(REEBEER) - 2
REBAZ L ZELHEREHREBAEN
ARl BEe B BHIREH RN (A
MPAEBEBENEZERELHRIBAED
REE TR ¥ EZE 0 RE - IS EH
HE o

WARRERXEMEREFIONREHRAS
B REHBUEN  AAEERFEHEE
EEHRAEHREHRNENR  €ZE 1)
HEFEERER 81

@ HEREHRHBEREREANEGHLR
73

(b) EHEMENLHMELNERN: Rk
© AEEONREERBERERE-
BB A B 0 B 76 KR Tt B K X B AR R A 3R
THRRA - BN ST RRRE - WEQ

ANEERAEERGEGREALEFAR
B O UREERS BEEZFEHEEL -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % 2k B = (48D

31 March 2021

2.1

2.2

20214:3A31H

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

recognized in other comprehensive income is

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 =R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2021 202143H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@)  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets
and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard,
and none of the concepts contained therein override the
concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 April 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2021

20214:3A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(©

(e)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2027;
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2021 202143H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts’®

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current*®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 412

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

> As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to

align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
c As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow
the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required
to restate the comparative information.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies based on various
Interbank Offered Rates as at 31 March 2021. If the interest
rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future
period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon
the modification of these borrowings when the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost
of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which
an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’'s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealized losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

REBERTANRE

BERBRARE —RERTLRN20% KA
BREENRED  YRHEXBEAZE
NWER BARENIRZEREHRY
BEEERRRKOES B IFEH X
HEEFZFBE

AEBERBERANKREDZAER S
At B RE B EEEEFEREMRE
BRREAWHRRNKAIIE -

AEBEREBEZRDRNBREEMEMS
HWADRIFFAGZERER RFGHEME®E
WA e thsh - i B RN E QR R
BRED  AAKBERNGEAREEZEH X
REBGEMNEMES (ER) - AKEH
HBERRETRSMHERNRERF & Kk
BEEREEMEEE  SEAREEREE AR
MEERR BURAREREIREHE
EEEZLERENRI - WBBERAE
ENABAARNKENEZ RARNKEN—

5 -

MR ERANKREZERN A ELENR
BXHBREREBR AT EEHMAERERE
7o R2 BRBEMBERBESZENER - &
FIAEEMIBRAT  BBHERRNKEEATE
NRYEEECERELRESIER  AEER
ERAFEABIEIEMNRERE - KX
EZEARFENRNARERKREE QXA NEK
HEARBERERREREEMSREZLR
FEZENEERERAER -

EBRERANBREBERRSTIEHE BN
BRI RS ER BRI EFEZHRD
BEERFIFEXFTE -

China South City Holdings Limited ZERIHZERER A F

149



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % 2k B = (48D

31 March 2021 202143A31H

24 EREFHEME S

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

150

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognized in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized.
An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

EXMBEBEEE @
RNEHERE - B RK AR @R R
EFEEHE - HEASFEERENS X
BEHBASB IR SRR EEES T
HE - BIEE BRI TARET o A& ER3
ANBRTRENEERENS - BETH
EAS AEBEANMBANGEABAY
B 5S84 A GHE & 8 iR R RS
REFNACSESERSELSMNES
ELBMHAR TERAEEEGEERSR
BERECHRF RSB K BEMET -

B SRR R EEE R e EEEN
(KB eEEBMAR) 2T KRB S EEE °
WMIReEFEN (KRS EELEEMAR) 2R
WElEBENREER - REEER T AR
ReOHIEBRBZBREBEE N ENERE
B E o

WEBRATEARSELRN(RBSEL
BUAMN z—8D  MZELABIES
RHEE  AHEXRBHBENERETHER
BRANEERIAXBZREE-  £8
LERTREEZHERBEHERB LM
FBRCELEBMBOZHLEEEFE -

QNFEFE

AEERBEREPRE AT EAERREY
EREBRRURTEIEZEREE
BE - AFERMSL2EBERFEANES
FRXEFPHEEEMBURNERKEREE
A RER - AFEFEDRRELEEE
FHEHRLRBENRIREEHXABIEMSK
(EEXEMSBERAT)REEETIHETH
fEt - TEXRABETHARAEEATE
AZWG - BEEXRBENAFETLTERT
L2REREEXNBBEEEMANKRRS
EEMREMHEL2EFESURELHENRT

5)-

China South City Holdings Limited ZERIHZERER A F

151



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %5 % 2k B = (48D

31 March 2021 202143A31H

24 EREFHEME S

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

152

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3% to 9%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% to 18%
Motor vehicles 9% to 18%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost comprises the land costs, construction
costs, capitalized borrowing costs and other costs directly
attributed to such properties during the period of construction.

Properties under development are initially classified as non-
current assets and transferred to current assets under the
category of properties held for sale when the construction of
the relevant properties commences and the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete within the normal operating cycle.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-

use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 40 years
Property 1 to 8 years
Machinery 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
receivable,
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts

less any lease incentives variable lease
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition

that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is

lease is not readily determinable.
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in trade and other
payables and other long-term liabilities.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HEw
Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEEREHEANE)
(c) Short-term leases c) HHHEE

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of property and
machinery (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases is recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortized cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognized as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

REBRATHEE

eREE(MERSREEN —BOX
FEcREEANN - ETIBERT
R ER (A KE SRS MR RBER)

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . REEWRER S TEMENEME:
expired; or 54
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows . AEBEEEHEWRZEEEMBR

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
(@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 60 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the FE=H- REEAPBLBEEFEERENR
reporting date (but that are not purchased or BMEE(EWIFEBASN AR EE
originated credit impaired) and for which the loss BE) BEFBBEREREHE
allowance is measured at an amount equal to HMEEBLASETNE
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach B 5%

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, other long-term payables,
senior notes, medium-term notes, corporate bonds and domestic
company bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, other long-term payables, senior notes, medium-
term notes, corporate bonds and domestic company bonds are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

cREEE

Subsequent measurement (Continued) H#EFE2(E)
Financial guarantee contracts BBEREE

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out
n “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognized.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIA
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement AT EIAREBETE

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are recognized directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties held for sale and held for finance
lease

Properties held for sale and held for finance lease include
completed properties held for sale and held for finance lease and
properties under development expected to be completed within
the normal operating cycle. Properties held for sale and held for
finance lease are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes land costs, all development expenditure,
applicable borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realizable value is determined by reference
to the prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realizable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognized for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and 